ENDORSEMENT BY THE RESPONSIBLE PERSONS

27™ April 2012

Pursuing Part 1 of Article 21 of the Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania,
and rules prepared by the Lithuanian Securities Commission for preparation and announcement of
periodical and supplementary information, we, the undersigned — the Chief Executive Officer
Antanas Trumpa and the Chief Financial Officer Antanas Kavaliauskas — approve that the audited
financial accounting of ,,Rokiskio suris“ for the year 2011, is formed in accordance with applicable
international accounting standards valid in EU, is true and shows fair assets, obligations, financial
state and profits of the Company and total consolidated group, and also that the annual report shows
fair business environment as well as description of the company’s performance including key risk
factors and uncertainties which may be met by AB “Rokiskio suris”.

Attached: Consolidated financial audited report of AB “Rokiskio suris* for the year 2011, prepared
in accordance with the EU international accounting standards, also consolidated audited annual
report of AB “Rokiskio suris™ and the company’s disclosure of compliance with the Governance
Code of the companies whose securities are traded on a regulated market, approved by the general
meeting of shareholders of AB “Rokiskio siiris” on 27" April 2012.

Antanas Trumpa

Antanas Kavaliauskas
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Our report has been prepared in Lithuanian and English languages. In all matters of interpretation of
information, views or opinions, the Lithuanian language version of our report takes precedence over the English
language version.

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of Rokiskio siiris AB

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying stand alone and consolidated financial statements (together ‘the
Financial statements’) of Rokiskio siiris AB (‘the Company’) and its subsidiaries (collectively ‘the
Group’) set out on pages 5—47 which comprise the stand alone and consolidated balance sheet as of 31
December 2011 and the stand alone and consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responstbility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers UAB, J. Jasinskio 16B, LT-o1112 Vilnius, Lithuania
T: +370 (5) 239 2300, F:+370 (5) 239 2301, E-mail: vilnius@lt.pwc.com, www.pwc.com/It

PricewaterhouseCoopers UAB, company code 111473315, VAT payer's code LT114733113, registered office at J. Jasinskio 168, LT-01112 Vilnius,
is a private company registered with the Legal Entities’ Register of the Republic of Lithuania. PricewaterhouseCoopers refers to the network of member firms of
PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited, each of which is a separate and independent legal entity.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying Financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company and the Group as of 31 December 2011, and of their financial performance
and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Furthermore, we have read the consolidated Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2011 and

have not noted any material inconsistencies between the financial information included in it and the
audited Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011.

On behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers UAB
— \

» Rith vydas Jogéla
\ artner

Auditor’s Certificate No.000457
Authorised to act for and on behalf of
PricewaterhouseCoopers, UAB based on the
Power of Attorney dated 16 June 2010

Vilnius, Republic of Lithuania
5 April 2012



ROKISKIO SORIS AB
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

(All tabular amounts are in LTL ‘000 unless otherwise stated)

Income statement

Group Company
2011 2010 Notes 2011 2010
688,025 553,760 Revenue 5 689,336 533,655
_ (590.354)  (475,670) Cost of sales _(612707) (472,573
97.671 78,080 Gross profit 76,629 60,982
{34,794) (31,173) Selling and marketing expenses 6 (25,377) (18,230)
(32,913) (22.503) General and administrative expenses 7 (28,675) (17.354)
23,036 12,208 Other income 8 21,957 11,555
(18,001) (6,908) Other expenses 9 (18,007) (6,962)
142 (51) Other (losses)/gains 0 - sy Edy
36,141 29,663 Operating profit 26,657 29,971
iy (1,904) (1,017) Finance costs 12 (1,509) (1,017)
33,237 28,646 Profit before income tax 25,148 28,954
_ (5584)  (4,085) Income tax 13 (5,264) (4,076)
27,653 24,561 Profit for the year 19,884 24 878
Profit for the year attributable to:
27,569 24625 Owners of the Company
: 84  (64) Non-controlling interest
27,6563 24 561
14
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in

0.78 0.65 LTL per share) 0.56 0.66

The notes on pages 11 to 47 are an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 5 to 47 have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on § April

2012 and signed on their behalf by the Director and Chief Financial Officer.

Antanas Trumpa o) - e Antanas Kavaliauskas
Director = Chief Finance Officer




ROKISKIO SURIS AB
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

(All tabular amounts are in LTL ‘000 unless otherwise stated)

Statement of comprehensive income

Group
2011 2010
27,653 24,561
88,430 -
(13,265) -
75,165 -
102,818 24,561
102,734 24,625
84 (64)
102,818 24,561

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Gain on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment

Deferred income tax on revaluation
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
attributable:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interest

Notes

15

18

The notes on pages 10 to 47 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Company

2011
19,884

2010
24,878

72,972

(10,946)

62,026

81,910

24,878




ROKISKIO SURIS AB
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

(All tabular amounts are in LTL ‘000 unless otherwise stated)

Balance sheet

Group
At 31 December
2011 2010
ASSETS
Non-current assets
169,310 88,476 Property, plant and equipment
1,330 492 Intangible assets
551 546 Investments in subsidiaries
1,094 1,297 Deferred income tax assets
6,690 6,886 Available-for-sale financial assets
8,968 13,059 Loans granted
- 3,229 Other receivables
187,943 113,985
Current asaets
94,968 62,586 Inventories
53,490 35,332 Loans granted
98,965 90,081 Trade and other receivables
1,915 1,152 Prepaid income tax
10,576 19,524 Cash and cash equivalents
259,914 208,675
447,857 322,660 Total assets
EQUITY
Attributable to owners of the Company
35,868 38,445 Share capital
41,473 41,473 Share premium
40,287 29,188 Reserve for acquisition of treasury shares
(3,868) (11,478) Treasury shares
82,598 7,433 Other reserves
93,004 89,123 Retained earnings
289,362 194,184
- 450 Minority interest
289,362 194,634 Total equity
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
- 103 Borrowings
13,425 396 Deferred income tax liability
4,683 4,989 Deferred income
18,108 5,488
Current liabilities
6,030 4,995 Income tax liabilities
71,707 58,973 Borrowings
3,258 2,806 Deferred income
58,568 54,940 Trade and other payables
824 824 Provisions
140,387 122,538
158,495 128,026 Total liabilities
447,857 322,660 Total equity and liabilities

The notes on pages 10 to 47 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

15
16
17
18
31
19
21

20
19
21

22

23

25
24
25

26
18
27

26
27
28
29

Company

At 31 December
2011 2010
127,645 62,529
424 564
28,341 27,487
1,094 1,297
6,690 6,886
10,683 11,567
- 3,229
174,877 113,559
87,341 55,559
50,436 30,519
90,466 90,2086
1,348 645
8,294 17,902
237,885 194,831
412,762 308,390
35,868 38,445
41,473 41,473
40,287 29,188
(3,868) (11,478)
69,459 7,433
74,045 77,748
257,264 182,809
257,264 182,809
10,946 -
2,030 3,031
12,976 3,031
5,692 4,992
71,707 58,973
2,632 2,299
61,767 55,462
824 824
142,522 122,550
155,498 125,581
412,762 308,390




ROKISKIO SURIS AB

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

(All tabular amounts are in LTL ‘000 unless otherwise stated)

Company’s statement of changes in equity

Balance at 1 January 2010

Comprehensive income for the
year

Total comprehensive income
for 2010

Transactions with owners
Acquisition of treasury shares

Transfer to legal and other
reserves

Dividends relating to 2009

Total transactions with owners
for 2010

Balance at 31 December 2010
Comprehensive income

Profit (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
for 2011

Transactions with owners
Acquisition of treasury shares
Cancelation of treasury shares
Transfer to reserves

Dividends relating to 2010

Total transactions with owners
for 2011

Balance at 31 December 2011

Note

24

25

25

24

25

25

Reserve for

acquisition
Share Share of treasury  Treasury Other Retained
capital premium shares shares reserves earnings Total
38,445 41,473 14,188 - 7,074 72,073 173,253
- - - - - 24,878 24,878
- - - - - 24,878 24,878
- - - (11,478) - - (11,478)
- - 15,000 - 359 (15,359) -
- - - - - (3,844) (3,844)
- - 15,000 (11,478) 359 (19,203) (15,322)
38,445 41,473 29,188  (11,478) 7,433 77,748 182,809
- - - - - 19,884 19,884
- - - - 62,026 - 62,026
- - - - 62,026 19,884 81,910
- - - (3,868) - - (3,868)
(2,577) - (8,901) 11,478 -
- - 20,000 - - (20,000) -
- - - - - (3,587) (3,587)
(2,577) - (28,901) 7,610 - (23,587) (7,455)
35,868 41,473 40,287 (3,868) 69,459 74,045 257,264

The notes on pages 10 to 47 are an integral part of these financial statements.




ROKISKIO SURIS AB

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

(All tabular amounts are in LTL ‘000 unless otherwise stated)

Group’s statement of changes in equity

Note

Balance at 1 January 2010
Comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
for 2010

Transactions with owners
Acquisition of treasury shares 24

Transfer to legal and other 25
reserves

Dividends relating to 2009 25

Total transactions with owners
for 2010

Balance at 31 December 2010
Comprehensive income

Profit (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
for 2011

Transactions with owners
Acquisition of treasury shares 24
Cancelation of treasury shares 25
Transfer to reserves

Dividends relating to 2010 25

Acquisition of non-controlling
interest in subsidiaries

Total transactions with owners
for 2011

Balance at 31 December 2011

Attributable to owners of the Company

Reserve
for
acquisition Non-
Share Share of treasury Treasury  Other Retained controlling
capital premium shares shares reserves earnings Total interest  Total

38,445 41,473 14,188 - 7,074 83,741 184,921 514 185,435
24,625 24,625 (64) 24,561

24,625 24,625 (64) 24,561

- - - (11,478) - - (11,478) - (11,478)

- - 15,000 - 359 (15,359) - - -

- - - - - (3,884) (3,884) - (3,884)

- - 15,000 (11,478) 359 (19,243) (15,362) - (15,362)
38,445 41,473 29,188 (11,478) 7,433 89,123 194,184 450 194,634
- - - - - 27,569 27,569 84 27,653

- - - - 75,165 - 75,165 75,165

- - - - 75,165 27,569 102,734 84 102,818

- - - (3,868) - - (38,868) - (3,868)
(2,577) - (8,901) 11,478 - - - - -
- - 20,000 - - {20,000) - - -

- - - - - (3,688) (3,688) (3,688)

- - - - - - - (534) (534)
(2,577) - (28,901) 7,610 - (23,688) (7,556) (534) (8,090)
35,868 41,473 40,287 (3,868) 82,598 93,004 289,362 - 289,362

The notes on pages 10 to 47 are an integral part of these financial statements.




ROKISKIO SURIS AB

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

(All tabular amounts are in LTL ‘000 unless otherwise stated)

Statement of cash flows

Group
Year ended 31 December
2011 2010
14,702 2,077
(1,903) (1,016)
(2,139) (993)
10,660 68
(16,674) (6,524)
(977) (239)
(10,644)
(15,292) (9,469)
(19,199) (16,292)
628 289
3,405 842
8,295 7,505
12,433 4,760
2,648 3,930
(24,733) (25,842)
(3,688) (3,844)
(3,868) (11,478)
971,485 495,538
(955,993) (5631,425)
7,936 (51,209)
(6,137) (76,983)
4,599 81,582
(1,538) 4,599

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations

Interest paid

Income tax paid
Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of intangible assets

Purchase of investments

Loans granted to farmers and employees
Other loans granted

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Government grants received

Other loan repayments received

Loan repayments from farmers and employees
Interest received

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid

Acquisition of treasury shares

Loans received

Repayments of borrowings

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing

activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash

equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Note

32

15

32
27

25
24

22

22

The notes on pages 10 to 47 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Company
Year ended 31 December
2011 2010
13,038 (9,256)
(1,509) (1,016)
- (82)
11,529 (10,354)
(11,024) (4,264)
(72) (239)
(1,438) (10,468)
(15,292) (9,469)
(19,199) (8,135)
607 269
1,965 362
8,295 6,870
7,429 4,762
2,316 3,581
(26,413) (16,731)
(3,587) (3,844)
(3,868) (11,478)
971,455 495,457
(955,912) (531,265)
8,088 (51,130)
(6,796) (78,215)
2,976 81,191
(3,820) 2,976

10




ROKISKIO SURIS AB
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

(All tabular amounts are in LTL ‘000 unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the financial statements

1. General information

Rokiskio Slris AB (hereinafter “the Company”) is a public listed company incorporated in Rokiskis.
The Company’s code is 173057512 address: Pramonés St. 3 LT-42150 Rokiskis, Lithuania.

The shares of Rokiskio Siris AB are traded on the Baltic Main List (RSU1L) of NASDAQ OMX Vilnius
stock exchange.

The consolidated Group (hereinafter “the Group”) consists of the Company its two branches, five
subsidiaries and one joint venture (hereinafter “the joint venture”) (2010: two branches, five
subsidiaries and one joint venture). The branches and subsidiaries that comprise the consolidated
Group are indicated below:

Operating as at Shareholding of

31 December the Group (%) as

at 31 December
Branches 2011 | 2010 Subsidiaries 2011 2010
Utenos Pienas Yes Yes Rokiskio Pienas UAB 100.00 | 100.00
Ukmergés Pieniné Yes Yes Skirpstas UAB - | 100.00
Zalmargeé KB 100.00 | 100.00
Jekabpils Piena Kombinats SIA 100.00 | 50.05
Kaunata SIA ™ 60.00 | 60.00

Joint venture

Pieno Upes UAB 50.00 | 50.00

* These subsidiaries were not consolidated in the Group's financial statements as they were
immaterial.
On 31 March 2011, Skirpstas UAB was put into liquidation. On 31 May 2011, the Company acquired
49.95% of authorised share capital of raw milk collection company Jekabpils Piena Kombinats SIA
(Note 17).

All the above-listed subsidiaries, joint venture and branches were registered in Lithuania, except for
Jekabpils Piena Kombinats SIA and Kaunata SIA which were registered in Latvia.

The Group’s and the Company’s main line of business is the production of ferment cheese and a wide
range of milk products.

The average number of the Company’s employees during the year ended 31 December 2011 was

1,043 people (2010: 1,026 people). The average number of the Group’s employees during the year
ended 31 December 2011 was 1,599 people (2010: 1,607 people).

2.  Accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the valuation of available-for-sale financial assets at fair value and valuation of property, plant
and equipment at revalued amount.

11




ROKISKIO SURIS AB

CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

(All tabular amounts are in LTL ‘000 unless otherwise stated)
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current event and actions actual
results ultimately may differ from those estimates (Note 4).

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011:

Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards, issued in May
2010 (effective dates vary standard by standard, most improvements are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011). The improvements had no
material impact on the Company’s/Group’s financial statements.

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations that are mandatory for the
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 but are not relevant to the
Company’s and the Group'’s operations:

IAS 24, ‘Related party disclosures’ (amended in November 2009; effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011). IAS 24 was revised in 2009
by: (a) simplifying the definition of a related party, clarifying its intended meaning and
eliminating inconsistencies from the definition; and by (b) providing a partial
exemption from the disclosure requirements for government-related entities. This
amendment has no impact on the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements.

Classification of rights issues — amendment to IAS 32 Financial instruments:
presentation.

Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement — amendment to IFRIC 14.
IFRIC 19, Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments.

Limited exemption from comparative IFRS 7 disclosures for first-time adopters
- amendment to IFRS 1.

(c) New standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards issued but
not yet effective and not early adopted by the Company and the Group:

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (issued in November 2009; effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted; not
yet adopted by the EU). IFRS 9 replaces those paris of IAS 39 relating to the
classification and measurement of financial assets. The Company/Group does not
expect the standard to have a significant impact on the financial statements.

IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statements’ (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013; not yet adopted by the EU). The standard
replaces all of the guidance on control and consolidation in 1AS 27 “Consolidated and
separate financial statements” and SIC-12 ‘Consolidation - special purpose entities’.
IFRS 10 changes the definition of control so that the same criteria are applied to all
entities to determine control. This definition is supported by extensive application
guidance. The Company/Group does not expect the standard to have a significant
impact on the financial statements.

12




ROKISKIO SURIS AB
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

(All tabular amounts are in LTL ‘000 unless otherwise stated)

- IFRS 11 ‘Joint arrangements’ (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013; not yet adopted by the EU). The standard
replaces IAS 31 ‘“Interests in Joint Ventures” and SIC-13 “Jointly
Controlled Entities—Non-Monetary Contributions by Ventures”. Changes
in the definitions have reduced the number of “types” of joint
arrangements to two: joint operations and joint ventures. The existing
policy choice of proportionate consolidation for jointly controlled entities
has been eliminated. Equity accounting is mandatory for participants in
joint ventures. This standard is not expected to have a significant impact
on the Company’s/Group’s financial statements.

- IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of interest in other entities’ (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013; not yet adopted by the EU).
The standard applies to entities that have an interest in a subsidiary, a
joint arrangement, an associate or an unconsolidated structured entity; it
replaces the disclosure requirements currently found in IAS 28
“Investments In assoclates”. IFRS 12 regulres enlilies lo disclose
information that helps financial statement readers to evaluate the nature,
risks and financial effects associated with the entity’s interests in
subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangements and unconsolidated
structured entities. To meet these objectives, the new standard requires
disclosures in a number of areas, including significant judgements and
assumptions made in determining whether an entity controls, jointly
controls or significantly influences its interests in other entities, extended
disclosures on share of non-controlling interest in group activities and
cash flows, summarised financial information of subsidiaries with material
non-controlling interests, and detailed disclosures of interests in
unconsolidated structured entities. Currently, the Company/Group
assesses the impact of this standard on their financial statements.

- IFRS 13 ‘Fair value measurement’ (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013; not yet adopted by the EU). The
standard aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing
a precise definition of fair value, and a single source of fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs. This
standard is not expected to have a significant impact on the
Company’s/Group’s financial statements.

- IAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’ (revised in 2011, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013; not yet adopted by the EU).
This standard is not expected to have a significant impact on the
Company’s/Group’s financial statements.

- IAS 27, ‘Separate financial statements’ (revised in 2011, effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013; not yet adopted by
the EU). Currently, the Company/Group assesses the impact of this
standard on their financial statements.

- 1AS 28, ‘Investments in associates and joint ventures’ (revised in
2011, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013;
not yet adopted by the EU). Currently, the Company/Group assesses the
impact of this standard on their financial statements.

- Disclosures—transfers of financial assets ~ amendments to IFRS 7
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011; not yet
adopted by the EU). This amendment is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Company’s/Group’s financial statements.

13




ROKISKIO SURIS AB
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

(Al tabutar amounts are in LTL ‘000 unless otherwise stated)

2.2

- Deferred tax: recovery of underlying assets — amendment to IAS 12
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012; not yet
adopted by the EU). This amendment is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Company’s/Group’s financial statements.

- Severe hyperinflation and removal of fixed dates for first-time
adopters — amendment to IFRS 1 (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2011; not yet adopted by the EU). This amendment will
have no impact on the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements.

- Presentation of components of other comprehensive income -
amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012; not yet adopted by
the EU). This standard is not expected to have a significant impact on the
Company’s/Group’s financial statements.

- Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities - amendments to
IAS 32 Financial instruments: presentation (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014; not yet adopted by the EU).
This standard is not expected to have a significant impact on the
Company’s/Group’s financial statements.

Consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, the group recognizes any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If this is less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognized directly in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the group.

14
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23

24

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interest

The group treats transactions with non-controlling interest as transactions with equity owners of
the group. For purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are
also recorded in equity.

When the group ceases to have control or significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for
as if the group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

(c) Joint ventures

The group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for by proportionate
consolidation. The group combines its share of the joint ventures' individual income and
expenses, assets and liabilities and cash flows on a line-by-line basis with similar items in the
group’s financial statements. The group recognises the portion of gains or losses on the sale of
assets by the group to the joint venture that is attributable to the other venturers. The group
does not recognise its share of profits or losses from the joint venture that result from the
group’s purchase of assets from the joint venture until it resells the assets to an independent
party. However, a loss on the transaction is recognised immediately if the loss provides
evidence of a reduction in the net realisable value of current assets, or an impairment loss.

Stand-alone financial statements

Subsidiaries in the stand-alone financial statements are accounted at cost less impairment
charge — that is the income from the investment is recognized in full where Company receives
distributions from accumulated profits of the investee. Distributions received from accumulated
profits arising before the date of acquisition are tested for impairment.

Foreign currency transiation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

The items shown in the financial statements of the Company and each company of the Group
are valued by the currency of the original economic environment wherein a specific company
operates (hereinafter the “functional currency”). These financial statements are presented in
Litas (LTL), which is the Company’s (and each of the Group entity’s) functional and presentation
currency, with exception for subsidiaries in Latvia, which functional currency is Latvian Lats
(LVL).

With effect from 2 February 2002, the litas has been pegged with the euro at an exchange rate
of LTL 3.4528 to EUR 1.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
income statement.
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2.6

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is shown at revalued amount, based on periodic valuations of
assets, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are
credited to other comprehensive income and shown as revaluation reserve in shareholders’
equity. Decreases in the carrying amount on subsequent revaluations that offset previous
increases of the carrying amount of the same asset are charged in other comprehensive
income and debited against revaluation reserve in equity; all other decreases are charged to the
income statement. Increases in the carrying amount on subsequent revaluations that offset
previous decreases of the carrying amount are recognised in the income statement; all other
increases in the carrying amount on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are
recognised in other comprehensive income and added to revaluation reserve in shareholders’
equity. Each year the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount
of the asset charged to the income statement, and depreciation based on the asset’s original
cost is transterred from revaluation reserve to retained earnings net of deferred income tax.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as separate assets
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company or the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are given in the table below:

Buildings 15-55 years
Plant and machinery 5-29 years
Motor vehicles 4-10 years
Equipment and other property, plant and equipment 3-20 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

Construction in progress is transferred to appropriate group of property plant and equipment when
it is completed and ready for its intended use.

When property is retired or otherwise disposed, the cost and related depreciation are removed
from the financial statements and any related gains or losses are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are included in operating profit.

Intangible assets

(a) Computer software

Software assets expected to provide economic benefit to the Company and the Group in future
periods are valued at acquisition cost less subsequent amortisation. Software is amortised on
the straight-line basis over the useful life of 1 to 5 years.

(b) Contractual customer relationships

Contractual customer relationships recognized as intangible asset upon business acquisition
are accounted for at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Contractual customer
relationships are amortised on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 2 years.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

Financial assets
a) Loans and receivables

The Group classifies its financial assets in a category of loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and re-
evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

l.oans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current assets.
Loans and receivables are classified as ‘trade and other receivables’ in the balance sheet.

b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment or investment matures within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

Available-for-sale financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs and
subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Upon the disposal or impairment of available-for-sale investments, the accumulated fair value
adjustment recognised in equity is included in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive
income.

The fair value of investments traded in active financial markets is based on quoted closing market
prices at the balance sheet date. For investments where there is no active market, fair value is
determined using valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s length
market transactions, reference to the current market value of another instrument, which is
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation models.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting date whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as available for
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is an
evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available for sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit
or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by the
first-in first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related indirect production overheads, but excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the costs of completion and selling expenses.

Loans granted, trade and other receivables
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2.13

Loans granted and amounts receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less the amount of impairment
loss. A provision for impairment of amounts receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. The impairment amount is the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement within ‘general
and administrative expenses’. Bad debts are written off during the year in which they are identified
as irrecoverable.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at nominal value. For the purposes of the cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at bank and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafis are included in borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Share capital
(a) Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are stated at their par value. Consideration received for the shares sold in
excess over their nominal value is shown as share premium. Incremental external costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are accounted for as a deduction from share premium.

(b) Treasury shares

Where the Company or its subsidiaries purchase the Company’s equity share capital, the
consideration paid, including any attributed incremental external costs, is deducted from
shareholders’ equity as treasury shares until they are sold, reissued or cancelled. No gain or
loss is recognised in the income statement on the sale, issuance or cancellation of treasury
shares. Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received is
presented in the consolidated financial statements as a change in shareholders’ equity.

Reserves
(a) Other reserves

Other reserves are established upon the decision of annual general meeting of shareholders on
profit appropriation. This reserve may be used only for the purposes approved by annual
general meeting of shareholders.

Legal reserve is included into other reserves. A legal reserve is a compulsory reserve under the
Lithuanian legislation. Annual transfers of 5 per cent of net profit are required until the reserve
reaches 10 per cent of the share capital. The legal reserve cannot be used for payment of
dividends and it is established to cover future losses only.

(b) Reserve for acquisition of treasury shares
This reserve is maintained as long as the Group is involved in acquisition/disposal of its treasury

shares. This reserve is compulsory under the Lithuanian regulatory legislation and should not be
lower than the acquisition cost of treasury shares acquired.
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Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the amount at initial recognition
and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date. Interest
expense on borrowing is expensed in the statement of comprehensive income.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the company and its
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Profit is taxable at a rate of 15 per cent (2010: 15 per cent) in accordance with the Lithuanian
regulatory legislation on taxation.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability method on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised on all temporary differences that will
increase the taxable profit in future, whereas deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is
probable that they will reduce the taxable profit in future. However the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.Deferred income
tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Leases — where the Group is the lessee
(a) Finance lease

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the
lease’'s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the estimated
present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of future finance charges, are included in long-term
payables except for instalments due within 12 months which are included in current liabilities. The
items of property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the
shorter of the useful life or lease term of the asset.
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2.19

(b) Operating lease

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Employee benefits
(a) Social security contributions

The Group pays social security contributions to the state Social Security Fund (the Fund) on
behalf of its employees based on the defined contribution plan in accordance with the local legal
requirements. A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into the Fund and will have no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the Fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior period. Social security contributions are recognised as
expenses on an accrual basis and are included in payroll expenses.

(b) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’s employment is terminated before the
normal retirement date or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to
either: terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan
without possibility of withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after balance sheet
date are discounted to present value.

(c) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of
goods and services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.
Revenue from sales of goods is recognised only when all significant risks and benefits arising
from ownership of goods is transferred to the customer.

Revenue for delivering transportation services in recognized in the period when services are
performed.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
When a receivable is impaired the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loans is recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Dividends distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company's
shareholders.
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Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net profit attributed to the shareholders from
average weighted number of ordinary registered shares in issue, excluding ordinary registered
shares purchased by the Company and the Group and held as treasury shares.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments has been identified
as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions.

The Group’s management distinguished the following operating segments of the Group: hard
cheese, semi-hard cheese, butter, milk cream, sour cream, sour milk, yogurt, curd, curd cheese
and other. These segments were combined into two main reportable segments based on the
similar nature of products production process types of customers and the method of distribution.

Government grants and subsidies

Government grants are recognised at fair value where there is sufficient evidence that the grant
will be received and the Group and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Export subsidies paid by the Government for each exported tone of products meeting certain
requirements are included in sales revenue.

Government grants received to finance acquisition of property plant and equipment are included
in non-current deferred income in the balance sheet. They are recognised as income on a
straight-line basis over the useful life of property plant and equipment concerned.

Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when: the Group and the
Company have a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specified to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using effective interest method.

Change in accounting policy

In 2011, the Company and the Group introduced changes in the accounting policy for property,
plant and equipment. Before 31 December 2011, the Company and the Group used to account
for property, plant and equipment at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment. With effect from 31 December 2011, the Company's and Group's property, plant
and equipment has been revaluated and accounted for at revalued amount less accumulated
depreciation and impairment. This change in accounting policy was not resognised
retrospectively because it was impracticable to determine the cumulative effect, at the beginning
of the current period, of applying a new accounting policy to all prior periods.
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3.1

Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Group’s and the Company’s activities expose them to a variety of financial risks. The Group’s overall
risk management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects of the financial performance of the Group.

Risk management is carried out by the Company’s management. There are no written principles for
overall risk management in place.

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Company and the Group operate internationally, however, their exposure to toreign exchange risk 1s
set at minimum level, since sales outside Lithuania are performed mostly in the euros. The exchange
rate of the euro and the litas is fixed.

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Company’s and the Group’s interest rate risk arises from interest-bearing loans and long-term
borrowings issued. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. In 2011 and 2010,
loans granted by the Group at a fixed interest rate were denominated in the litas. In 2011 and 2010,
borrowings issued to the Group at a variable interest rate were denominated in the litas and the euros.

As at 31 December 2011, the Company’s and the Group’s net liabilities sensitive to interest rate risk
amounted to LTL 53,122 thousand and LTL 53,122 thousand, respectively (31 December 2010: LTL 21
227 thousand and LTL 15 170 thousand, respectively). If interest rate increases / decreases by 0.5
percentage point (2010: 0.5 percentage point), the Company's and the Group’s profit would decrease /
increase by LTL 266 thousand and LTL 266 thousand, respectively (2010: profit would decrease /
increase by LTL 106 thousand and 76 thousand, respectively).

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk arises from cash balances at banks, loans granted, and trade receivables.

As at 31 December 2011, all Company’s and Group’s cash balances were held in banks that had external
credit ratings from ‘A’ to ‘A+’, as set by the rating agency Fitch Ratings (31 December 2010: from ‘A’ to
‘B+).

i) Maximum exposure to credit risk

The table below summarises the Company’s and the Group’s credit risk exposures relating to on-
balance sheet items. Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit
enhancements as at 31 December:

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
10,576 19,524 Cash and cash equivalents at banks 8,294 17,902
93,519 83,872 Trade receivables 85,793 86,000
62,458 48,391 Loans granted 61,119 42,086
- 3,229 Other receivables - 3,229
166,553 155,016 155,206 149,217
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i) Credit quality of financial assets
The Group does not classify amounts receivable and other financial assets exposed to credit risk
according to credit quality. Credit risk is managed through established credit limits for a major
customers and monitoring of overdue receivables and loans. Credit limits and overdue receivables are
continuously monitored by the Company’s and the Group’s management.

Credit limits and receivables as at 31 December 2011 for the major customers are summarised below:

Group Company
Credit limit Receivables Credit limit Receivables
12,600 12,357 Customer A 12,600 12,357
10,000 9,868 Customer B 10,000 9,868
7,800 7,167 Customer C 7,800 7,167
5,200 5,135 Customer D 5,200 5,135
4,800 4,778 Customer E 4,800 4,778
3,700 3,637 Customer F 3,700 3,637
16,500 10,036 Customer G
8,940 5,207 Customer H
Credit limits and receivables as at 31 December 2010 for the major 9 customers are summarised
below:
Group Company
Credit limit Receivables Credit limit Receivables
11,000 10,968 Customer A 11,000 10,968
10,600 9,829 Customer B 10,600 9,829
6,000 5,820 Customer C 6,000 5,820
6,000 5,561 Customer D 6,000 5,561
5,900 5,852 Customer E 5,900 5,852
5,500 5,137 Customer F 5,500 5,137
3,000 2,904 Customer G 3,000 2,904
16,500 9,000 Customer H - -
8,940 5,153 Customer | - -
Trade receivables did not significantly exceed the established credit limits.
The table below summaries concentration of the loans granted:
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
48,397 28,576 Loans granted for amount of above LTL 2 million 49,634 23,572
6,543 8,016 Loans granted for amount above LTL 1 million but not 4,608 7,608
more than LTL 2 million
7,518 11,799 Loans granted for amount less than LTL 1 million 6,877 10,906
62,458 48,391 61,119 42,086

Loans in excess of LTL 2 million were granted to the following companies: Agrofirma Turiba SIA,
Litrada UAB, Pieno Prarvnonés Investicijy Valdymas, Dzikijos Pienas KB, individual farmer K.Deveikis,
Zeimelis ZUB, Draugas ZUB.
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(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management allows maintaining sufficient cash and availability of funding under
committed credit facilities.

The table below summarises the Group’s and the Company's financial liabilities. The financial liabilities
are classified into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Accounts payable and other financial liabilities due within 3 months or less are equal to their
carrying amounts as the impact of discounting is insignificant.

Company
Less than 3 From 3to 12 From1to5
At 31 December 2011 months months years After 5 years
Borrowings from banks 43,640 28,579 - -
Trade payablcs 54,772
Other payable - - - -
98,412 28,579 - -
At 31 December 2010 Less than 3 From 3 to 12 From1to5
months months years After 5 years
Borrowings from banks 33,833 25,709 - -
Trade payables 45,887 - - -
Other payable 9,575 - - -
89,295 25,709 - -
Group
At 31 December 2011 Less than 3 From 3 to 12 From1to5
months months years After 5 years
Borrowings from banks 43,640 28,579 - -
Trade payables 49,370 - - -
Other payable - - - -
93,010 28,579 - -
At 31 December 2010 Less than 3 From 3 to 12 From1to5
months months years After 5 years
Borrowings from banks 33,717 25,207 103 -
Trade payables 42,498 - - -
Other payable 12,442 - - -
88,657 25,207 103

3.2.

Capital risk management

The Company’s and the Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group and Company may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Company and the Group define their capital as equity and debt less cash and cash equivalents.

24



ROKISKIO SURIS AB
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011

(All tabular amounts are in LTL ‘000 unless otherwise stated)

3.3.

As at 31 December, the Group's and the Company’s capital structure was as follows:

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
71,707 59,076 Borrowings 71,707 58,973
(10,576) (19,524) Less: cash and cash equivalents (8,294) (17,902)
61,131 39,552 Net debt 63,413 41,071
289,362 194,634 Shareholders’ equity 257,264 182,809
350,493 234,186 Total capital 320,677 223,880

Pursuant to the Lithuanian Law on Companies the authorised share capital of a public company must
be not less than LTL 150,000 (the authorised share capital of a private company must not be less than
LTL 10,000) and the shareholders’ equity should not be lower than 50 per cent of the company’s
registered share capital. As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010 the Company and its
subsidiaries registered in Lithuania complied with these requirements.

Fair value estimation

Trade payables and trade receivables accounted for in the balance sheet should be settled within a
period shorter than three months therefore it is deemed that their fair value equals to their carrying
amount less impairment. Interest rate on the borrowings received by the Company is subject to repricing
at least every six months therefore it is deemed that their fair value equals their carrying amount.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Provision for impairment of loans and accounts receivable

Provision for impairment of accounts receivable and loans granied was determined based on the
management’s estimates on recoverability and timing relating to the amounts that will not be collectable
according to the original terms of receivables. This determination requires significant judgement.
Judgement is exercised based on significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments. Current
estimates of the Company and the Group could change significantly as a result of change in situation in
the market and the economy as a whole. Recoverability rate also highly depends on success rate and
actions employed relating to recovery of significantly overdue amounts receivable.

Estimates of useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Company and the Group have old buildings and machinery, where the useful lives are estimated
based on the expected product lifecycles. However, economic useful lives may differ from the currently
estimated as a result of technical innovations and actions of competitors.

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment

With effect from 31 December 2011, the Company and the Group account for property, plant and
equipment at revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Based on new
accounting policy, revaluations are carried out periodically to ensure that the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment does not significantly differ from the value which would have been
determined had the fair value been used at the end of the reporting period. In 2011, valuation of
property, plant and equipment was carried out by Vadasa UAB using the comparative market price
method. In the opinion of the Company's management, the values of property, plant and equipment
adjusted using these methods as at 31 December 2011 approximate its fair value.
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5. Segment reporting
Operating segments and reportable segments

The Group’s management distinguished the following operating segments of the Group: hard cheese,
semi-hard cheese, butter milk, cream, sour cream, sour milk, yogurt, curd, curd cheese and other.
These segments were combined into two main reportable segments based on the similar nature of
products, production process, types of customers and the method of distribution.

The main two reportable business segments of the Group are as follows:

- Fresh milk products
- Cheese and other dairy products

Other operations of the Group mainly comprise of milk collecting activity which is not of a sufficient
size to be reported separately. Transactions between the business segments are on normal
commercial terms and conditions. The segment of fresh milk products includes 2 external customers with
each individual revenue accounting for 10% of total revenue of the segment.

Segment information for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010:

Fresh milk Cheese and Other Group
products other dairy segments
products (unallocated)

2011
Sales 310,369 689,336 68,585 1,068,290
Inter-segment sales (86,730) (227,433) (66,102) (380,265)
Sales to external customers 223,639 461,903 2,483 688,025
Segment’s gross profit 45,259 50,173 2,239 97,671
Depreciation and amortisation 5,061 18,119 311 23,491
Income tax expense 295 5,264 25 5,584
Total assets 87,621 412,762 13,645 514,028
Elimination of intercompany transactions (66,171)
Total assets less intercompany 447,857
transactions
Additions to non-current assets (other than 5613 10,516 323 16,452
financial instruments and deferred tax
assets)
Total liabilities 28,757 155,497 10,845 195,099
Elimination of intercompany transactions (36,604)
Total liabilities less intercompany 158,495
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Fresh milk Cheese and Other Group
products other dairy segments
products  (unallocated)

2010
Sales 244,738 533,555 51,720 830,013
Inter-segment sales (44,987) (180,803) (50,463) (276,253)
Sales to externalcustomers 199,751 352,752 1,257 553,760
Segment’s gross profit 15,193 60,982 1,915 78,090
Depreciation and amortisation 5,031 21,077 284 26,392
Income tax expense (84) 4,076 93 4,085
Total assets 70,589 308,389 9,389 388,367
Elimination of intercompany transactions (65,707)
Total assets less intercompany 322,660
transactions
Additions to non-current assets (other than 2,142 4,264 118 6,524
financial instruments and deferred tax
assets)
Total liabilities 33,262 125,580 4,279 163,121
Elimination of intercompany transactions (35,095)
Total liabilities less intercompany 128,026

transactions

Geographical information

All the Company’s assets are located in Lithuania. The Company’s sales by markets can be analysed as

follows:
Sales Total assets Capital expenditure
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Lithuania 240,496 191,934 412,762 308,390 10,775 4,264
Europe Union countries 328,155 248,996 - - - -
Other countries 120,685 92,625 - - - -
689,336 533,555 412,762 308,390 10,775 4,264

The breakdown of the Group’s assets by geographical segments is presented below. The Group’s sales

by markets can be analysed as follows:

Sales Total assets Capital expenditure

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Lithuania 225,725 201,784 445,111 321,789 16,209 6,422
Europe Union countries 341,615 259,351 2,746 871 216 102
Other countries 120,685 92,625 - - - -
688,025 553,760 447,857 322,660 16,425 6,524

Sales are allocated based on the country in which the customers are located.
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The analysis of the Company’s revenue by category:
Revenue from sales of goods

Export subsidies
Other revenue (milk transportation)

The analysis of the Group’s revenue by category:

Revenue from sales of goods
Export subsidies
Other revenue (milk transportation)

2011 2010
666,211 511,518
- 374
23,125 21,663
689,336 533,555
2011 2010
687,072 550,905
- 374

953 2,481
688,025 553,760

Pursuant to the European Commission Regulation On definition of compensation for milk and milk
product export costs, with effect from 1 May 2004, the Company is entitled to receive subsidies for
cheese exported to the countries specified in the Regulation. Export subsidies are paid for each tone of
exported products that meet certain requirements attached to the Regulation.

6. Selling and marketing expenses
Group

2011 2010
4,604 4,727 Marketing services
8,251 7,373 Wages and salaries

11,527 9,474 Transportation services
2,008 1,594 Product image creation and advertising expenses
2,462 2,297 Repairs and maintenance
1,620 1,900 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

42 10 Warehousing services

4,280 3,798 Other expenses

34,794 31,173

Company
2011 2010
3,921 3,424
10,468 8,215
435 64
2,101 1,928
1,439 1,623
42 10
6,971 2,966
25,377 18,230
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7. General and administrative expenses
Group
2011 2010
7,701 6,965 Wages and salaries

180 191
23 3,068
15,720 -
482 95
- 144
1,358 1,143
608 681
1,168 4,918
278 343
223 201
585 658
622 152
95 162
479 200
45 118
364 348
2,982 3,116
32,913 22,503
8. Other income
Group
2011 2010
17,541 6,491
3,635 3,930
1,860 1,787
23,036 12,208
9. Other expenses
Group
2011 2010
17,536 6,433
465 475
18,001 6,908

Taxes (other than income tax)

Provisions for impairment of loans granted and write-
offs of loans (Note 19 and Note 21)

Provisions for impairment of doubtful receivables
Consultations

Write-offs of investments (Note 17)

Write-off of amount receivable from the liquidated
subsidiary Europienas UAB

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
amortisation of intangible assets

Repairs and maintenance

Paid and accrued bonuses

Telecommunications and IT maintenance expenses
Insurance expenses

Write-offs of property, plant and equipment

Bank charges

Business trips

Fines

Staff training

Membership fees

Charity, support

Other expenses

Re-sale of goods
Interest income
Other income

Cost of goods resold
Other expenses

Company
2011 2010
5,188 4,581
137 104
23 1,545
15,720 -
334 483
586 1,144
895 647
498 571
1,168 4,918
200 240
167 144
535 599
506 90
6 6
452 179
39 113
115 205
2,106 1,785
28,675 17,354

Company
2011 2010
17,526 6,518
2,847 3,581
1,584 1,456
21,957 11,555

Company
2011 2010
17,534 6,464
473 498
18,007 6,962
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10. Other operating losses

Group
2011 2010
142 (561) Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (Note
32)
142 (51)

11. Expenses by nature

Group
2011 2010
440,760 355,191 Raw materials and consumables used

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in

(32,382) (32,364) progress
52,363 46,320 Salaries including social security costs
38,566 39,642 Transportation services
1,168 4,918 Paid and accrued bonuses
23,630 26,392 Depreciation and amortisation
Amortisation of the Government grant for propenty, plant
(3,258) (3,326) and equipment (Note 27)
4,604 4,727 Marketing services
9,880 8,731 Repairs and maintenance
8,553 - Cost of finished goods resold
- - Write-offs of investments
23 3,068 Impairment of amounts receivable
Write-offs of amounts receivable from liquidated
- - companies
379 381 Taxes (other than income tax)
482 95 Consultations
355 430 Telecommunications and IT maintenance expenses
44,839 38,217 Utilities (energy)
68,099 36,924 Other
Total cost of sales, selling and marketing expenses and
658,061 529,346 general and administrative expenses

12. Finance costs

Group
2011 2010
Interest expense:
1,903 1,016 - bank borrowings
1 1 —finance leases
1,904 1,017

Company
2011 2010
130 (20)
130 (20)

Company
2011 2010
414,988 333,383
(31,783) (31,080}
34,164 29,377
37,470 30,139
1,168 4,918
18,329 21,077
(2,633) (2,812)
9,058 7,962
87,790 35,696
584 1,144
435 1,545
320 280
334 483
277 326
28,318 23,945
67,940 51,774
666,759 508,157

Company
2011 2010
1,508 1,016
1 1
1,509 1,017
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13. Income tax

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
(6,148) (5,144) Current income tax (5,592) (4,993)
531 147 Prior year income tax corrections 531 (6)
33 912 Deferred income tax (Note 18) (203) 923
(5,584) (4,085) Income tax benefit (expenses) (5,264) (4,076)

The tax on the Company’s and the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that
would arise when using the basic tax rate as follows:

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
33,237 28,646 Profit/(loss) before income tax 25,148 28,954

Tax calculated at a rate of 15% (2010: 15%) (Note

4,986 4,297 2.15) 3,772 4,343
2,292 410 Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 2,545 192

(83) (190) Income not subject to tax (73) (142)
(101) (98) Charity expenses deductible twice for tax purposes (28) (55)
(979) (340) Other expenses deductible for tax purposes (421) (268)
(531) 6 Prior year income tax adjustments (531) 6
5,584 4,085 Income tax expense/(income) 5,264 4,076

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes include representation expenses, write-offs, etc. Income not
subject to tax include interest on late payment and insurance benefits received.

The tax authorities have carried out a full-scope tax audit at the Company for the year 2001. The Tax
Authorities may at any time during 5 successive years after the end of the reporting tax year carry out the
inspection of book-keeping and accounting records and impose additional taxes or fines. The Company's
management is not aware of any circumstances that might resuit in a potential material liability in this
respect.

14. Earnings per share

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
27,653 24,561 Net profit (loss) attributable to shareholders 19,884 24,878
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
35,604 37,663 (thousand) 35,604 37,663
0.78 0.65 Basic earnings (deficit) per share (LTL per share) 0.56 0.66

The Group has no dilutive potential ordinary shares, therefore, the diluted earnings per share are the
same as basic earnings per share.
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15.

Property, plant and equipment

Company

At 1 January 2010

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2010
Opening net book amount
Additions

Disposals

Write-offs

Transfers from CIP

Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2010
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2011
Opening net book amount
Additions

Revaluation

Disposals

Write-offs

Transfers from CIP
Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2011
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

Vehicles

Plant and equipment & Construct-
Buildings machinery other ion in Total

progress
35,006 138,083 72,359 347 245,795
(12,108) (97,759) (56,342) - (166,209)
22,898 40,324 16,017 347 79,586
22,898 40,324 16,017 347 79,586
9 2,124 1,931 200 4,264
(114) (82) (93) - (289)
- (20) (10) - (30)

- 280 (280)
(1,211) (13,234) (6,557) - (21,002)
21,582 29,392 11,288 267 62,529
34,861 139,310 72,636 267 247,074
(13,279) (109,918) (61,348) - (184,545)
21,582 29,392 11,288 267 62,529
21,582 29,392 11,288 267 62,529
672 5,417 3,827 859 10,775
10,521 43,422 19,029 - 72,972
(132) (1) (345) - (478)
(20) (16) - (36)
634 (634) -
(1,255) (11,886) (4,976) - (18,117)
31,388 66,958 28,807 492 127,645
45,839 185,704 91,930 492 323,965
(14,451) (118,746) (63,123) - (196,320)
31,388 66,958 28,807 492 127,645

As at 31 December 2011, the Company's and the Group's property, plant and equipment was
revaluated. The fair value of assets was determined by an independent property valuer Vadasa UAB.
The valuation of assets was carried out using the comparative market price method. Gain on
revaluation of property, plant and equipment was disclosed in the tables of movements in property,
plant and equipment, and was recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Group Vehicles
Plantand equipment & Construct-
Buildings machinery other ionin Total
progress
At 1 January 2010
Cost 48,967 160,283 75,013 347 284,610
Accumulated depreciation (13,964) (104,561) (57,508) (176,033)
Net book amount 35,003 55,722 17,505 347 108,577
Year ended 31 December 2010
Opening net book amount 35,003 55,722 17,505 347 108,577
Additions 114 3,058 2,076 1,276 6,524
Disposals (114) (109) (117) (340)
Write-offs (20) (10} (30)
Transfers from CIP 862 (862)
Depreciation charge (1,848) (17,192) (7,215) (26,255)
Closing net book amount 33,155 42,321 12,239 761 88,476
At 31 December 2010
Cost 48,969 162,944 75,147 761 287,821
Accumulated depreciation (15,814) (120,623) (62,908) - (199,345)
Net book amount 33,155 42,321 12,239 761 88,476
Year ended 31 December 2011
Opening net book amount 33,155 42,321 12,239 761 88,476
Additions 601 6,841 4,227 4,756 16,425
Revaluation 19,273 49,896 19,261 - 88,430
Disposals (141) (1) (344) - (486)
Write-offs - (28) (16) - (44)
Transfers from CIP 1,068 3,496 297 (4,861) -
Depreciation charge (3,291) (15,409) (4,791) - (23,491)
Closing net book amount 50,665 87,116 30,873 656 169,310
At 31 December 2011
Cost 69,552 220,028 95,092 656 385,328
Accumulated depreciation (18,887) (132,912) (64,219) - (216,018)
Net book amount 50,665 87,116 30,873 656 169,310

As at 31 December 2011, certain Company’s and Groups property, plant and equipment with a
carrying value of LTL 47,471 thousand and LTL 67,970 thousand respectively (31 December 2010:
LTL 58,051 thousand) was pledged as security for bank borrowings.

Depreciation expenses of property plant and equipment are included in selling and marketing
expenses, general and administrative expenses and cost of sales in the income statement, as well
as in work in progress and finished goods in the balance sheet.
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16.  Intangible assets
Company Computer software
At 1 January 2010
Cost : 2,043
Accumulated amortisation (1,643)
Net book amount 400
Year ended 31 December 2010
Opening net book amount 400
Additions 239
Amortisation charge (75)
Closing net book amount 564
At 31 December 2010
Cost 2,282
Accumulated amortisation (1,718)
Net book amount 564
Year ended 31 December 2011
Opening net book amount 564
Additions 72
Amortisation charge (212)
Closing net book amount 424
At 31 December 2011
Cost 2,363
Accumulated amortisation (1,939)
Net book amount 424
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Group Contractual client Computer Total
relationship software

At 1 January 2010

Cost 6,787 2,323 9,110

Accumulated amortisation (6,787) (1,933) (8,720)

Net book amount - 390 390

Year ended 31 December 2010

Opening net book amount - 390 390
Additions - 239 239
Amortisation charge - (137) (187)
Closing net book amount - 492 492

At 31 December 2010

Cost - 2,562 2,562
Accumulated amortisation - (2,070) (2,070)
Net book amount - 492 492

Year ended 31 December 2011

Opening net book amount - 492 492
Additions - 73 73
Acquisition of non-controlling 904 - 904
interest in subsidiaries

Amortisation charge - (139) (139)
Closing net book amount 904 426 1,330

At 31 December 2011

Cost 904 2,635 3,639
Accumulated amortisation - (2,209) (2,209)
Net book amount 904 426 1,330

Amortisation expenses of computer software and other intangible assets are included
in general and administrative expenses in the income statement.
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17.

18.

Investments

The Company's investments in subsidiaries and joint venture are accounted for at cost less impairment
in the stand-alone financial statements.

At 31 December 2009 28,304
Acquisition of associates 353
Impairment loss (1,000)
Disposal of subsidiary (170)
At 31 December 2010 27,487
Acquisition of non-controlling interest in subsidiaries 1,438
Liquidation of subsidiary (584)
At 31 December 2010 28,341

The Company holds 50% of shares in a joint venture Pieno Upés UAB with total assets amounting to
LTL 2,362 thousand (2010: LTL 2,267 thousand), total liabilities amounting to LTL 1,077 thousand
(2010: LTL 1,011 thousand), revenue amounting to LTL 14,344 thousand (2010: LTL 12,236
thousand) and net profit amounting to LTL 228 thousand (2010: LTL 331 thousand).

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
Deferred income tax assets:
479 479 — to be recovered after more than 12 479 479
months
615 818 - to be recovered within 12 months 615 818
1,094 1297 1,094 1,297
Deferred income tax liabilities:
(13,425) (257) - to be settled after more than 12 months - -
- (139) —to be settled within 12 months (10,946) -
(13,425) (396) (10,946) -
(12,331) (901) Net deferred income tax assets (9,852) 1,297

The gross movement in deferred income tax assets was as follows:

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
901 (11) At beginning of the year 1,297 374
33 912 Recognised in the income statement (203) 923
(Note 13)
(13 265) - Recognised in the statement of (10,946) -
comprehensive income
(12 331) 901 At end of the year (9,852) 1,297

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the period, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction is as follows:
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Company
Deferred income tax assets Inventory net Amortised Tax Bonuses Total
realisable value cost of losses and
adjustment loans carried vacation
granted forward reserve
At 1 January 2010 60 314 - - 374
Recognised in the income (60) 165 - 818 923
statement
At 31 December 2010 - 479 - 818 1,297
Recognised in the income 253 - - (456) (203)
statement
At 31 December 2011 253 479 - 362 1,094
Revaluation of Total
Deferred income tax property, plant
liabilities and equipment
At 1 January 2010 - -
Recognised in the - -
income statement
At 31 December 2010 - -
Recognised in the -
income statement
Recognised in other (10,946) (10,946)
comprehensive income
At 31 December 2011 (10,946) (10,946)
Group
Deferred income tax assets Inventory net  Amortised Tax losses Bonuses and Total
realisable cost of carried vacation
value loans forward reserve
adjustment granted
At 1 January 2010 60 314 - 374
Recognised in the income (80) 165 818 923
statement
At 31 December 2010 - 479 818 1,297
Recognised in the income 253 - - (4586) (203)
statement
At 31 December 2011 253 479 - 362 1,094
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Accelerated Revaluation Total
tax of property,

Deferred income tax depreciation plant and
liabilities equipment
At 1 January 2010 (385) - (385)
Recognised in the income (11) - (11)
statement
At 31 December 2010 (396) - (396)
Recognised in the income 236 - 236
statement
Recognised in other - (13,265) (13,265)
comprehensive income
At 31 December 2011 (160) (13,265) (13,425)

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities were calculated using a tax rate of
15% (2010: 15%) enacted by the balance sheet date and expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or deferred income tax liability is settled.

19. Loans granted

Group
2011 2010
569 8,143 Long-term loans to farmers
7,406 404 Long-term loans to employees
4,089 7,515 Other long-term loans
Less: provision for impairment of loans
(3,096) (3,003) receivable
8,968 13,059 Long-term loans, net
13,365 3,762 Current portion of loans to farmers
328 329 Current portion of loans to employees
39,797 31,950 Other short-term loans granted
Less: provision for impairment of loans
- (709) receivable
Current portion of long-term loans and short-
53,490 35,332 term loans

Company
2011 2010
684 8,143
7,291 404
5,804 6,023
(3,096) (3,003)
10,683 11,567
12,460 3,730
114 105
37,862 27,393
- (709)
50,436 30,519

Loans to farmers were granted with repayment terms ranging from 2 months to 10 years. The annual
interest rate ranges from 0 to 10 per cent. Effective interest rate was 9.37 per cent (2010: 10.92 per

cent).

Long-term loans to employees were granted with repayment terms ranging from 1 to 25 years. The
loans are interest free. Effective interest rate was 9.34 per cent (2010: 12.97 per cent).

As at 31 December 2011, the fair value of loans granted to employees amounted to LTL 615
thousand (2010: LTL 360 thousand). As at 31 December 2011, the fair value of loans granted to

farmers amounted to LTL 16,212 thousand (2010: LTL 10,718 thousand).
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The information of loans receivable past due as at 31 December is provided in the table below:

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
59,716 46,226 Loans granted not past due 58,377 39,921
3,369 1,955 Loans granted past due but not impaired 3,369 1,955
2,469 3,922 Impaired loans granted 2,469 3,922
65,554 52,108 Gross value of loans granted 64,215 45,798
(3,096) (3,712) impairment of amounts uncollectible (3,096) (3,712)
62,458 48,391 Net amount 61,119 42,086
20. Inventories
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
7,002 7,074 Raw materials 2,710 3,344
17,752 13,915 Work in progress 17,291 13,458
68,335 38,748 Finished products 66,342 36,5612
3,569 2,849 Other inventories 2,688 2,245
96,658 62,586 Total inventories at cost 89,031 55,558
(1,690) - Less: inventory write-down to net
realizable value (1,690) -
94,968 62,586 Total inventories 87,341 55,559

As at 31 December 2011, inventories with cost of LTL 25,000 thousand (31 December 2010: LTL

25,000 thousand) were pledged as security for bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2011, the Company did not hold any inventories with third parties.

21. Trade and other receivables

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010
Non-current receivables

- 3,229 Other receivables - 3,229

Current receivables

93,575 83,872 Trade receivables 85,793 86,000

4,079 3,601 VAT receivable 3,583 2,456

1,311 2,608 Advance payments and deferred expenses 1,090 1,750

98,965 90,081 90,466 90,206

As at 31 December 2011, trade receivables amounting to LTL 27,868 thousand (31 December 2010:

LTL 29,572 thousand) were pledged as security for bank borrowings.
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The information on receivables past due as at 31 December is provided in the table below:

Group
2011 2010
76,389 74,625
17,186 9,247
5,766 5,331
99,341 89,203
(5,766) (5,331)
93,575 83,872

Trade receivable neither past due nor impaired
Trade receivable past due but not impaired

Impairment of amounts uncollectible
Gross value

Impairment charge

Net value of loans granted

Company
2011 2010
71,454 77,822
14,339 8,178
5,766 5,331
91,559 91,331
(5,766) (5,331)
85,793 86,000

The Group received no collaterals for impaired amounts receivable. As at 31 December 2011, the
Company's trade receivables amounting to LTL 17,144 thousand (31 December 2010: LTL 22,970
thousand ) from its subsidiary Rokiskio Pienas UAB were neither past due nor impaired.

Trade receivables that are less than 360 days past due are not considered impaired if the Group does not
possess other negative information about the solvency status of customers. The ageing analysis of trade

receivables past due but not impaired as at 31 December is as follows:

Group
2011 2010
10,507 8,864
2,868 280
3,750 76
61 27
17,186 9,247

Up to 30 days

31 to 60 days

61 to 180 days
More than 181 days

22. Cash and cash equivalents

Group
At 31 December
2011 2010
6,602 16,749
3,974 2,775
10,576 19,524

Short-term deposits
Cash at bank and in hand

Company

2011 2010

8,652 7,827

1,909 270

3,717 75

61 6

14,339 8,178

Company
At 31 December

2011 2010
6,582 16,699
1,712 1,203
8,294 17,902

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, cash in bank accounts and future cash inflows into these
accounts were pledged as security for bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2011, cash balances in
the pledged accounts amounted to LTL 7,605 thousand (31 December 2010: LTL 7,163 thousand).

For the purposes of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise as follows:

Group
At 31 December
2011 2010
6,602 16,749
3,974 2,776
(12,114) (14,926)
(1,538) 4,599

Short-term deposits
Cash at bank and in hand
Bank overdrafts (Note 26)

Company
At 31 December
2011 2010
6,582 16,699
1,712 1,203
(12,114) (14,926)
(3,820) 2,976
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23.

24,

25.

Share capital

As at 31 December 2011, the share capital was divided into 35,867,970 (31 December 2010: LTL
38,444,894) ordinary registered shares with par value of LTL 1 each. All the shares are fully paid.

Treasury shares

2011 2010
Number Amount Number Amount
At beginning of the year 2,576,924 (11,478) - -
Treasury shares acquired 802,094 (3,868) 2,576,924 (11,478)
Reduction of share capital 2,676,924 11,478 - -
802,094 (3,868) 2,576,924 (11,478)

On 23 December 2010, a decision was passed at the General Shareholders Meeting to reduce the
authorised share capital of RokiSkio Siiris AB by LTL 2,576,924 (two million, five hundred and
seventy-six thousand, nine hundred and twenty-four litas) through cancellation of 2,576,924 (two
million, five hundred and seventy-six thousand, nine hundred and twenty-four) ordinary registered
shares with par value of LTL 1 (one litas) each.

The Company is not entitled to exercise property and non-property rights in respect of treasury
shares acquired as stipulated in the Lithuanian Law on Companies.

Following the cancellation of treasury shares acquired, the authorised share capital of Rokiskio
Saris AB amounts to LTL 35,867,970 (thirty-five million, eight hundred and sixty-seven thousand,
nine hundred and seventy litas) divided into 35,867,970 (thirty-five million, eight hundred and sixty-
seven thousand, nine hundred and seventy litas) ordinary registered shares with par value of LTL 1
(one litas) each.

The newly revised Articles of Association in relation to the reduction of the share capital were
registered with the Register of Legal Entities on 8 March 2011.

Other reserves and reserve for acquisition of treasury shares

Other reserves

Non-distributable reserves of LTL 3,593 thousand can only be used to increase the share capital
and non-distributable reserves of LTL 3,840 thousand (legal reserve) can only be used to cover
future operating losses, if any. Remaining reserve of LTL 62,026 thousand relates to revaluation of
property plant and equipment (described below).

Reserve for acquisition of treasury shares

During the ordinary general meeting of shareholders of Rokiskio Siris AB held on 29 April 2011 a
decision was passed On the Formation of the Reserve for Acquisition of Treasury Shares.

The total amount of the reserve for the acquisition of treasury shares including the previously
formed reserve for acquisition of treasury shares is LTL 40,287 thousand.

Revaluation reserve
Revaluation reserve represents an increase in the value of property, plant and equipment as a

result of its revaluation. This reserve may not be used to cover losses. Movements in revaluation
reserve are given in the table below:
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Company Revaluation Deferred  Net of deferred
reserve income tax income tax

At 31 December 2010 - -

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 72,972 (10,946) 62,026
At 31 December 2011 72,972 (10,946) 62,026
Group Revaluation Deferred Net of deferred

reserve income tax income tax

At 31 December 2010 - -
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 88,430 (13,265) 75,165
At 31 December 2011 88,430 {13,265) 75,165

26. Borrowings

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
Current
59,5657 43,997 Current bank borrowings 59,557 43,997
12,114 14,926 Bank overdrafts 12,114 14,926
36 50 Finance lease liabilities 36 50
71,707 58,973 71,707 58,973

Non-current
- 103 Non-current bank borrowings - -
- - Finance lease liabilities - -
103 -
71,707 59,076 Total borrowings 71,707 58,973

The bank borrowings are secured over certain property plant and equipment (Note 15), inventories
(Note 20), trade receivables (Note 21), cash in certain bank accounts (Note 22).

Weighted average interest rates effective as at 31 December (per cent) were as follows:

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
2.38 2.56 Current bank borrowings 2.38 2.52
1.78 2.38 Bank overdrafts 1.73 2.38

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings (excluding finance lease liabilities) are
denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
59,593 44,047 EUR 59,593 44,047
12,114 14,926 LTL 12,114 14,926
71,707 58,973 71,707 58,973

Fair value of borrowings approximates their carrying values due to the fact that interest rate on
borrowings is subject to repricing on a daily, monthly or quarterly basis.
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27.

28.

29.

As at 31 December 2011, according to the agreement concluded with the banks, the balances of
credit lines and overdrafts not withdrawn by the Company and the Group amounted to LTL 51,817
thousand and 51,817 thousand, respectively (2010: LTL 56,798 thousand and LTL 57,818 thousand,
respectively).

The Group is not in breach of borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) established.

Deferred income

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
7,795 10,279 Government grants at beginning of year 5,330 7,789
3,302 842 New grants received 1,862 362
(3,156) (3,326)  Amoriisation of deferred income to match (°,530) (2,821)
related depreciation
7,941 7,795 4,662 5,330
(4,683) (4,989) Less: non-current portion (2,030) (3,031)
3,258 2,806 Current portion 2,632 2,299

Deferred government grant is related to acquisition of property, plant and equipment using the
European Union funds and the funds of the Lithuanian Government under the SAPARD and other
programmes. The Company has no obligation to repay or otherwise refund the grants received
unless it breaches the contractual provisions contained in the agreements concluded with the
grantors.

Trade and other payables

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
49,370 42,498 Trade payables 54,772 45,887
4,356 3,817 Salaries, social security and taxes 2,806 2,352
1,420 2,014 Other payables 874 612
3,422 6,611 Bonuses and vacation reserve 3,315 6,611
58,568 54,940 61,767 55,462

As at 31 December 2011, trade payables to Rokiskio Pienas UAB amounted to LTL 12,333 thousand
(31 December 2010: LTL 8,686 thousand).

Provisions

In March 2008, the Competition Council, following its operational research of the Company and other
companies operating in the milk sector, imposed a fine of LTL 824 thousand on the Company. In
respect to this fine the Company’s management established a provision. For the purpose of the
income statement for the year ended 31 December 2008, the above-mention amount was included in
administrative expenses. In 2011, based on the updated resolution of the Competition Council, the fine
was increased up to LTL 1,650 thousand. The Company appealed against this resolution and on 26
January 2012 Vilnius Regional Administrative Court ruled to meet the Company's complaint in full. The
latter Court's ruling was appealed against to the Lithuanian Supreme Administrative Court and its final
outcome is not clear yet.
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30.

31.

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
3,920 4,799 Guarantees issued by the bank to third parties on 3,920 4,799

behalf of the Group
- - Guarantees issued by the Group on behalf of - -
farmers and agricultural companies

3,920 4,799 3,920 4,799

The Group has issued these guarantees in the ordinary course of business and anticipates that no
material liabilities will arise.

Capital expenditure commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for property, plant and equipment at the balance sheet date but not
recognised in the financial statements amounted to LTL 657 thousand (31 December 2010: LTL 2,437
thousand).

Operating lease commitments — where the Group is the lessee

The Group leases passenger cars and premises under operating lease agreements.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
16 250 Not later than 1 year 16 250
- - Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - -
16 250 16 250

Available-for-sale financial assets

As at 31 December 2011, available-for-sale debt securities of the Company and the Group represented
bonds issued by the Lithuanian Government amounting to LTL 6,690 thousand (31 December 2010: LTL
6,886 thousand). Fair value was estimated with reference to quoted prices in active markets for identical

assets.

Initial yields and maturities of debt securities are as follows:

Yield Maturity

Securities of the Lithuanian Government 4.50%-5.25% 2017.09.22
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32. Cash generated from operations

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash generated from operations:

Group
At 31 December

2011 2010
33,237 28,646
23,491 26,255
139 137
44 30
(142) 51
1,903 1,016
(2,648) (3,930)
1,690 -
190 170
524 1,613
1,455
(1,604) (5,450)

(534)
(3,259) (3,326)
(9,937) (23,918)
(34,071) (32,363)
5,679 11,692
14,702 2,077

Company
At 31 December
2011 2010

Net profit (loss) before income tax 25,148 28,954
Adjustments for:
—  depreciation (Note 15) 18,117 21,002
— amortisation and impairment charge (Note 16) 212 75
- write-off of property, plant and equipment and intangible

assets (Notes 15 and 16) 36 30
— loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (130) 20

(Note 10)
— interest expense (Note 12) 1,509 1,016
— interest income (Note 8) (2,316) (3,581)
-~ write-offs of inventories 1,690 -
—  impairment of investments into subsidiaries (Note 17) 780 1,144
—  impairment of doubtful receivables and write-offs of

bad receivables (Note 21) 524 90
—  Impairment and write-offs of loans granted to farmers

(Note 19) - 1,455
— amortised cost of loans granted - -
—~ accrual for vacation reserve and bonus (1,604) (5,450)
— non-controlling interests - -
-~ amortisation of government grants received (Note 27) (2,633) (2,821)
Changes in working capital:
— amounts receivable and prepayments (2,406) (37,0186)
— inventories (33,474) (31,081)
— amounts payable 7,585 16,908
Net cash generated from operations 13,038 (9,256)

In the statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise:

2011 2010
486 340
142 (51)
628 289

2011 2010
Net book amount (Note 15) 477 289
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (Note 130 (20)
10)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 607 269
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33.

Related-party transactions

The Group is controlled by Pieno Pramonés Investicijy Valdymas UAB (incorporated in Lithuania) and
Mr. A Trumpa (the Company's Director), which together own 58.31 per cent (2010: 51.76 per cent) of
the Company’s share capital and 59.65 per cent (2010: 55.48 per cent) of voting rights. (802,094
treasury shares acquired by the Company do not have voting rights). Pieno Pramonés Investicijy
Valdymas UAB is controlled by Mr. A.-Trumpa (through the majority of shareholding). The remaining
41.69 per cent of the Company's share capital are widely held. The Company’s related parties, such
as the Company’'s Board, PPIV, board, management of the Company or the Group and their close
family members, together hold 66.41 per cent (2010: 61.43 per cent) of the Company’s shares with
voting rights.

Pieno Pramonés Investicijy Valdymas UAB, the members of the Board and Senior Management and
their close family members are treated as related parties.

Certain cooperative societies engaged in the production of milk are treated as related parties of the
Company through close family relationships with members of the Senior Management and because
certain of the Company’s employees have significant influence over day-to-day activities of these
societies.

Group Company
At 31 December At 31 December
2011 2010 2011 2010

(i) The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

13,688 22,688 Purchase of raw milk from other related parties 85,298 78,106
20 - Purchase of non-current assets 280 38

- - Purchase of inventory 86,747 42,543
5,449 3,707 Purchases of services 10,729 10,901
- Purchase of consulting services 713 284

5 1,318 Sales of transportation services to other related parties 21,903 20,845
1,067 869 Sales of production and other inventories 205,839 162,163
- - Sale of non-current assets - 73

81 320 Interest charges on credit facility 81 320
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(i) Year-end balances arising from transactions with related parties:

2011

181

9,338

972

2010

191 Non-interest bearing loans granted to Senior
Management (and their families)
Credit facility granted to Pieno Pramonés Investicijy
10,856 Valdymas UAB
- Loan granted to Jekabpils Piena Kombinats SIA
1,422 Trade payables to other related parties
- Trade receivables from other related parties

(iii) Compensation of key management

2011 2010
676 674 Salaries
1,168 4,920 Bonuses
190 192 Social security contributions
2,034 5,786

Key management includes 9 (2010: 3) members of the Board and Senior Management.

34. Events after the end of the reporting period

2011 2010
181 191
9,338 10,856
5,650 1,501
17,910 13,803
17,144 22,970
201 2010
615 674
1,168 4,920
171 192
1,954 5,786

On 13 February 2012, amendment to overdraft agreement was signed with the bank in relation to
extension of the repayment term for overdraft limit of LTL 2 million until 31 January 2013 and
extension of the agreement for credit limit of EUR 18 million until 14 February 2013. The total amount
of credit limit is equal to LTL 64,150 thousand no amendments to interest rate established were

made.

As at 7 March 2012 the Company has sold its debt securities for the amount of LTL 7,059 thousand.
In the Company's and the Group's balance sheet as at 31 December 2011, these securities were
accounted for within available-for-sale financial assets.

47



-

CONSOLIDATEDANNUAL
REPORT b

2011

ROKISKIS MARCH 2012




T @ Consolidated audited annual report for the yead 2(i1AB"ROKISKIO STURIS" 2

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. REPORTING TERM OF THE PREPARED REPORT . o e bt e e s b e e b e be et e s e s b e s eae s eaa e s naeena e e e e anee e 3
2. KEY INFORMATION OF THE ISSUER: ... oo st e et b e e et b e e aa e et e e R b e e b e e b e s ehe e s he e e e e e Re e e b e e e aeeeae e ebe e e naeeaeantenereennen 3
3. INFORMATION ON THE ISSUER'S DAUGHTER ENTERPRISHS SUBSIDIARIES ........c.ccoiiiiiiiiii it et 3
4. CHARACTERIZATION OF THE ISSUER'S BASIC BUSINESS........cciiiiiiiiiiiiti ittt a s bbb s et be et 4
5. CONTRACTS WITH FINANCIAL BROKERS ....... oo ctettcte ittt et h et h et e a0 4o b e b s b e S ab e e a e e b e b e bR e e as e b e e bbb e e et st e et e e et en bt 5
6. TRADE ON ISSUER'S SECURITIES BY STOCK EXCHANMEEGYHER ORGANISED MARKETS .......cooiiiiiiirini it 5
7. AUTHORIZED CAPITAL OF THE ISSUER:.

8. LIMITATION ON TRANSFERENCE OF SECURITIES:

9. SHAREHOLDERS. .....ooiiiiiiiiititi it mmmn ettt bt h et a e b4 s o4 b e b st e e s e o4 e h e b oAb e h e b e ea b e Re e S 4 e e b e h s oA e e R e SR LR d oA R b b e e RE RS b e b e R e R s b et 6
10. SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS ... .ottt bt h e h et h b4 o8 e oA s e ab e s e e 4 s e hs e R e e b e oAb e R s oA e e e b e b e d e b e e hs e b b e ab et e hs e b e b e s e b e e s s en b ens 6
11. SHAREHOLDERS WITH SPECIAL CONTROL RIGHTS ANBIFEPTION OF THE RIGHTS.......cciiiiiiiii e 7
12. OVERALL LIMITATIONS OF VOTING RIGHTS. ..ottt st h et h b bbb b a e b b e s b b e b e be st e b e bt e ea e a e e 7
13. OVERALL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN SHAREHOLDERS . cmeun vttt b bbb b naeare e 7
14. EMPLOYEES

15. PROCEDURE FOR AMENDMENTS OF THE ARTICLES OFOA3ISTION

16. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES AND SIGNIRICAGREEMENTS

17. KEY CHARACTERISTICS OF THE SECURITIES LAUNCHEBO'HE PUBLIC TRADING: ..ottt s e 11
18. SECURITIES LISTED ON THE OFFICIAL TRADING LIST.......ciitiiiiiiiiiitiit i e bbbt b ettt sbn et b e 11
19. CAPITALISATION OF SECURITIES. ..ot eteitettettitiats ettt shs st 4 b e b b e eh s 0 s e 4s e 10 e he e e b e b e o4 0 e b e ek b e s e e RseasE b e h e b e e h s e b e e b e e b e bbaa e b e e s saeebaeas e e aens 12
INDICES OF THE BALTIC MARKETS ...ttt bbb 440 s e h e b e b e o4 0 e R e e R e R e e Rs e Ad b e d e b e h s e b e e b e b e Rb e b b ea e saeebeeas e aens 14
20. THE GROUP'S AND PARENT COMPANY AUDITED CONS@®@IED FINANCIAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR 2011....

21. INFORMATION ON PURCHASE OF ISSUER'S OWN SHARES........coiiiiiiiiiii it bbb e eaa s 15
22. LEGAL GROUNDS OF THE ISSUER'S PERFORMANCE ........c.iiiiitiiiiiii ittt b e s bbb b et s bbb saeene s 15
23. BELONGING TO THE ASSOCIATED ORGANIZATIONS. ..ottt bt bbb a e eb e bbbt b b reese e e b e ans 15
24. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUER'S HISTORY......ciiiiiiiiiiii ittt h bbb h e b e as s b e e b s b e beebe e e 15
25. PRODUCTION, DESCRIPTION OF PRODUCTION CAPACSTIEND IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW PRODUCTS ......ccociiiiiiiiiiiciiccc v 18
26. SALES AND MARKETING ..ottt ettt ettt b be bt s e b e b b e e 1 e e b e e b s o0 e A0 oAb e R s e h e e b e ea s e R e e h e A b oA s oAb e b e o4 e b e e R s e b e e b e e b e R s e b e e b e s b ene e b e e ts s et e e e nasnreas 21
27. PURCHASE OF RAW MATERIAL .....ooiiiiitietii ettt et b e e ht e e a4 e a e h e e o h e e de e h e e e b ae e aeeabe e b e e b e e e e ehe e e he e e Rt e eb e e e nae s aenebeeebeeesaeanaesnaenenen 24
28. RISK FACTORS RELATED WITH THE ISSUER'S PERFOMRBEA ..........ooitiiiiiiiiiiie ettt ieemms et st saa e b e s e saa e e e e e sae e nae e ae e e s e beeee e sae 24
29. KEY ASPECTS OF FORMATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINKWNCACCOUNTING RELATED WITH THE SYSTEMS OF INTERNKAINTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT ....

30. INFORMATION ABOUT THE AUTHORIZATION GIVEN BYETBOARD MEMBERS

31. KEY RATIOS OF THE COMPANY PERFORMANCE, THEIRAMICS .......c.coiiiiiiiiiiiii i immem et b st b et b b ane s 29
32. INVESTMENT PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED DURING THE LASTSCAL YEARS: ......c..ciiiiiiiiiiii ettt 30
33. FUTURE PLANS, FORECASTS AND INVESTMENTS ENVHBAIB 2012.......c.cciiiiiiiiiiiiiicie ittt b et b ettt ane s 32
34, DIVIDENDS PAID .....ouiiiiiiiiiii ittt ettt b e s b b 4o bR o1 s b b e 4 e e b e ek s e 4o 0 oAb e R s e b e b e SR b e R e e R s oL LSRR h R e AR R e b R R e et s bbb ne s 33
35. MANAGEMENT BODIES OF THE ISSUER....... oottt bbbk b h e b R e s b e s e b b e b e bseh e b e b et e e eeeneebe et ene s 33
36. COMMITTEES FORMED IN THE COMPANY ..

37. MANAGEMENT BODIES .......cooiiiiiiitiie ettt h e b b d e h b bR e e b e e b s e e 0o A0 e R b e d oo b e e b s e R e e d e Rt oA d oAb e b e 4o b e e R s e b e e b e e b e R s e b e e b eh b eneebaets s e e et e nasnaeas 35
38. MEMBERS OF COLLEGIAL BODIES ........cuttimmeemiitie ittt st s et b e b o4 4o b4 ek e b e b s s e R0 e b e e he e 0 e b e R b e s b e b b e s s e b e e b b e an s e b e b s b b e e ns 36
39. INFORMATION ON OBSERVANCE OF THE COMPANY MABMENT CODEX. ......coiiiiiiiiiiitieites oo ettt na et eneesas e enae s saeeae s e ene e 39
40. INFORMATION ON THE PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED DATA.......i ottt ettt sh e e saa e et e e st e s ea e e sae s s ae e e be e b eeereeeaeeeateamae et 40
41. INFORMATION ON THE PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED DATA ARTEHE END OF FISCAL YEAR .........coiitii ettt sae st 44
42. INFORMATION ON AUDIT ...ttt ettt e e e et e e a e b e e e b e e e e e a0 e e 4o e ae e e s e e s hs e eae e e Re e e oae e de e AR e e e b e et e s ehs e e as e e b e e R e e e meesas e eneeehe e e naeentesnsenereees 44

43.

PERFORMANCE STRATEGY AND EVALUATED CHANGESIBRINEAREST FISCAL YEAR ......coiiiiiii ettt 44



T @ Consolidated audited annual report for the yead 2(i1AB"ROKISKIO SURIS" 3

1. Reporting term of the prepared report.

The consolidated annual report is prepared foyéae 2011.

2. Key information of the issuer:

Name of the issuer: Joint stock company "Rokiskidss.

Legal base: Joint Stock Company.

Address — Pramones str. 3, LT 42150 Rokiskis, Répof Lithuania.
Telephone: +370 458 55 200, fax +370 458 55 300.

E-mail addresgiokiskio.suris@rokiskio.com

Website:.www.rokiskio.com

Registered in on 2BFebruary 1992 by the Authorities of Rokiskis regio
Re-registered in on #8November 1995 by the Ministry of Economy of thepRllic of
Lithuania.

Company code 173057512.

Manager of registry of legal entities — State conypdregistru centras”.

The authorized capital of AB "Rokiskio suris” egsiéb LTL 35 867 970.

There are 35 867 970 shares. Nominal value peegtarals to LTL 1 (one litas).

3. Information on the issuer's daughter enterprises ad subsidiaries

As at 3f' December 2011, the consolidated group (hereingtitetGroup”) consists of the Parent
Company AB “Rokiskio suris®, two branches, four sigiaries and one joint venture. The
following tables introduce the subsidiaries anchbhes:

Actively performing as Share of the group (%)
at 31st December 2011 as at 31st December
2011
Branches 2011 2010 Subsidiaries 2011 2010
Utenos pienas Yes Yes UAB ,Rokiskio pienas* 100,00 100,00
Ukmergss pienire | Yes Yes PK ,Zalmarg" 100,00 100,00
UAB ,Skirpstas* - 100,00
SIA Jekabpils piena kombinats, 100,00 50,05
SIA Kaunata* 60,00 60,00

Joint venture
UAB ,Pieno ugs" 50,00 50,00

* The subsidiaries are not consolidated with theuprdue to their insignificance.
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Subsidiaries of AB “RokiSkio siris”:

UAB ,Rokiskio pienas“ legal address: Pramdeng. 8, LT - 28216 Utena. Company code:
300561844. AB ,Rokiskio wis" is its founder and the only shareholder havifd per cent of
shares.

UAB “Skirpstas” legal address: Mindaugo g.38, LTe82 RadviliSkis. Company code: 171344353.
Dairy cooperative ,Zalmakj legal address: Kalnalaukio g.1, Sirvintos. Compaoode:
178301073.

Latvian company SIA Jekabpils piena kombinats (camypcode 45402008851, legal address:
Akmenu iela 1, Jekabpils, Latvija LV-5201).

SIA ,Kaunata“ was acquired on May %,12010. The company is not consolidated in therfiie
account of the Group of AB ,Rokiskiaigs” due to its insignificance, furthemore SIA Kaa is
not directly subordinate to AB ,Rokiski@iss” (there are no transactions between the conggni

Co-controlled company:

UAB ,Pieno ugs", legal address: Saélty g. 9, Kaunas. Company code: 135027862.

Branches of AB “RokiSkio giris”:

AB ,Rokiskio giris* branch Utenos pienas (Company code: 110856P#dmonrs g. 8, LT-
28216 Utena);

AB ,Rokiskio siris* branch Ukmergs pienire (Company code: 182848454, Kauno g. 51, LT-
20119, Ukmerg).

4. Characterization of the issuer's basic business.

Basic business of the group of “RokiSkitris":
e Dairying and cheese production (EVRK 10.51);

Basic business of AB ,Rokiskioiss” is production and sales of fermented cheedsyw
products, and skim milk powder.

Daughter enterprises:

Basic business of UAB ,RokiSkio pienas* productiamd sales of fresh dairy products (fluid milk,
kefir, sour milk, butter, curds, fresh cheese, swaam, chocolate coated curds dessert, desserts).
Basic business of UAB “Skirpstas” is purchase of railk.

Basic business of KB ,Zalmaétjis purchase of raw milk.

Basic business of SIA Jekabpils piena kombinatsodyrction of fermented cheese and purchase of
raw milk.

Basic business of SIA Kaunata — purchase of raw art transportation.

Co-controlled company:
Basic business of UAB ,Pieno &g’ is purchase of raw milk.
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Branches of AB “Rokiskio diris":
Basic business of AB ,RokiSkicigs" branches Utenos pienas and Uknésrgieniré is purchase
of raw milk.

5. Contracts with financial brokers

On 24" December 2003, AB ,Rokiskionds* made a contract with UAB FM,Baltijos
vertybiniai popieriai“ (Gedimino pr.60, Vilnius) garding administration of shareholders of AB
,Rokiskio siris*. On 18" January 2007, the financial company changed itsenmto UAB FM
,Orion securities” (A.Tumno str. 4 , LT-01109 Vilnius).

6. Trade on issuer's securities by stock exchangadother organised markets

35 867 970 ordinary registered shares of AB “Raki&kris”. Nominal value per share LTL
1 (one litas). (VVPB symbol RSULL; ISIN code — LTW@100372). Total nominal value equals to
LTL 35 867 970.

AB "Rokiskio giris” shares are traded on Vilnius Stock ExchangeSRAQ OMX Vilnius
are the shares are listed on the Official Tradiigg. (The Company was included on the trading lists
on 25" July 1995.

The Company’s shares are traded on the comparatilex of Baltic countries in OMX
Baltic Benchmark.

As from 22 November 2010, trade by the Company’s shares tenma euros on Stock
Exchange NASDAQ OMX Vilnius.

7. Authorized capital of the issuer:

As at 3%' December 2011, the Authorized capital of AB “R&kaSsiiris":

Type of shares Number of Nominal value, Total nominal Share of
shares LTL value, LTL authorized
capital (%)
Ordinary registered 35 867 970 1 35867 970 100,00
shares

All shares of AB ,Rokiskio &ris" are paid-up, and they are not subject to amjtations of
transference.

8. Limitation on transference of securities:

There are no limitations to be applied to the blotkhares or any regulations according to
which an agreement with the company or other owoksgcurities is required.
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9. Shareholders.

Total number of shareholders (as at 31.12.2011y5X%shareholders.

The shareholders having or owning over 5 percent dhe issuer’s authorized capital (as

at 31.12.2011):

Name, surname
Name of company

UAB "Pieno pramonés
investicijy valdymas”

Antanas Trumpa
Skandinaviska
Enskilda

Banken AB clients

Swedbank clients

AB ,Rokiskio siris”

Address
Number of
shares

Pramons g. 3, 13937 173
Rokiskis
Lietuva
Sod; 41a, Rokiskis | 6 978 370
Lietuva
Sergels Torg 2, 106/ 3 303 047
Stockholm, Sweden
Liivalaia 8, 2514 108
Tallinn
Estonia
Pramoss g.3, 802 094

Rokiskis, Lietuva

10. Shareholders’ rights

Proprietary rights

Share of | Share
the of
capital votes
% %
38,86 39,75

19,46 | 19,90

9,21 9,42
7,01 7,17

2,24 -

Shareholders have the following non-economic rights

1) to attend the general meetings of shareholders;
2) to make advance inquiries addressed to the comiparggards with the items on the

agenda of general meeting of shareholders;

With associated

persons
Share of | Share of
the votes %
capital %
64,92 66,41
64,92 66,41

3) based on the rights provided with the shares tee \at the general meetings of
shareholders;

4) according with Part 1 of Article 18 of the Law dretJoint Stock Companies to obtain
information on the company’s operations;

5) to address the court requesting to bring an adfatamages against the company if the
damage was caused by noncompliance or inadequatpliaace with duties of the
company manager and board of directors as statéuebyaw on Joint Stock Companies
of the Republic of Lithuania or other laws, as vadithe Articles of Association and or
in any other cases as stated by the Lithuanian Laws
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6) other non-economic rights established by the Litiam Laws.

Shareholders have the following property rights

1) to receive a certain portion of the Company’s prfividend);

2) to receive a certain portion of the company’s fumdien its authorized capital is decreased
in order to pay out the fund to shareholders;

3) to receive shares without payment if the authoresgaltal is increased from the funds of the
Company;

4) to have priority in acquiring the newly issued €saor convertible bonds of the Company
unless the General Meeting of the Shareholdersvesto waive such right complying with
the applicable Law;

5) to lend to the Company as determined by the LawshefRepublic of Lithuania, the
company however cannot mortgage its assets wheowaog from shareholders. When the
company borrows from shareholders the interestaaexceed the average interest rate of
the local commercial banks on the day of contractim this cae the company and
shareholders must not agree regarding the higkefanterest;

6) to receive a portion of assets of the Companyguidiation;

7) other property rights established by the Lithuariaws.

The rights identified by points 1, 2, 3 and 4 areved to the persons who were the company’s

shareholders at the end of the tenth working dagr ahe corresponding general meeting of
shareholders.

11. Shareholders with special control rights and deeription of the rights.

There are no shareholders with special controtsigh

12. Overall limitations of voting rights.

As at 3% December 2011, AB ,Rokiskiaigs" owns 802 094 units of own shares. The shares a
without voting right. It makes 2,24% of the Autlmad capital of AB “RokiSkio®is”. There are no
other shares with limited voting rights.

13. Overall agreements between shareholders.

The issuer is not aware of any agreements betweanetsolders which would restrict transference
of securities and (or) voting rights.

14. Employees

Management structure of the Group of AB ,Rokiskio dris”

AB ,Rokiskio siris* Group’s (hereinafter The Group) managementcstire is formed in line with
the key functions such as Sales, Production, Fmananagement, Milk procurement, Logistics,
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Central services, and Development. The Functionegdibrs condition and develop the Group’s
strategy, tactics and targets in accordance wéHuhctions.

General Meeting of Shareholders

|

The Board of Directors
CEO of Rokiskio suris AB, CEO of Rokiskio pienas UAB,
Antanas Trumpa Dalius Trumpa

Deputy Export sales CFO Procurement | Logistics Central Business
Director and maturing | Antanas Director Director services Development
a Kavaliauskas | Evaldas onas Kubiliu Director Director
Dikmonas Jonas . Ramunas
Kvedaravicius | Vanagas

BroficioniDiretton Al donatTirsions Production and adm_ilr_1istration Director Bronius
rumpa
Production and administration Director Vytautas

Technical Director Rimantas Kucinskas Lape

Head of Laboratory Irena Kucinskiene Marketing Director Liutauras Nasliunas

Purchasing Director Vidmantas Mykolaitis Sales Director Kastytis Krivickas

Assistant to the CEO Ausra Ziboliene Purchasing Director Teodoras Medikas

Chief accountant Ligita Trumpaite-Lumpickiene

The employees of AB ,Rokiskiouss" are provided with wide opportunities to deepteir
knowledge and improve their skills in various trags. In order to obtain higher financial resources
to be used for this purpose, on April™2009 it was signed a trilateral agreement betwtben
Ministry of Social Security and Labour, Support Rdation European Social Fund Agency and AB
»ROkiSkio giris* for the administration and support of the humnrasources development project.
Total size of the project is up to LTL 2 millionh& main target of the project is to enable a group
of employees of AB ,Rokiskio sis“ and UAB ,RokiSkio pienas” to improve their esgial
competencies, helpful in implementation of the wattve technologies as well as their application
in dairy processing sector. In the beginning of @Ghe Company signed a contract with a training
company “OVC mokymai”. In June 2011, it was sigredagreement with UAB “Divine training”
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for additional training which was financed from thecumulated resources of the project. Within
2010-2011, the trainings were attended by 187 eyeple. As intended, the training was organized
in two directions: development of general skillsdaspecific trainings to improve production
technology knowledge. The project ends in April 20The budget will be used by 100 per cent.
Benefits are reflected by higher quality of produand operations, new knowledge and
competencies.

Learning of languages is a key issue of traininggpam also. There are language lessons at the
company as well as lessons organized by extergahaations.

Rights and responsibilities of the company empleyae provided by Job descriptions. There are
no special rights and responsibilities provideddtycontracts.

There is a Trade-Union Committee established at A®kiSkio diris” which protects the
economical and social rights and interests of gsnibers in light of employment, social guarantees,
training, professional improvement as well as dsthiment of professional ethics, and aim to
increase income of the food industry employees.

The company has a practice of Corporate Contraclihg contract is made between the director of
AB Rokiskio sdris and Trade-Union Committee of ABKskio sdris. The main purpose of the
contract is to harmonize performance of the cdllectand to guarantee better rights and conditions
of employment, remuneration, safety and healthegtain, social guarantees and similar, compared
to the ones established by the Laws and other thgalments of the Republic of Lithuania.

In accordance with the corporate strategy apprdyethe Board of Directors the Company’s key
operational targets cover all functional areas sagliinance, marketing, procurement, production
and control of human resources and their achieveandn order to reach the set targets the
company has established an internal control systemvell as the Audit Committee. The main
functions include analyzing and evaluation, alsovygling recommendations for improvement of
the Company’s operational performance. The findiog®\udit Committee are presented to the
Company’s management, and an action plan is preea@ordingly in order to eliminate identified

weaknesses. The Company’s accounting and finanedrts are made in accordance with the
International Accounting Standards applied in theopean Union.

The Company’s performance is managed and controiledssistance with the informational

technologies. Security of the data on the Compamjsrmation system is ensured by document

copying.

As at 3£' December 2011, the number of employees workinghfergroup of AB ,Rokiskio aris*
amounted to 1599 (average number pf employees).

The table shows average number of employees ofSRiok#iris group and variation of average
salaries in 2010:

Average number of employees 2011.12.31 2010.12.31

Total: 159¢ 1607

Incl. Managers 10 10
Specialists 315 310

Workers 1274 1287
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Average monthly salary, Lt 2011.12.31 2010.12.31
Total: 2319 2082
managers 4784 4648
specialists 2093 1933
workers 214: 209¢

Education of the employees working for Rokiskicisur

2011.12.31 2010.12.31
Education
University degree 142 139
Vocational school 735 753
High school 677 670
Unfinished high school 45 45

15. Procedure for amendments of the Articles of agsiation

Pursuing the Articles of Association of AB ,Rokiskdiris”, the Articles may be exclusively
changed by the general meeting of shareholdergpéxbe cases provided by the Law on joint
stock companies of the Republic of Lithuania. Teegt the decision changing the Articles of
Association, it is needed 2/3 of votes of totaliggrants in general meeting of shareholders.

16. Transactions with related parties and significat agreements

1. The Group is controlled by UAB ,Pieno prameninvesticij valdymas” (established in
Lithuania) and Antanas Trumpa (Director of the Camy) who alltogether own 58,31 per cent of
the Company’s Authorized Capital. The Closed Jstotk Company ,Pieno pramés investicij
valdymas” is controlled by Antanas Trumpa (as aomahareholder). The rest part of 41,69 per
cent of the company’'s shares belongs to variousomghmareholders in Lithuania and foreign
countries. The company has acquired 802 094 owmresia,24 per cent). The major shareholders
of AB Rokiskio suris owning more than 5 per centtbé company’s authorized capital are
identified at point 9 of the report.

UAB ,Pieno pramous investicij valdymas”, members of the Board of Directors, exige
managers and their family members are considerbd telated parties also.

Some cooperative companies directed to milk pradncare considered as related parties also,
because the Company may have significant influemeethem through close relatives of the
directors and some employees.

2. There are no significant agreements whose orig igahe issuer and which would get in power,
change or terminate upon the changed issuer’'salaagrwell as there is no such influence except
the cases when the disclosure of certain agreemanitisl make significant damage on the issuer.
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3. There are no agreements between the issuertandeimbers or employees providing any
compensation upon their resignation or dismisgahffob without reliable reason or in case of job
termination due to the change issuer’s control.

Transactions with related persons/ parties ardadied in Remark 33 of Financial accounting.

17. Key characteristics of the securities launcheid the public trading:

As at 3 December 2011, it was launched to the public hg85 867 970 (thirty five million eight
hundred sixty seven thousand nine hundred sevemtjihary registered shares. Nominal value
equals to LTL 1 (one litas) per share, total nomirsdue of shares is LTL 35 867 970 (thirty five
million eight hundred sixty seven thousand ninedrad seventy litas).

18. Securities listed on the official trading list

The 35 867 970 ordinary registered shares of ABKi&ao giris” are listed on th®fficial List of
NASDAQ OMX Vilnius Stock Exchange (VVPB symbol RSU1L). Nominal value per share 1
(one) litas.

The Company has not issued any debt securitighégoublic stock trading.

The Company has not issued nor registered anyseehbtities for the non-public stock trading.
There are no securities which would not participasea part of the Authorized Capital and be
regulated by the Law on Securities.

The shares were not traded by other stock exchamggsilar institutions. As from 22 November
2010 the trade on stock markets is performed in®ur

Trade by shares of AB Rokiskio slris on NASDAQ OMXnius Stock Exchange Vilnius Stock
Exchange:

Trade on central market:

Reporting period Price (Eur) Turnover (Eur)
from to max. min. avver. Last Date od max. min Last
session last trade session
sessiol
2009.01.01 | 2009.03.31 | 0,640 0,507 0,543 0,521 | 2009.03.31 | 417 209,22 O 2 409,87
2009.04.01 | 2009.06.30 | 0,626 0,492 0,576 0,579| 2009.06.30 149201,9¢ O 3 125,00
2009.07.01 | 2009.09.30 | 1,086 0,579 0,696 0,930 | 2009.09.30 | 132685,79 0 1 152,80
2009.10.01 | 2009.12.31 | 1,060 0,814 0,893 0,869 2009.12.31 2137254 0 1216,40
2010.01.0 2010.03.3 | 1,04: 0,84( 0,987 1,01< | 2010.03.3 135 646,9 0 14 822,9

2010.04.01 | 2010.06.30 1,054 0,970 1,026 0,973 2010.06.30 508 303,3( O 3 932,55
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2010.07.01 | 2010.09.30 | 1,437 | 0,959 1,231 1,381 2010.09.30 = 368253,90 O 13 667,75
2010.10.01 | 2010.12.31 | 1,830 | 1,410 1,735 1,792 2010.12.30 | 740490,00 0 0
2011.01.01 | 2011.03.31 1,789 | 1,505 1,696 1,750 2011.03.31  92633,76 0 0
2011.04.01 | 2011.06.30 | 1,807 | 1,410 1,574 1,440 2011.06.30 | 118496,0, 0 | 118496,02
2011.07.0] | 2011.09.3C | 1,488 | 1,37( 1,40¢ 1,400 | 2011.09.3C = 223.1473 0 14 035,61
2011.10.01 | 2011.12.30 | 1,478 | 1,205 1,256 1,298 2011.12.30 | 644770,7. O 3 595,46
19. Capitalisation of securities.
Reporting period Total turnover Date of last Capitalization
from to (items) (Eur) trade session (Eur)
2009.01.0 2009.03.3 1192 35! 646 94¢ | 2009.03.3! 22 268 81
2009.04.0 2009.06.3 1 253 46! 722 25¢| 2009.06.3 24 743 12
2009.07.01 2009.09.30 1123671 781 760/ 2009.09.30 39 712 715
2009.10.01 2009.12.31 492 856 440 243 2009.12.30 33 403 233
2010.01.01 2010.03.31 988 352 975 929/ 2010.03.31 38 983 123
2010.04.01 2010.06.30 1 384 497 1419 903 2010.06.30 37 406 882
2010.07.01 2010.09.30 829 929 1022 024 2010.09.30 53 092 399
2010.10.0 2010.12.3 1 564 68 2715 18 | 2010.12.3 68 893 25
2011.01.01 2011.03.31 482 039 817 582,95 2011.03.31 62 768 948
2011.04.01 2011.06.30 791 936/ 1 246 500,83 2011.06.30 51 649 877
2011.07.01 2011.09.30 821 016/ 1152 527,7C 2011.09.30 50 215 158
2011.10.01 2011.12.20 1192 43! 1498 010,2 | 2011.12.3( 46 556 62
Capitalization of the company'‘s securities within 09-2011, Eur
Capitalization (EUR})
20.000.000
70.000.000 A
60.000.000 /
50.000.000 ¥-§<
40.000.000 /\/4 i g Capitalization. |
30.000.000 7
20.000.000
10.000.000
200% 2009 2009 2009 2010 2010 2010 2010 2011 2011 2011 2011
3331 0630 0930 1230 (331 0630 0930 1230 0331 0630 0930 1230
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Turnover of the company's securities within 2009-201, (items and Eur)

13
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Data of diagram:

Indeksas/Akcijos 01.01.2011 30.12.2011 +/-%
—OMX Baltic Benchmark Gl 533,99 431,94 -19,11
~OMX Vilnius 409,65 298,78 -27,06
=OMX Baltic Benchmark PI 355,06 279,54 -21,27
—RSUI1L 1,79 EUR 1,30 EUR -27,57

Share price DIAGRAM: OMX Vilnius and AB ,Rokiskio g§ris(RSU1L), AB “Pieno zvaigass*
(PZV1L), AB ,Zemaitijos pienas” (ZMP1L) ir AB ,Villy3kiy pienire* (VLP1L):

Indices of the Baltic markets:

(2011.01.01-2011.12.31)

Indices of the Baltic markets

mOMEY m REML B PIVIL mIMPIL B YLPIL
115% -

e DN
0% - |'_\.i-!_-\1_p‘ih%”'-l|"" _ =
105% - |' |t |||,_4”"‘""'_" g e e
100% ,Lr'ﬂ ]LE.J'I'",:. b W -
55% Ln, "w o i o ! )

B5% - | e # Ll h.,..

0% - R B U }r‘l'-'

I'n ﬂW u}

7% -f
0% - u l ’

Bi% { T 1 { 1 1 1 T
Sau Was Koy Bal Geg Bir Lie Ragp Rgs Spa Lap Grd

Data of the diagram:

Indeksas/Akcijos 01.01.2011 30.12.2011 +-%
—~OMX Vilnius 409,65 298,78 -27,06
—RSU1L 1,79 EUR 1,30 EUR -27,57
=ZMP1L 0,70 EUR 0,68 EUR -2,86
—PzZV1L 1,48 EUR 1,69 EUR 14,12

=VLP1L 1,72 EUR 1,20 EUR -30,23
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20. The Group’s and parent company audited consolated financial accounts
for the year 2011

See attached Annex: The consolidated audited fiabaccounts of AB ,RokiSkiowsis" group and
parental company for the year 2011.

21. Information on purchase of issuer‘s own shares

During the financial year 2011, AB ,Rokiskiairss” bought 802 094 ordinary registered shares of
AB “Rokiskio giris” at par value of LTL 1 (one litas) via Stockd&ange NASDAQ OMX Vilnius,
which is affecting the submarket of official tendasdfer, for LTL 3 868 000. It made 2,24 per cent
of the company’s authorized capital.

The company does not have the right to employ ptpmnd non-property rights using the own
shares as stated by the Law on Joint Stock Comgpanie

22. Legal grounds of the issuer's performance

The performance of AB “RokiSkiouss” is guided by the Law on Joint Stock Comparoéshe
Republic of Lithuania, the Law on Securities, thenpany’s Articles of Association and other
legal documents valid in Lithuania and applieddampany practice.

23. Belonging to the associated organizations

AB “Rokiskio diris* is a member of the Lithuanian Dairymen Asstiom “Pieno centras"”.
Moreover, it participates in the activities of tkdamber of Commerce, Industry and Trade of
Panevezys.

The activities of the Lithuanian Dairymen Asso@atiare regulated by the Law on Associations of
the Reﬁublic of Lithuania and by the Confederaiagulations.

On 20" February 2010 AB ,Rokiskio suris* established assaiation together with other
processors of agricultural production. The acegtof the Association are regulated by the Law on
Associations of the Republic of Lithuania, artictésassociation and other legal acts.

24. Brief description of the issuer’s history

b A Y AB “Rokiskio diris” is one of the largest and most
modern dairy production companies in Lithuania.
The main activity of the company is production and
sales of fermented cheese, fresh dairy products,
butter, milk powders, whey and other milk products.
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Specialized “Rokiskio” cheese production was plahaed started to build in 1964, whereas at the
beginning of 1966 the company started its work.nirihe very beginning of the company’s
business fermented cheese became its main protluct980 the company started the first
reconstruction phase by putting into action a ndwese production department. The second
reconstruction phase was in 1988 when the congiruof new milk receiving machinery and full
cream milk production departments was completed 99l a new Finnish cheese maturation base
was put into action.

In 1992, the state-owned enterprise “RokiSkincsgamykla” was privatized and reorganized into a
joint stock company “Rokiskiotsis”. In 1993 the remaining governmental enterpebares were
sold. Following the decisions of the Governmentl %94 the company indexed its property. During
the period from 1993 to 2002 the company's shamgtadaincreased 7 times with the help of
additional contributions, 2 times thanks to own ngand 3 times due to reorganization. In 2000,
authorized capital was no longer increased.

In 1997, 150 000 of nominal equity were distributedhe form of international depository notes
(GDR).

To secure constant material supply and to strengtkeposition in the local market, AB "Rokiskio
siris” affiliated “Zarag pienire* in 1995, in 1996 — “Ukmergs pienire”, in 1998 “Satininky
pienirg”, in 2000 “Utenos pienas” and in 2002 — “EiSigkiienire“. In all these dairies the company
created its subsidiary companies.

In the months of November and December, 2000 ABKi&o diris“ increased the share portfolio
of AB “Svertioniy pienirg* up to 90,6%.

In December, 2000 AB “Rokiskiaigs" acquired 49,9% of AB “EiSiSkipienire” share portfolio,
whereas in March, 2002 AB “Rokiskiaiss” increased the share portfolio of AB "EiSigkpienire”
up to 100% of authorized capital and votes.

In March, 2001 AB “Rokiskio @ris“ purchased 49,9% of AB “Vanos pienig” share portfolio.
In October, 2001 AB "Rokiskiotsis” purchased 49,9% of AB "Ignalinos pieairand 100% UAB
“Jonavos pieni&’ share portfolio.

On 1st of June, 2005 AB "Rokiskiairgs“ sold the share portfolio of AB “Vanos pienig” and AB
"Ignalinos pienir”.

On 26th of April, 2002 at the general shareholdeetimg of AB "RokisSkio 8ris“ the decision to
"Jonavos pienié’; that is, the enterprises stopped functionningegsl persons.

On 4th of July, 2002 AB "RokiSkioasis" Board decided to stop the activities of AB 'lR&kio
siris” subsidiary company “Sé&hinky pienire* and to sign it out from the Enterprises' Register
On 30th of December, 2002 the subsidiary companiBf'Rokiskio diris” “Salininky pienirg*
was signed out from the Enterprises’ Register efRlepublic of Lithuania.

On 6th of September, 2002 at the general meetind\®f’RokiSkio iris” shareholders the
following decisions were made: reorganization of ABkiskio diris”, AB “EiSiSkiy pienire” and
property, rights and responsibilities acceptance tansfer acts were confirmed. AB "EiSigki
pienire” and UAB "Jonavos pienii terminated their activities as legal persons #mely were
signed out from the Enterprises' Register.
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On 14th of November, 2002 AB "RokiSkiarss” Board decided to establish a subsidiary compan
pienire* was registered into the Enterprises’ Register.29th October, 2005 AB “Rokiskiaigs"
Board decided to terminate the subsidiary compamgsvities. In April, 2006 the subsidiary

v

On 14th of February, 2003, following the decisidnA® "RokiSkio siris” Board, the activities of
AB "Rokiskio giris” subsidiary company “Zaragienire“ were terminated. On 26th of June, 2003
“Zarag) pienirg” was signed out from the Enterprises’ RegistethefRepublic of Lithuania.

On 20th of August, 2003 AB "RokisSkiaigs” bought 12 units of UAB "Kalora” nominal equit
which composed 100% of UAB "Kalora” authorized itap In October, 2005 AB "Rokiskiotsis”
sold these shares.

On 18th of February, 2005 an insolvency case wiglditors, without the court process, was raised
against AB “Svedioniy pienirg“. On 29th of April, 2005, due to its bankruptcyBASvertioniy
pienire” was signed out from the register of legal persons

On 14th of June, 2005 AB “Rokiskiass" sold 410 330 units of AB “Zemaitijos pieno @sticija"
shares, that is, 11,63% of AB “Zemaitijos pienedsticija“ authorized capital.

On 3rd of March 2006, in order to achieve more aife fresh dairy production results, AB
"Rokiskio diris” Board decided to separate export-oriented stiggoduction business from fresh
dairy production business oriented to the localketarFor this reason a new subsidiary company
was established. On 21st of April, 2006 a subsydieempany UAB “RokiSkio pienas" was
registered into the register of legal persons. Suissidiary is totally owned by AB “RokiSkiaigs".
After termination of the activities of subsidiarj§Ekiy pienire on 5th April 2006 the subsidiary of

P4

Lithuania.

In the year 2007, AB ,Rokiskioisis“ acquired 50 per cent of UAB ,Pieno ¢gJ shares and 100
per cent of each of the following companies: UABkéBerdis ir partneriai“, UAB ,Skirpstas”,
UAB ,Baténai“, UAB ,Petupe” and PK “Zalmar@”. The main activity of the companies is
purchase of raw milk.

In 2009, UAB “Skeberdis ir partneriai“ and UAB ,8gx" were liquidated and registered out of
the Registry of Legal Entities. In 2010, shareblAB ,Baténai” were sold.

In January 2008, AB ,Rokiskiousis“ acquired 50,05 per cent of block of sharesLafvian
company SIA Jekabpils piena kombinats. SIA Jekabpina kombinats specializes in production
of fermented cheese and sales of raw milk.

Also, in July 2008 the company acquired UAB “Euemas”. Business of the company is purchase
of raw milk. In 2009, UAB “Europienas” was liquidet and registered out from Registry of Legal
Entities.

In May 2010, the company acquired 40 per cent@ftiares of Latvian company SIA ,Kaunata®“.

The information on the subsidiaries of AB ,RokiSlsizis” is provided at point 3 of the report.
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25. Production, description of production capacitis, and implementation of new
products

The Group's production is developed in the towns of
Rokiskis (AB ,Rokiskio sris), Utena (UAB
.RoKiSkio pienas*) and Ukmerge (UAB ,Rokiskio
) pienas” subsidiary ,Ukmegg pienire").

- Specialization of Rokiskis production plant —
fermented cheese, lactose and whey products.

- Specialization of Utena production plant — fresh
dairy products for the local market, whey
protein concentrate, milk powder and butter
production.

- Specialization of Ukmerge production plant — cund aurd cheese production.

The Companies are highly concerned about food ysafetl quality issues in order to satisfy
customer needs and comply with the environmentplirements.

In 2001, the Company was the first in Lithuania wias certified in accordance with the
Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point systgii8CCP), and the first of dairy companies who
was certified in accordance with the Quality mamaget and Environment management systems.
In 2002, the systems were implemented and certifiddtena and Ukmerge also.

Certificates granted by the international comp&uwyeau Veritas prove that the systems
fully comply with 1SO 9001:2008, ISO 14001:2004,022000:2005 or requirements of Dutch
Standard for Food Safety “Requirements for theesysbased on HACCP. CC v HACCP, 2006".
There are certain rules made in accordance withdatd requirements, and they guarantee
production of stabile, smooth, qualitative and gafeducts in order to improve effectiveness of
whole system of environment protection going ire lmith the corporate politics. The system covers
all procedures from raw milk procurement to satistan of customer needs.

The systems are reviewed on the constant basisnameved in order to maintain high
product quality, satisfy customer needs and hade wroduct range for the market.

AB ,Rokiskio saris*

The key activity of AB Rokiskio suris is productiéermented cheese.

The cheese produced by the company is dividedsiamoi-hard and hard cheese. The group of fress
cheese includes ,,Cagliata” (various fat contedt\aaigth), ,,Mozzarella“. The group of semi-hard
cheese includes the following products: “RokiSkimis' (various fat content and weigth), Seail
siris, Lietuviskas, ,,Gouda“, Edamarss, Siris ,Visiems®, ,Zaloji karvue® etc, whereas Kietasis
suris (various fat, moisture content and weigthjohtecampo® and “Gojus” belong to the hard
cheese type.

In order to satisfy customer needs, in 2011 it wstasted production of cheese product with high
guality vegetable oils.
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Besides the main production of fermented cheese,"Rd@kiSkio diris” produces melted cheese,
whey protein concentrate (WPC) and milk sugar @se&}, processed cheese, and smoked cheese. In
2011, production of milk sugar exceeded quantiiesny previous periods.

Production of AB ,,Rokiskioisis":

Production / Year 2009 2010 2011
Fermented cheese, t 25.392 28.142 29.508
Cream 35% fat, t 10.679 10.099 10.642
Whey cream 35% fat, t 1.46¢ 1.54: 1.343
Whey protein concentrate, t 3.92¢ 5.33¢ 5.81(
Milk sugar, t 8.29; 10.19( 11.03¢
Processed cheese, t 767 708 749
Smoked cheese, t 132 81 71

UAB ,Rokiskio pienas*

The company is highly concerned to maintain exoeliguality of the produce and its safety,
therefore the production costs are constantly redus order to maintain high level of operations
and reduce negative impact on the environment whiSng lower quantities of hazardous
substancies and generating lower amount of waste.

Specialization of Utena production plant — fresh
dairy products for the local market, whey protein
concentrate, milk powder and butter production.

The line of yougurt production was modernized,
consequently a new yogurt packaging equipment
was installed. It allows production of wide range
of yogurts, and desserts, also it prolongs shigf li
of the products.

In 2011, it was mounted a new automatic
equipment ,Elopak"” for packing 2 liter packs.

Production / Year 2009 2010 2011
Fresh dairy products, t 47.53( 54.77( 61.88(
Butter and spreadable fat 4.775 3.084 2.865

blends, t
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Dry milk products, t 9.967 4.657 7.36(
Exported cream, t 5.213 5.355 8.212

In 2011, UAB ,Rokiskio pienas* started implementatiof a new Standard of social responsibility
SA8000. The Standard covers requirements for a aagnwhich employes expertise in order to
demonstrante its socially responsible attitudentpleyment conditions.

Purpose of Standard SA8000 is to establish reqeintsrbased on international norms related with
human rights and national legislation concerningpleyment in order to secure all employees
throughout the management chain, as well as adirotmployees who produce goods or supply
services to the company, including the employeesdhilirectly by the company, and its suppliers
and subcontractors.

Keeping in line with the standard’s requirements¢bmpany will be able to:

- create, maintain and implement the politics arat@dures related with the issues being in its
control or sphere of influence.

- demonstrate to the third parties that the comisapglitics, procedures and practices conform to
the standard requirements.

Politics of the company:

The company’s business operations are based on rhuand employee rights recognized
internationally. We endevour honest and honorakelatinent of all employees. We expect and seek
our supliers and subcontractors as well as fuehain of supply to follow similar rules. We believe
that the dialogue between the employer and empfoyeend can contribute to the sustainable
success for the company and its employees.

Fundamentals of social responsibility:

Accountability(for impact on the society, economics, and envirenth
Transparency (decisions and the operations infingrtbe society and environment)
Ethical conduct

Honor in regards with the thiord parties’intergstsar and react)

Honor the superiority of laws

Follow the international conduct norms

Honor human rights

Subsidiary of UAB ,RokisSkio pienas‘Ukmergés pieniné

Specialization of Ukmerge production plant — curdl &urd cheese production. It is one of the
biggest curd production plants in Lithuania.

Modern technologies and equipment, as well as camg# with sanitary and hygiene requirements
allow maintenance of all best nourishment and esterg values of curd products, and it ensures
longer shelf life of the prodct. It is highly imgant to ensure stability of product quality.

The plant continuously change the assortment aspneducts are created.
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Production, t/year 2009 2010 2011
Curd 2943 2789 3.389
Cheese 592 64¢€ 76C
Curd bars 1060 724 647
Processed products 334 332 298

In 2010, the pant Ukmetg pienire submitted an application to the Ministry of Agrittwe of the
Republic of Lithuania regarding registration of tmmame of Lithuanian Curd Cheese as
geografically protected in accordance with the E€QiRter No. 510/2006 regarding protection of
geographical an original places of agricultural &mod products. The company expects to receive
the confirmation in the nearest future.

Significant achievements were reached in the prioglucof 9 % curds “NAMINE®, which is
packed in exclusive brand packaging in 500g anaj200

Following an order of UAB ,Naisi vasara“ to support development of Lithuanian
cinemamatography it was started production of thiewing products:

- curd cheese, 13% faRISI Y VASARA, in vacuum packaging

- curd, 9% fat 500g\AISI Y VASARA, exclusive packaging

The assortment was enlarged by the brand PASAULIRIS KOLEKCIJA (WORLD CHEESE
COLLECTION) which was highly evaluated by the cunséo:

- Fresh chee®RAZILISKAI 45 % fat in dm, vacuum packaging;

- Fresh cheese with spicE®AZILISKAI 45 % fat in dm, vacuum packaging;

- Fresh cheese produced in italian traditieniSKAI Mozzarella 45 % fat in dm, vacuum
packaging;

- Fresh cheese with mexical spioEKSIKIETISKAI  45% fat in dm, vacuum packaging;

- Baked curd cheese with Lithuanian spicieSUVISKAI 22 % fat in dm, vacuum packaging;

- Baked curd cheese with caucasian sSpiA@&KAZIETISKAI 22 % fat in dm, vacuum
packaging;

Qualitative and safe product is the main target.

26. Sales and marketing

The biggest part of production is exported. £ .
before, the main direction of export is Europe

Union (mainly Italy, Holland, Germany) ani

Russian markets.

The biggest part of exported production is fermenigs
cheese. In the EU region the main part of sales
unmatured cheese, in the Russian market —
hard cheese and hard cheese which becomes
and more popular.
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The Group’s export sales of traditional productshsas butter, cream, milk powder and by-
products (Whey protein concentrate and lactose)nareasing.

Rokiskis group is one of the dairy leaders on teall market with market share of 20-25 per cent.
The company produces around 200 products of higllugy and reasonably price for the final
customer. In Lithuania Rokiskis is famous for iteese and also other fresh dairy products such as
kefir, fuild milk, sour cream, butter, curd prodsicyogurts, chocolate coated curd bars...

In acordance with the Lithuanian trade assosigtienrmost popular goods in 2011 it wRskiskio
»-Naminis* milk, Rokiskio ,Naminis* kefir, Rokiskio ,Naminé¢” curd and Rokiskio ,Visiems*
processed cheese

The company owns a range of strong brands targetedrious customer groups, the brands are
perceived as high quality products. The producorsent produced by the group‘s companies is
added with new qualitative products every year.

Inspite of rather weak market situation, the saleRokiSkio group in Lithuania in 2011 reached
LTL 226 million and was by 11 per cent higher conggito 2010.

The Group aims to further increase reliability tf produce, encourage healthy life style, and to

increase consumption of dairy products per person.

Brands as follows:

.L)- :%L’:\ “ . "
SURIS @ weontf  TKRAS)

TRADICI

R'.'_IFK_ISHJG

PEHAS
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A key factor is stability of the produce quality iwh is essential for implementation of marketing
strategy.

Sales markets in 2009-2011 (the Group)

Names of Sold
countries 2009 2010 2011
LTL, % LTL, thou % LTL, thou %
thou
Lithuania 243 679 43,48 201 784 36,44 225 725 32,81
Europear 259 38: 46,2¢ 259 35! 46,8: 341 61! 49,6¢
countries
Other 57 333 10,23 92 625 16,73 120 685 17,54
countries
Total 560 395 100 553 760 100 688 025 100

16,73% 2010m,

M Lithuania W Lithuania
European European
countries 46,83% countries
Other countries Other countries

2011m.
17,54%
B Lithuania
European
49,65% countries

Other countries
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27. Purchase of raw material

In 2011, in Lithuania it was purchased 1317,
thousand tons of natural milk which is by 3.1 p
cent more than in 2010 (1278,13 thousand to
The average price of natural raw milk was LTL
985,5 and it was by 14.1 % higher compared
2010 (LTL/t 863,7).

During the ten months of quota period, i.e. 20
2012, the amount of total national raw milk f¢
processing reached 68,19 per cent (last yea
67,10 per cent).
In total it was purchased 416tdousand tons of natural milk (average fat contért,08 per cent
and 3,26 per cento f proteins) or 12,1 per cenentizan in 2010.

COMPARISON OF PURCHASE OF NATURATL MILK, thou ¢ 2009-2010-20111n.
Thou.t

4164

371,4

2009 2010 2011

28. Risk factors related with the issuer‘s performace.

Economic factors:

Unfavourable influences related with raw milk protian and sales of finished products:
a) lowering purchasing power of Lithuanian residents;
b) cheaper Polish products on Lithuanian market;
c) high competition;
d) high concentration of producers;
e) substitution of dry milk products with cheaper iadients for further production;
f) uncontrollable increase of prices for fuel/power;
g) abolishment of EU export subsidies to third cowstyi
h) bureaucratic restrains;
i) volatility in export prices;
J) inadequate attention of the government in regaittsusiness;
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k) volatility in the Russia market;
I) unflexible politics in regards with VAT and excitexes.
m) Volatile competition due to instabile currency oatbetween euro and Russian ruble.

Lithuania is dominated by small milk farmSuch a high number of raw milk suppliers causes
increase of costs for raw milk quality testing aa@ milk collection costs. In addition, small
farms cannot ensure sufficient and consistent radwamality, and impede investment into milk
farms. Average dairy farm in Lithuania is the lemsEU, moreover it is smaller thirteen times
as much compared to the average figure in EU.

Raw milk production in Lithuania is heavily influeed by seasonalityollection of raw milk in
summer period is twice as much compared to wingiod. It has a negative impact on the
effectiveness of milk processing, utilization ofuggment capacities and cut of work places
during the low session period.

Low productivity of milking cows:

Low productivity of cows is caused by insufficiaggnetic potential of herd and poor feedstuffs.
Diminishing small farms. Decrease of populatiomural areas.

Unsteady dairy industry regulatory measures implget by the Statdevelopment of family
based milk farms was and still is too slow. Abseoteonsequent State politics to develop this
sector, frequent changes of subsidy requirementsta@mounts, concentration into milk prices
rather than into investment support have had negatifluence on the development of milk
farms and improvement of veterinary-sanitary coods.

Social factors

During the past few years, emigration of residarit&ithuania increased. Now it is experienced
lack of qualified work power. Decrease in reimbuns@t system. Low birthrate. The people lose
their trust in the government, and there is noamety in the future. Passive residents.

The farming is dominated by older farmers. Commuwit villages is getting older also. High
unemployment. Bankruptcy of companies. Consumptiecrease due to higher taxes applied to
residents. Uncontrolled rise in the prices for faetl power resources strongly influences decrease
of consumption and lower satisfaction of custormesds.

Inefficiency of the government to create new labplaices, high level of unepmployment, politics
of allowances, which do not encoureage the willvtwrk, lost of trust in the government politics,
and the government’s inefficiency.

Technical — technological factors:
Technical-technological risk factors of AB ,Rokiskdiris” are determined by HACCP program.

The main parts of HACCP program are PrerequisitesHACCP programs. They identify hazard
points in every production step, as well as theircal control limits and correction actions.

The company has the following Pre-requisites:
1. Raw milk quality;
2. Maintenance of buildings and premises;
3. Sanitary;
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Training of personnel;

Supply of water, steam and electricity. Water caintr

Supply of water, steam and electricity. Water caintr
Purchase and storage of additional materials;

Maintenance of equipment. Calibration of measurdrdenices;
Maintenance of equipment. Calibration of measurdrdenices;
10 Product traceability and recall;

11.Monitoring of logistics;

12.Pest control.

©ooNo O A

To monitor every production process there are pegpprocedures, technological instructions, their
control procedures (both microbiological and che)jcprovided records. Final products are
handled according the company’s standards whiclearos their specifications, chemical content,
nourishment, energetic value, packaging, termsovhge, shelf life etc.

Ecological:

Based on Regulation of European Parlament and Caontyn2008/1/EB “Regarding
integrated prevention and control of pollution” PK), AB Rokiskio suris is attributed to the
equipment of Annex 1 which obliges to obtain theKIpermission. The first TIPK permission was
obtained on 30-12-2005, it was issued by the Dapant of environment protection of Panevezys
region. Following the submitted application to mwl Panevezys department of environment
protection, on 28 December 2009 the Licence for integrated prevargiod control of pollution
(TIPK) was renewed, lateron it was corrected on0®42011. The company introduced most
effective production forms (BREF), and the consuopbf resources and emmission of pollution
complies with the EU regulations.

In 2001, the company implemented evirinment prataectsystem ISO 14001. The
certification and auditing is made by an internagioccompany Bureau Veritas Lietuva. In 2010, the
environmental protection system was successfutlgndied.

The environment protection politics of AB "RokiSksaris” covers continuous decrease of
negative impact on environment, ensuring minimaistonption of resources, and strengthening
waste treatment in order to minimize negative inmacair, water and earth. In 2011, during the
external and internal audit it was identified 1Imeeks and 1 non-compliancy which were
corrected. The remarks were taken into accountta@dnanagement system was improved. The
targets are set for every year in order to imprtwe system and reduce ecological risks. The
evaluation and analysis of performance is madegdeally.

The following five programmes are implemented ia tompany in order to evaluate and
analyse the impact on environment: 1) Monitoringgsam for field fertilization by waste from AB
“Rokiskio diris”, 2) Monitoring program for treated waste frégkB ,RokiSkio siris* to Ruopiskis
(Alseta) lake in Rokiskis district, 3) Monitoringggram for underground water of AB “Rokiskio
suris”, 4) Monitoring program for underground water petrol stations of AB “RokiSkiousis” in
RokiSkis and Obeliai. The mponitoring is made bgesearch company UAB Geoaplinka, 5) The
monitoring testing of pollution sources is made thy following cerified laboratories: UAB
Ekometrija, UAB Rokvesta. Certificates are submdittto Pane#Zys RAAD. There is no
objectionable influence identified.

In 2011, 13 stationary air pollution resources kiisged 7.74 t of pollutants. The transport
department consisted of 290 vehicles: 203 trail@isautomobiles, 6 other vehicles. The mobile
resources of contamination discharged 668.6 t biifamts.
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The company has constructed its own waste watatntent plant in order to target loads for
pollutants as required by the EU standards. Thectffeness of waste treatment is equal to 96-99%.
The treated dairy waste is processed into bio-gdsetectricity. In 2011, it was processed 7779 t of
dairy waste, produced 190 499 kWh of electricityichkhwas used for the internal consumption.
5462 t of sludge was used for field fertilizing. 2011, the facilities of AB Rokiskio suris treated
978 thousand m3, and 6,5 % of waste was transféadtle municipality waste water treatment
plant.

The former dairy waste accumulation site of AB ,i&bio diris” in Celkiai, Rokiskis district, was
inspected and the Ministry of Envoronment issugubsitive evaluation, therefore, the site is going
to be taken out of the register of dangerous afject

The company has undergone through risk analysissezpuently a plan of preventive actions and
accident liquidation was prepared. The most dangecompany’s sites: amonium compresor room,
storage of chemical materials of waste water treatnplant, warehouse of chemical materials,
petrol station. The company’s buildings were eviddaand marked as required by the fire
protection regulations. Fire alarms were equippestewnecessary in order to improve fire-
protection and minimize potential risk.

Key environmental indices

2010 2011 GPGB -ES*

Quantity of issued waste per ton of raw material 0,005 | 0,002 -

Fee for pollution per ton of raw material 0,07 0,07 -

Quantity of waste pollutants according to BDS7 é¢ngder ton of raw 0,37 0,26 -
material

Quantity of waste per ton of raw material, m3 1,39 1,31 0,7-6
Consumption of chemical materials in kg per ton rafv| 1,79 1,9 1,1-10,7
material

Power consumption in kWh per ton of raw material 38,82 | 39,6 60-208
Thermo-power consumption in kWh per ton of raw miate 67,75 | 66,2 60-820

*- GPGB- “Integrated Pollution Prevention and ContReéference Document on Best Available TechniquekerFood, Drink
and Milk Indusries “ August 2006

Environmental activities, LTL million

Year 2008 2009 2010 2011
Taxes for environment pollution 0,135 0,105 0,101 0,108
Income from the environmental operations 0,143 0,151 0,277 0,628
Invesment into environment protecti 2,067 1,027 0,830 0,526

Expenditure for environme 3,897 2,480 3,487 3,300
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29. Key aspects of formation of consolidated financial accounting
related with the systems of internal control and risk management

These consolidated financial statements have bespaped according to International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the Earopaion.

The preparation of consolidated and parent comgdimancial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires the use of estimates and assumptionsaffexdt the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets kabilities at the date of the financial statengent
and the reported amounts of revenues and expens@g dhe reporting period. The estimates are
based on the knowledge obtained by the managemewlaas current situation and actions.

The financial accounts include consolidated finah@ccounting of the Group and individual
financial accounting of the Company.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including speciaipmse entities) over which the group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies galiye accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence arféafof potential voting rights that are currently

exercisable or convertible are considered whensassgwhether the group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the datemhich control is transferred to the group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control se@ke group uses the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinationg. ddnsideration transferred for the acquisition

of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assedsdferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the group. The considerat@amsterred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent considerati@arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acqainedliabilities and contingent liabilities assumed

in a business combination are measured initiall{hair fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the group recagsiany non-controlling interest in the acquirer
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either at fair value or at the non-controlling iet&t’s proportionate share of the acquirer's net
assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, thmuatrof any non-controlling interest in the acquire
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previegsity interest in the acquiree over the fair ealu
of the group’s share of the identifiable net asaetwired is recorded as goodwill. If this is lds@n

the fair value of the net assets of the subsidaguired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognized directly in the statenw@omprehensive income

Inter-company transactions, balances and unreafjagts on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also elirmthat\ccounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistencyhsitiolicies adopted by the group.

The group treats transactions with non-controllimigrests as transactions with equity owners of the
group. For purchases from non-controlling interette difference between any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carryingevalf net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-cdimgointerests are also recorded in equity.

When the group ceases to have control or significdluence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change myrdg amount recognized in profit or loss. The fai
value is the initial carrying amount for the puressof subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or findnasset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognized in other comprehensive income in respietttat entity are accounted for as if the group
had directly disposed of the related assets oiliti@b. This may mean that amounts previously
recognized in other comprehensive income are ratilsd to profit or loss.

The group’s interests in jointly controlled entitiare accounted for by proportionate consolidation.
The group combines its share of the joint venturadividual income and expenses assets and
liabilities and cash flows on a line-by-line basisth similar items in the group’s financial
statements. The group recognises the portioniosga losses on the sale of assets by the group to
the joint venture that is attributable to the othenturers. The group does not recognise its dbfare
profits or losses from the joint venture that restdm the group’s purchase of assets from thet join
venture until it resells the assets to an indepengarty. However a loss on the transaction is
recognised immediately if the loss provides eviden€ a reduction in the net realisable value of
current assets or an impairment loss.

30. Information about the authorization given by the Board members

Members of the Board of Directors have not autlearizany other third parties to perform the
fuctions attributable to the Board of Directors.

31. Key ratios of the company performance, their dynamics



T @ Consolidated audited annual report for the yead 2(51/AB"ROKISKIO SURIS" 30

The table shows consolidated figures of the Group.

No. Ratio 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
1. Net profit % Net profit 5 3) 3 4 4
Sales and services

2. Average return Net profit 0,10 (0,05) 0,04 0,07 0,07
on assets Average assets

3. Debt ratio Liabilities 0,34 0,52 0,47 0,40 0,35

Assets

4, Debt-to-equity Liabilities 0,57 1,08 0,88 0,66 0,55
ratio Equity

5. General Current assets 1,70 0,94 1,42 1,10 1,85
liquidity ratio Current liabilities

6. Assets turnover Revenues 1,99 1,89 1,61 1,72 1,54
ratio Assets

7. Book value per Equity 4,97 4,07 4,82 5,06 8,07
share, Lt Number of ordinary shares

8. Net earnings pel Net profit 0,81 (0,45) 0,38 0,65 0,78
share, Lt Number of ordinary share

No | Ratio 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

1. Income (thousand litas) 664 962| 681 821| 560 395/ 553760 688 025

2. | EBITDA (thousand litas) 76 225 12 785 52 272 55413 58 771

3. EBITDA margin (%) 11,46 1,88 9,33 10,01 8,54

4. | Operational prof (thousand lite) 48785 | (14 99Y) 22 35¢ 29 66! 35 14:

5. | Operational profit margin (%) 2,82 (2,20) 3,99 5,36 511

6. | Return on equity ROE (%) 16,11 (10,55) 8,08 12,65 9,56

7. | Profitability margin (EBT margin) (%) 6,99 (3,08) 3,59 5,18 4,83

32. Investment projects implemented during the lasB fiscal years:

Every year AB ,RokiSkio @ris“ give great attention to new investment intee tproduction
procedures, modernization of existing productiotilifees and their maintenance, procurement of
raw material, continuation of environmental proi@at and transport.

When Lithuania became a member of European Uniiengdmpany employed some EU support to
increase investment facilities. Therefore, it wascessfully used the EU financing in accordance
with SAPARD and BPD 2004-2006 programs.

During 2003-2005, following the first priority sect‘Milk and Dairy Products’ of the SAPARD
rural development programme ‘Development of Agtierdl and Fishery Product Processing and
Marketing’, AB “RokiSkio giris” received financial support, equal to 12,5 il litas, for
production modernization. The BPD program was usedmprovement of whey collection and
treatment. The financial support reached LTL 3,4fian.

Upon implementation of those modern technologleess;et are no product leftover for discharge into
waste treatment plant. Also, during the high praidimcseason (summer) when the capacities are
used at maximal levels, all whey will be collected! processed.
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The investment according to the above programsimptemented successfully, the equipment is
used in ful capacities and the company continuespement new investments and modernization
of procedures.

The company is very much concerned to have mosemaatoduction facilities, and to process the
raw milk which would be delivered by modern vehicheith sufficient isolation and accounting
systems. It is aimed to maintain high quality ofghased raw milk which fully complies with the
requirements for food safety and veterinary. Atb@ products should be produced with the most
modern equipment.

During the last 3 fizcal years the main investmemtsre directed to reconstruction and
modernization of cheese production.

In general, AB Rokiskio suris investments are oigsh in the way to ensure food safety
requirements in terms of raw milk processing, potiun of produce and delivery of produce to the
customer.

In 2007-2010, the company continued the investrpemgram, consequently some new equipment
and milk trucks were bought, and the productioniggent was modernized which also resulted
into the better work conditions for employees, losde power consumption, and supported
environment protection program.

A part of investment was directed into improvemehtaw milk quality. In 2007-1010, the main
investments were made in accordance with KPP pnogiar the period of 2007-2013. The
investments were used not only for the parent comp@eB Rokiskio suris but for the subsidiary
UAB Rokiskio pienas also. The subsidiary preparedr fousiness plans to employ the support.
Total sum of the investment plans amounts to LTI[813nillion.

In 2007, AB ,Rokiskio @ris* and its subsidiary UAB Rokiskio pienas prephteusiness plans
according to 2007-2013 KPP measure ,Processingoéwdtural products and increase of added
value* first section ,Marketing of agricultural pfacts®. In 2008, a part of the investment was
made from the fund and the other part from ownueses. In 2007, the Group invested LTL 19,6
million.

In 2008, the group’s allocation to investment amedrup to 34,7 million litas, in 2009 it was 8,5
million litas.

Also, it was purchased some new vehicles for ralix oollection and transportation, and also the
trucks with refrigeration system for transportatadrfinished products.

In 2010, AB Rokiskio suris prepared two businesmplin accordance with 2007-2013 program.
They are ,Modernization, of raw milk processing B Rokiskio suris in order to increase
competitive ability of the company” and ,Modernimat, of raw milk processing by AB Rokiskio
pienas in order to increase competitive abilityhaf company*.

Total investment of the Group in 2010 amountedTa 6,5 million.

Total investment of the Group in 2011 amountedTa [L.6,4 million.

The main directions of the investment in 2011
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e Production of high value added products (long miaguvarious packaging and shapes
fermented and processed-smoked cheese);

e Production of big wheels of had grated cheese,l85 kach;

e Modernization of technological process of whey jpicid;

e Modernization of the departments servicing producfacilities (thermo and energy supply

departments, compressor room, water supply depatthadoratory);

Renewal of assortment and packaging of fresh gmogucts;

Maintenance of competitive ability level in the ket

Improvement of sanitary and hygiene level in thedpiction facilities (in the way of

equipment of ventilation systems, humidity collestand CIP sites);

Improvement of quality, control and monitoring;

Implementation of new technologies;

Saving power resources complying with EU requiretsien

Continuation of environment protection politics;

Increase of competitive ability by high added vatweducts;

Increase of level of competitiveness introducingestivalue products to the market;

Modernization of warehouses of finished productec@nstruction of premises and

equipment);

Modernization of internal transport;

Automatization of cheese loading/unloading fromtearers;

Improvement of work conditions of employees;

Modernization of cheese packaging complying witetomer needs;

Implementation of new technologies;

Modernization of heating system and compressor romnplementation of accounting

system;

All investments were made in Lithuania: Rokiskisl@ne related sites in Utena and Ukmerge.

33. Future plans, forecasts and investments envigad in 2012

In 2012, the group of AB ,RokiSkiotsis* is going to make investments amounting to LYL
million. The investments will be used for modermiaa of production procedures in whole chain of
production (cheese pre-presses, robot for cheed@agiag, decentralized cleaning systems, internal
transport, modernization of heating system, intiesgtananagement system, sanitary maintenance
equipment, i.e. floor cleaning machine, high pressileaning equipment, as it is provided by the
contracts of the KPP 2007-2013 programme, as veettanpletion of the projects in progress in
order to ensure smooth and stabile operationseofétjuipment and creation of new products. A part
of investments will be directed to creation of neackaging of products.

The main target of the investments is to continfflecéve usage of current equipment by
modernization and improvement of technological pthaes.

It is provided that acquisition of equipment shofitdt satisfy customer needs in terms of finished
production. It is aimed the equipment would enssafety and quality of the product as well as
variability of packaging responding to growing metrdemand.

Great attention is paid to the departments progidgervices to the production plants and
modernization of their equipment: cooling systemswer supply, waste utilization, ventilation
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systems. Also, to the storage and delivery of rdaeyook products and finished products within
the company’s departments. Therefore, some mokelifts will be bought.

The up-to-date and safe equipment would securentpeoved work conditions of employees as
well as precision of technological parameters. Engployees will have more time for product
guality, and control and monitoring of technologiparameters.

It should increase the company’s competitivenessyell as improved employment of production
facilities by implementing additional equipment arwhsidering environment protection.

34. Dividends paid

Dividends paid according share types and class dung the last 6 years:

2005 2006 2007
Type of Sum, LTL Per Sum, LTL Per Sum, LTL Per share
shares share share
Ordinary 10.275.966,28 2,36 Lt | 10.081.101,08 2,36 Lt | 9.902.131,20 0,24 Lt
registered (23,60%) (23,60%) (24,00%)
share
Table continued
2008 2009 2010
Type of Sum, LTL Per Sum, LTL Per Sum, LTL Per share
shares share share
Ordinary Dividends were not paid 3844 483,40 ' 0,10 Lt 3586 797 0,10 Lt
registered (10,00%) (10,00%)

share
Considering the company's results, the company’sagament intends to continue the dividend

policy as before.

35. Management bodies of the issuer

In accordance with the Articles of Association d ARokiskio diris”, the managing bodies
of the company are as follows: General sharehdldegsting, the Board of Directors and the Chief
Executive Officer.

General meeting of shareholders:

The competence and procedure of announcement dpidighe general shareholders’
meeting complies with the competence and proced@irannouncement applied to the general
shareholders’ meeting established by the Law amt Riock Companies.

General meeting of shareholders have the followixgusivity rights:
1. to amend the articles of association;
2. to change the company’s legal address;
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3. to elect a supervisory body, yet if this is notnfied then to elect the management
board members. In case both bodies are not formies, to elect the company’s
executive manager;

4. to recall the supervisory body or its members, ab &as the elected board of directors
and the company’s executive manager,

5. to elect and recall the company’s auditor execusingual financial reports, determine
its payment module;

6. to establish the class, number, nominal value aindmal price of share emission;

7. to convert of one type of shares into the sharemother type, approval of exchange
procedure of the Company’s shares;

8. to approve anunual financial reports;

9. to adopt resolution regarding distribution of pr¢foss);

10.to form, use, decrease or cancell reserves;

11.to approve interim financial accounting prepared pumpose to accept resolution
regarding dividends payout for the period shoitanta financial year;

12.to accept resolution regarding dividends payoutlfier period shorter than a financial
year,;

13.to resolve regarding emission of convertible bonds;

14.to resolve regarding cancellation of prerogatigitrito all shareholders to acquire the
Company’s shares of a certain emission;

15.to resolve regarding increase of the authorisedalap

16.to resolve regarding decrease of the authoriseithtap

17.to resolve regarding purchase of the company’seshar

18.to resolve regarding reorganization or segregatibthe Company and approval of
terms for reorganization or segregation;

19.to resolve regarding reformation of the Company;

20.to resolve regarding or restructurization of therpany;

21.to resolve regarding liquidation of the Companygease of liquidation unless the Law
on Joint Stock Companies provides differently;

22.to elect and recall the company’s liquidator unligsLaw on Joint Stock Companies
provides differently;

General meeting of shareholders may discuss ottmres assigned by the articles of
association of the company if the Law on Joint BtGompanies does not assign those functions to
other management bodies and in general they ar@dunctions of management body.

A resolution of general meeting of shareholdersassidered to be accepted when a simple
majority votes for the resolution rather than aggiexcept in case of points 1, 6, 7, 9, 10, 12,
13, 15, 16, 18, 19, 20, 21 which requires the pigdated majority of 2/3 of shares with the
voting right. Resolution for an item of point 14 yriae adopted with the participated majority
of 3/4 of shares with the voting right.

36. Committees formed in the Company

Audit Committee of AB Rokiskio suris:

The company's Audit Committee is made of 3 memioeis of which is independent. The cadency
of the Audit Committee is four years. Upon recomdaion of the company‘s Board of Directors
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the members of Audit Committee are elected by #eecal meeting of shareholders. The members
of Audit Committee were elected by the 24th ApAD® general meeting of shareholders.

Members of Audit Committee:

Kestutis Kirejevas — independent member, directoB ,EuropaPrint”, has no shares of AB
»ROKiSkio diris®;

Rasa Zukauskait— works for AB ,Rokiskio suris, in the financialepartment, has 2 shares of AB
~Rokiskio giris";

Asta Keliuotyt - works for AB ,Rokiskio suris®, in the financialepartment, has no shares of AB
»ROkiSkio diris®.

Key functions of Audit Committee include the followng:

1) supervision of preparation of financial accounts;

2) supervision of functional internal control of thengpany, risk management and
internal audit system,

3) supervision of the Company’s auditing procedure;

4) supervision how an auditor pursues the principldsimmependency and
impartiality;

5) honest and responsible operation in favour of the@any and its shareholders.

The Audit Committee is a collegial body acceptitgydecisions at the meetings. The Audit
Committee may adopt resolutions and its meetirgpissidered to be valid when it is attended by at
least 2 (two) members of the commitee. A resoluisoadopted when it is voted for by at least two
members of the Audit Committee.

Members of the Audit Committee are elected andliextd®y the company's general shareholders
meeting following recomendations of the Board ofedtors.

Cadency periodo f the Audit Committee ends in Ap@L3.

There are no other committees formed in the company

37. Management bodies

Management of the company:

Chief Executive Officer - Antanas Trumpa
Deputy CEO - Dalius Trumpa

Chief Financial Officer - Antanas Kavaliauskas
Development Director — Raimas Vanagas
Central Services Director — Jonas Kvedatiasg
Logistics Director — Jonas Kubilius
Procurement Director — Evaldas Dikmonas
Sales and Marketing Director — Darius Norkus
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System of bonuses for the management:

As the management of the company consists of thie saembers as the Board of Directors, they
receive tantjemes in accordance with the compgmgf®rmance results.

38. Members of collegial bodies

The Board of Directors of AB “Rokiskio suris”

The Board of Directors is a collegial managememtybmomprised of 9 (nine) members. The
Board members are elected and recalled by the gesbareholders’ meeting pursuing the
procedure set by the Law on Joint Stock Companies.

Members of managing bodies:

Dalius Trumpa (Chairman), Antanas Kavaliauskas (IDepChairman), Antanas Trumpa,
Andrius Trumpa, Raimas Vanagas, Jonas Kubilius, Jonas Kvedaissi Evaldas Dikmonas and
Darius Norkus.

The members were elected by the"2&pril 2008 general meeting of shareholders AB
»ROKiSkio diris“. Cadency of the Board of Directors is 4 years.

Board of Directors:
(as at 31-12-2011)

Dalius Trumpa — Board Chairman (elected by the™2&pril 2008 General
meeting of shareholders). Owns 994 787 ordinarysteged shares. i.e.
2,77% of the Authorized capital and 2,84% of votésAB ,RokiSkio
saris”. Education — university degree. Works for ttempany since 1991.
As from 2002 in the capacity of production directérs from 2007
appointed a deputy director. Also the director ABJRokiskio pienas
from 2007.

Participation in the activities of other companies:

Shareholder of UAB” Pieno praméminvesticij valdymas”, having 3,91
% of the company’s shares and votes;

Chief executive officer of UAB ,RokiSkio pienas“ating no shares;
Director of UAB “Rokvalda”, having 100% of slegrand votes;

Antanas Kavaliauskas- Deputy Chairman (elected by the™28pril
2008 General meeting of shareholders), the Chieargial Officer of
AB ,Rokiskio diris“, having no ownership of AB ,RokiSkiaigs"”.

Works for the company since 2002 in the capacityirednce director.
Education — university degree. In 1997, obtainethaster degree of
ficance management in Kaunas technology universisyfrom 2002, a
certified member of international accountants assion ACCA.
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Participation in the activities of other compan8fsareholder of UAB "Pieno pramés investicij
valdymas” owning 3,91% of shares of UAB” Pieno poexs investicij valdymas”.

Board Chairman of Latvian company SIA Jekabpil::gpikombinats, having no shares;
Director of Lithuanian dairy association “Pieno tas”, having no shares.

Antanas Trumpa - Board member (elected by the "23\pril 2008
General meeting of shareholders), Chief Executiviéic€¥ of AB
.ROKiSkio giris*, owning 6 978 370 ordinary registered sharésAB
~Rokiskio qiris®, i.e. 19,46% of the authorized capital of ABdkiskio
siris* and 19,90% of votes.

Education — university degree. Works for the conypas from 1966. In
1979, prepared a dissertation "Organizing the warikacuum aparatus*
in Riga Politechnical Institute, consequently orthl@ctober 1994 was
granted a doctor degree by Lithuanian Science Glouns

Participation in the activities of other companies:

Shareholder of UAB "Pieno pramém investicijy valdymas” with 7 546,
i.e. 74,86% of the shares and votes of UAB” Piemanmres investicij
valdymas”.

Ramiinas Vanagas -Board member (elected by the"2&\pril 2008
General meeting of shareholders), Development Rirecof AB
»RoKiSkio diris“, having no ownership of shares of AB ,RokiSkkiois".
Education — university degree. Works for the conypsince 2005 in the
capacity of business development director.

Participation in the activities of other companies:
He does not participate in the performance andtaiapf any other
companies.

Andrius Trumpa - Board member (elected by the ™2B\pril 2008

General meeting of shareholders). Education — usityedegree. Works
in Vilnius Gedimino Technikos University in the eagty of lecturer,
owns 298 820 shares, i.e. 0,78% of the Authorizapital and 0,83%
votes of AB ,Rokiskio 8ris".

He does not participate in the performance andtaiapf any other
companies.
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Jonas Kvedaravitius — Board member, (elected by the"2&pril 2008
General meeting of shareholders), Central servidiesctor of AB
»ROKiSkio diris”, having 24 630 shares of AB ,Rokiskiars", i.e. 0,06
% of the company’s authorized capital and 0,07%o0bés.

Education — university degree. Works for the conypsince 1994 in the
capacity of the central services director.

Participation in the activities of other companies:

Shareholder of UAB "Pieno pramés investicij valdymas”, having
3,91 % of the company’s shares and votes;

Director of UAB "Pieno pramots investicij valdymas”.

Jonas Kubilius — Board member, (elected by thé"2&pril 2008 General
meeting of shareholders), Logistics director of ABokiSkio siris”,
having 19 930 shares of AB ,Rokiskiairs”, i.e. 0,05 % of the
company’s authorized capital and 0,06% of votes.

Education — university degree. Works for the conypsince 1995 in the
capacity of the head of transport department. As1\f2002 appointed the
logistics director.

Participation in the activities of other companies:

Shareholder of UAB "Pieno pramésinvesticij valdymas”, having 3,91
% of the company’s shares and votes;

Evaldas Dikmonas -Board member, (elected by the™®pril 2008
General meeting of shareholders), Procurementtdiret AB ,Rokiskio
saris”, having 2 165 shares of AB ,Rokiskiairss”, i.e. 0,01 % of the
company’s authorized capital and votes.

| *| Education — university degree. Works for the conypsince 2001 in the
capacity of the procurement director.

Participation in the activities of other companies:

' Shareholder of UAB "Pieno pramém investiciy valdymas”, having 3,91

4 % of the company’s shares and votes;

.~ w Board member of Latvian company SIA Jekabpils pidoanbinats,
having no shares.
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Darius Norkus - Board member, (elected by the™Bpril 2008 General
meeting of shareholders), Sales and Marketing tireaf AB ,RokiSkio
saris”, having no shares of the company.

Education — university degree. Works for the conypsince 2001 in the
capacity of the sales and marketing director.

Participation in the activities of other companies:

Shareholder of UAB "Pieno pramém investicijj valdymas”, having 3,91
% of the company’s shares and votes; Cadence pefidde Board of
Directors is 4 years. The cadence ends $hAzsil 2012.

Manager of the Company:

The Chief Executive Officer is a one-man managenismdy who organizes everyday
activities of the company, discusses and solvesdhgany’s long term strategic objectives as well
as issues of business plans. Within relationshipvdsen the company and other persons, the Chief
Executive Officer acts determinatively on behalfleé company.

Information on the company’s manager (director):
For more informatiombout theChief Executive Officer Antanas Trumpasee point 38.

Information on the company’s finance director:
For more informatiombout theChief Financial Officer Antanas Kavaliauskassee point 38.

Data on the allocated funds

In 2011 it was allocated the following sums to thembers of the Board of Directors of AB
»RoKiSkio diris“, manager of the Company and the chief finansigerage amounts are calculated
falling on one member of managemen bodies, asagdlansfered property and guarantees:

Members of | Number Total Average Transferred | Guarantees
collegial of allocated amount per | property, Lt given, Lt
bodies people sums, person,
(salary and (salary and
tantjemes) tantjemes)
LTL, thou LTL, thou

Members of 9 1784 198 4
the Board of
Directors
Manager of 2 144* 72* -
the
company
and chief
finansist

* only salary
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39. Information on observance of the Company managnent codex.

Annex to the Consolidated annual report

Rokiskio suris AB disclosure of compliance with theGovernance Code of the companies
whose securities are traded on a regulated markes iprovided as an annex and it is a part to
the consolidated annual report.

40. Information on the publicly announced data

1. Disposal of treasury shares of AB ,Rokiskio suris”
The company was disposed of its treasury sharBgg§D24 shares) when they were withdrawn. On
March 8th 2011 a new wording of the Articles of Asimtion of AB ,Rokiskio suris“ was
registered in the Register of Legal Entities regaydiecrease of the authorized capital due to the
withdrawal of treasury shares. The resolution tore@se the authorized capital in the course of
share withdrawal was accepted on 23rd December gédéral meeting of shareholders.
The company has no shares in treasure after annutrh@ 576 924 shares.

2. Resolutions of the 29th April 2011 general meetihghareholders of AB "Rokiskio suris".

-The Company’s annual report for the year 2010

Debriefed with the consolidated annual report of ABokiskio diris* for the year 2010 after its
approval by the Board of Directors and evaluatigmbditors

-Auditor’s findings regarding the consolidated fiic#al reports and annual report.

Resolution:
To endorse the auditor’s report

-The Audit Committee report.

Resolution:
To endorse the report of the Audit Committee

-Approval of the company’s consolidated financiet@unting for the year 2010.

Resolution:
To approve the consolidated financial reports feryear 2010

-Allocation of the Company’s profit of 2010.

Resolution:
To approve allocation of the Company’s profit (log62010.
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Tytle Thou LTL| Thou EUR
1. | Non-distributable profit (loss) at beginning of yea 83 741 24 253
2. | Approved by shareholders dividends related to the 3884 1124
year
2009
3. | Transfers to reserves provided by law 359 104
4. | Profit share transferred to reserves for acquisitio 15 000 4 344
of
own shares
5. | Non-distributable profit (loss) at beginning of yea 64 498 18 680
after
dividend payout and transfer to reserves
6. | Net profit (loss) of fiscal year 24 561 7113
7. | Distributable profit (loss) 89 059 25793
8. | Profit share for mandatory rese - -
9. | Profit share for acquisition of treasury shi 20 00( 5792
10. | Profit share for other reserves - -
11. | Profit share for dividend payout 3 587 1039
12. | Profit share for annual payments (tantiemes) to the 4 900 1419
Board of Directors, employee bonuses and other
13. | Non-distributable profit (loss) at end of year 55102 17 543

Allotted for the dividends related to 2010 — LTL586 797 (EUR 1 038 808) i.e. LTL 0,10 (EUR
0,029) per share (before taxes).

The Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuamavjmes that dividends shall be paid to the
shareholders who at the end of the tenth busin@gdallowing the Annual General Meeting that
adopts a decision on dividend payment (rights actog day) will be on the Shareholders' List of
the Company, i.e. the shareholders of AB Rokiskigsson 13 May 2011.

Following Lithuanian laws dividends paid to natypalsons-residents of the Republic of Lithuania
and natural persons-residents of foreign counaiesubject to withholding Personal income tax of
20 per cent. Dividends paid to legal entities & Republic of Lithuania and legal entities-resident
of foreign countries are subject to withholding @amate income tax of 15 per cent, unless
otherwise provided for by the laws.

-Election of the Company’s auditor and establishihnoépayment conditions

Resolution:

To appoint UAB “PriceWaterhouseCoopers* as an Audif JSC Rokiskio suris. The Board of
Directors shall establish the fee for the auditartsk. The Company’s Chief Executive Officer
shall sign a contract with the auditor

-Regarding purchase of own shares.
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Resolution:

1). To purchase up to 10 per cent of own shares.

2). Purpose of acquisition of own shares — mairdaith increase the price of the company’s shares.

3). Period during which the company may purchase shares - 18 months from the approval of
resolution.

4). Maximal purchase price per share set as — EURE3ILTL 12,00) minimal purchase price per share
is set equally to nominal value of share — EUR 0,2BTL 1,00).

5). Minimal sales price per share of the treasharas is equal to the price at which the sharees wer
purchased.

When selling treasury shares it should be estadigiyual opportunities for all shareholders to aequ
the company’s shares. Also, it shall be provideddapportunity to annul treasury shares.

6). To authorize the Board of Directors to orgamupechase and sales of the own shares, establish an
order for purchase and sales of the own shareselhss their price and number, and also compliéte a
other related actions pursuing the resolutionsragdirements of the Law on Joint

Stock Companies.

-Regarding compounding the reserve to acquire dwanes.

Resolution:

To compound a LTL 20 000 thousand (twenty milli6tgs reserve. The total reserve for
acquisition of own shares including the reserveay accumulated amounts up to LTL 40 287
thousand.

3. AB Rokiskio suris increased the block of sharekaizian company

On 3T"'May 2011, AB Rokiskio suris has additionally aaedi 49,95 per cent of shares of Latvian
company SIA Jekabpils piena kombinats and incregsedontrolled block of shares up to 100 per
cent.

The value of share transaction of acquired 49,95cpat equals to EUR 416 thousand. The share
acquisition will not have any significant influenoe the company’s operations and financial state.

SIA Jekabpils piena kombinats operates in the fiélchw milk purchase.

4. Regarding purchase of own shares

Considering the fluctuation of share price and pimg resolution of the 29April 2011 general
meeting of shareholders of AB "Rokiskio suris”, September 2011 Board of Directors of AB
»ROkKiskio suris” resolved:

1. Purchase up to 3.586.700 (three million five huddegghty six thousand seven hundred)
units of ordinary registered shares of AB "Rokiskiaris” LTL 1 (one) litas par value. It
makes 10 % of the Authorized Capital of AB “Rokislsuris”.

2. The price for purchase of own shares is set at E|4R per ordinary registered share of AB
»ROKiskio suris".
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3. Duration of purchase of own shares - 14 days. Thares will be purchased as from
September %, 2011 until September 90 2011 via the official tender submarket of
Securities Exchange NASDAQ OMX Vilnius.

4. In case the quantity of shares offered for purchaggeater than it is intended to buy, the
amount of offered for purchase shares will be pridpaally decreased.

5. Acquisition of own shares by AB ,Rokiskio suris*

In the course of purchase of own shares started @6/09/2011 to 20/09/2011 AB ,Rokiskio suris*
purchased 788 804 units of own shares, and it ma285% of the Company’s Authorised Capital.
Purchase price per share equals to EUR 1,40.

6. Regarding purchase of own shares

Considering the fluctuation of share price and pimg resolution of the 29April 2011 general
meeting of shareholders of AB "Rokiskio suris”, @' November 2011 Board of Directors of AB
»ROkKiskio suris” resolved:

1. Purchase up to 2.797.890 (two million seven hundiadty seven thousand eight hundred
ninety) units of ordinary registered shares of ABokiskio suris” LTL 1 (one) litas par
value. It makes 10 % of the Authorized Capital & ARokiskio suris” including 788.804
units own shares in treasure.

2. The price for purchase of own shares is set at EI2R per ordinary registered share of AB
»ROkKiskio suris".

3. Duration of purchase of own shares - 14 days. Thares will be purchased as from
December ¥, 2011 until December 42011 via the official tender submarket of Sedesit
Exchange NASDAQ OMX Vilnius.

4. In case the quantity of shares offered for purcheggeater than it is intended to buy, the
amount of offered for purchase shares will be pridpaally decreased.

7. Acquisition of own shares by AB ,Rokiskio suris*

As of 14" December 2011, AB ,Rokiskio suris* completed pwasing of own shares on the
.NASDAQ OMX Vilnius* stock exchange market, consemqiy the company acquired 13,290
ordinary registered shares which makes 0.04 % @fGbmpany’s Authorised Capital. Purchase
price per share equals to EUR 1,200.

Currently, AB ,Rokiskio suris* owns 802,094 unit$§ veasury shares including the previously
acquired shares, and it makes 2.24 % of the companyhorized capital.
8. Information about the share issues of AB ,Roki&kids"

As of 3T December 2011, the authorized capital of AB ,Rkiki&iris* makes LTL 35,867,970. It
compounds of 35,867,970 ordinary registered shalesinal value per share equals to LTL1 (one
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litas).
The quantity of treasury shares equals to 802,@Hares with the voting right amounts to
35,065,876.

All information on the company’s material eventgpiesented following Article 28 of the
Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania.

The company publishes its information through thsebof Central Public Information, on
the website of Vilnius Securities Exchangép://www.baltic.omxnordicexchange.coand the
company’s website/ww.rokiskio.com

41. Information on the publicly announced data aftethe end of fiscal year

Other information on the important events after #rel of fiscal year is presented with the
consolidated financial reports, under Remark 34.

42. Information on audit

The audit of AB “RokiSkio 8ris” (The Group) consolidated balance sheet andhtedl
comprehensive income statement as &t Bécember 2011, as well as cash flow and changes in
equity statements were prepared by UAB “PricewateskCoopers”.

43. Performance strategy and evaluated changes ihe nearest fiscal year

Mission

AB ,RokiSkio giris® = Reliable Dairy Industry Professionals (Patikimi Pieno Pramores
Profesionalai).

Key values

Professional approach.

Impeccable attention to the satisfaction of thedses our clients and consumers.
Respect for and trust in employees.

Constant improvement.

Long-term Objectives
e Creation of a solid and profitable EU market for ABokiskio diris” products and services
e Ensuring of a stable and coordinated waste-fredymtion programme
¢ Maintenance of stabile relationships with raw nsillppliers.
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Key values and strengths
/7 Harmonized team and sustainable management.
Modern technologies.
Experience.
Finansial stability.
Fast and flexible decision making and reactionttieeexternal changes.
Continuous improvement.

L R ]

In the Baltic region we are:

* The most effective dairy producer because:
7/ We have a reliable quality management system,
7/ We are a reliable partner of milk producers,
7 We are attractive employer,
7/ The company’s brand is a guarantee of reliabilitg guality, well known in

the Baltic region, and the Eastern and Western etsurk
e Leader of dairy industry in Lithuania and the Badtiin accordance with the
following:

7 Quantity of processed milk,
7 Production of fermented cheese,
7 Turnover and profit.
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SURIS

SUPPLEMENT TO THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT

2011

Rokiskio suris AB disclosure of compliance with th&overnance Code
of the companies whose securities are traded on agulated market

Rokiskio suris AB, following Article 21 paragraph 3 of the Law onc8sties of the Republic of
Lithuania and item 24.5 of the Trading Rules of Wilmius Stock Exchange, discloses its compliance
with the Governance Code, approved by the VSEH®Icompanies listed on the regulated market, and it

specific provisions.

PRINCIPLES/ RECOMMENDATIONS

YES/NO
INOT
APPLICAB
LE

COMMENTARY

Principle I: Basic Provisions

time shareholder value.

The overriding objective of a company should be toperate in common interests of all the shareholdersy optimizing over

1.1. A company should adopt and make public
company’s development strategy and objectives
clearly declaring how the company intends to méet
interests of its shareholders and optimize shadeing

value.

thees
by

e

The Company announces its development strategy
objectives publicly in its annual reports and iite
reports which are submitted via the central base

regulated information and the company’s website.

1.2. All management bodies of a company shouldra
furtherance of the declared strategic objectivedemw of

the need to optimize shareholder value.

Yes

The Company’s managing bodies act in furtheranc
the strategic plan according to which the miss®roi
form a strong, financially sound and technicallydeam
enterprise creating and constantly increasing étsies

for shareholders.

and

of
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1.3. A company's supervisory and management bc

should act in close co-operation in order to attai

maximum benefit for the company and its sharehslder

As the Company does not have a supervisory b- a
Supervisory Board, the function of supervision ¢sed

by the Audit Committee, as well as the Board

of

Directors and the Company’s manager in the manher o

close cooperation (the Company's manager,

and

members of the Board when needed, are invited to

participate at the meetings of the Audit Committee.

They submit reports on the company’'s performal
implementation of strategic plan and budgetingyig®
recommendations for the financial reporting), wh

benefits to both the Company and shareholders.

1.4. A company’s supervisory and management bc
should ensure that the rights and interests ofopersther|
than the company's shareholders (e.g. employ
creditors, suppliers, clients, local communit
participating in or connected with the compan

operation, are duly respected.

The Company’'s Board of Directors and manag

bodies ensure the rights and interests of sharetsl

employees, raw material suppliers are duly respecte

Employees can enjoy opportunities to improve their

qualification at various seminars and courses

Lithuania and abroad, development of milk farms is

supported, and organic farms are encouraged. Teadt
part of employees and milk producers are sharel®
of the Company.

Principle II: The corporate governance framework

The corporate governance framework should ensure th strategic guidance of the company, the effectivaversight of the

company’s management bodies, an appropriate balancend distribution of functions between the companys bodies,

protection of the shareholders’ interests.

2.1. Besides obligatory bodies provided for in ltlagv on
Companies of the Republic of Lithuania — a gen
shareholders’ meeting and the chief executive effit is

recommended that a company should set up bo

collegial supervisory body and a collegial managame

body. The setting up of collegial bodies for sujson
and management facilitates clear separation
management and supervisory functions in the comp

accountability and control on the part of the chi

executive officer, which, in its turn, facilitate more

efficient and transparent management process.

The Company’s managing bodies are a ger
shareholders’ meeting, the Board of Directors dmel

Chief Executive Officer. The Company does not have

—

collegial supervisory body, and its functions are

overtaken by the Board of Directors. The Company’s

CEO is accountable to the Board of Directors.
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2.2. A collegial management body is responsibletiier

strategic management of the company and perforhes

Yes
Dt

key functions of corporate governance. A collegial

supervisory body is responsible for

supervision of the company’s management bodies.

the effectjve

Functions of the collegial management body arried

out by the Board of Directors.

2.3. Where a company chooses to form only one giall
body, it is recommended that it should be a superyi
body, i.e. the supervisory board. In such a cake,
supervisory board is

monitoring of the functions performed by the compan

chief executive officer.

No

responsible for the effective

The Company has only one collegial management

and it is the Board of Directors who carry out the

functions of the supervisory board.

2.4. The collegial supervisory body to be electgdihe
general shareholders’ meeting should be set up
should act in the manner defined in Principlesahitl IV.
Where a company should decide not to set up agiall
supervisory body but rather a collegial managerhedyy,
i.e. the board, Principles Ill and IV should appdythe
board as long as that does not contradict the essamd
purpose of this body.

Yes

and

372

The Company has a collegial management body — the

Board of Directors. Principles Il and IV of the @»are

applied to the Board of Directors.

2.5. Company’'s management and supervisory bod¥ss

should comprise such number of board (executive

directors) and supervisory (non-executive diregt
board members that no individual or small group
individuals can dominate decision-making on thet pér

these bodies.

Drs

of

According to the Articles of Association the Boaofl

Directors consists of 9 members. The Company bediev

that 9 members are able to ensure productive wbrk o

the Board of Directors enabling to adopt resolugiand
it is assumed that an individual member or smadugr
do not dominate the decisions of the Board of Doex

Every Board member has one vote.

2.6. Nor-executive directors or members of
supervisory board should be appointed for spectiéechs
subject to individual re-election, at maximum iwas
provided for in the Lithuanian legislation with &w to
ensuring necessary development of professi
experience and sufficiently frequent reconfirmatioh

their status. A possibility to remove them shoukbabe

stipulated however this procedure should not beéeeas

than the removal procedure for an executive directa

member of the management board.

| Yes

bnal

According to the Articles of the Association thedBd
of Directors is elected for the 4 year period. Cage
number is not limited. A possibility to resign @amove

a member of the Board of Directors is regulatedHzy

Lithuanian legislation — a Board member may resign

before his/her cadency is ended if the company is

informed about it in written not later than 14 dags

advance. A Board member may be recalled by the same

institution which ellected, i.e. general meeting

shareholders.

of
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2.7. Chairman of the collegial body elected bydgkeeral
shareholders’ meeting may be a person whose cuore
past office constitutes no obstacle to conductpededent
and impartial supervision. Where a company shd
decide not to set up a supervisory board but ratie
board, it is recommended that the chairman of erd
and chief executive officer of the company shouédah
different person. Former company’'s chief execut
officer should not be immediately nominated as

chairman of the collegial body elected by the gah
shareholders’ meeting. When a company choose
departure from these recommendations, it shouldighr
information on the measures it has taken to en

impartiality of the supervision.

No

nt

uld

ive
the

(]
p4

sure

The Company's Board Chairman is not the C
Executive Officer, but he is a director of daugh

company.

ter

Principle IIl: The order of the formation of a coll egial body to be elected by a general shareholdensieeting

The order of the formation a collegial body to be lected by a general shareholders’ meeting should sare representation

of minority shareholders, accountability of this baly to the shareholders and objective monitoring othe company’s

operation and its management bodies.

3.1. The mechanism of the formation of a collegatly | Yes Only 2 Members of the Board of Directors of totadre

to be elected by a general shareholders’ meeting shareholders of the Company. Other members arermino

(hereinafter in this Principle referred to as thellegial shareholders. Minor shareholders are not limitethéir

body’) should ensure objective and fair monitorofghe right to represent their interests and have their

company’s management bodies as well as represantati representative on the Board of Directors.

of minority shareholders. Pursuing the resolution of general meeting | of
shareholders according to the Law on Joint Stock
Companies the Board members are provided
remuneration in the form of tantiemes

3.2. Names and surnames of the candidates to begofes Information about the members of the Board | of

members of a collegial body, information about ithei Directors (names, education, qualifications, prsifazal

education, qualification, professional background, experience, participation in the activities of athe

positions taken and potential conflicts of intersisbuld companies, other important professional obligajidas

be disclosed early enough before the gengral provided in the periodical reports.

shareholders’ meeting so that the shareholders dvoul

have sufficient time to make an informed votingiden.

All factors affecting the candidate’s independentte

sample list of which is set out in Recommendation, 8

should be also disclosed. The collegial body shaldd
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be informed on any subsequent changes in the @od
information. The collegial body should, on yearlgsts,
collect data provided in this item on its membens

disclose this in the company’s annual report.

3.3. Should a person be nominated for members
collegial body, such nomination should be followeyl
the disclosure of information on candidate’s pattc
competences relevant to his/her service on thegiall
body. In order shareholders and investors are &bl
ascertain whether member's competence is fur
relevant, the collegial body should, in its anncegort,
disclose the information on its composition andipatar
competences of individual members which are relet@

their service on the collegial body.

Yes

ther

A candidate to the members of the Board inform gar

meeting of shareholders about his/ her education,

professional performance, position and participaiio
the activities of other companies. Members of toar@
provide information on the participation in qualdtion

programmes related with activities on the Board.

3.4. In order to maintain a proper balance in teofnhe
current qualifications possessed by its members,
desired composition of the collegial body shall

determined with regard to the company’s structund

activities, and have this periodically evaluatedheT

collegial body should ensure that it is composed
members who, as a whole, have the required diyeo§i
knowledge, judgment and experience to completer

Yes
th

V)

of

hei

tasks properly. The members of the audit committee,

collectively, should have a recent knowledge ahelvent
experience in the fields of finance, accounting/an
audit for the stock exchange listed companies. e&fst
one of the members of the remuneration commi
should have knowledge of and experience in thel fidl

remuneration policy.

ttee

The members of Company’s collegial body — the Bagard

of Directors — are the Company’s Functional Diresto

leading some specific areas of the Company's

performance, they are competent and qualified

maintain their functions.

to

The Audit Committee consists of 3 members, one of

which is independent and has at least 5 year esqer

in accounting. Other members of the Audit Committee

are also qualified to maintain their functions. The

Auditing Committee carries out independent &
objective activities analyzing, evaluating and agtisg
the Company in order to improve the Compan

performance and increase its added value.

and

Yy'S
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3.5. All new members of the collegial body should
offered a tailored program focused on introducing
member with his/her duties, corporate organizaton
activities. The collegial body should conduct amuzad
review to identify fields where its members need

update their skills and knowledge.

No

All new Board members are informed on

Company’s performance, organization and changes in

the meetings of the Board of Directors.

3.6. In order to esure that all material conflicts
interest related with a member of the collegial yoade
resolved properly, the collegial body should corsgra

sufficient number of independent members.

No

There are no independent members on the Boa
Directors.

3.7. A member of the collegial body should be cdestd
to be independent only if he is free of any busn
family or other relationship with the company,
controlling shareholder or the management of ejttiet
creates a conflict of interest such as to impais
judgment. Since all cases when member of the dalle
body is likely to become dependant are impossiblést,
moreover, relationships and circumstances assdc
with the determination of independence may vV
amongst companies and the best practices of sotkisg
problem are yet to evolve in the course of tir
assessment of independence of a member of theyiabl
body should be based on the contents of the rakttip
and circumstances rather than their form. The kigra
for identifying whether a member of the collegialdly
can be considered to be independent are the faltpwi
1)He/she is not an executive director or membe
the board (if a collegial body elected by t
general shareholders’ meeting is the supervis
board) of the company or any associa
company and has not been such during the

five years;

2)Helshe is not an employee of the company,

(S

ate

ary

ne,

D

r of
he
ory
ted

last

or

some any company and has not been such duiring

the last three years, except for cases whe
member of the collegial body does not belong

the senior management and was elected to

n a
to
the

collegial body as a representative of lihe

As from 1995 until 2006, the greatest part & Board
of the Company was made of independent memf
When the structure of shareholders changed, ang
Board of Directors resigned, the new members w
elected, and they do not comply with the Cod

independency criteria.

ers.
the
ere

e’s
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employees

3)Helshe is not receiving or has been not receiying
significant additional remuneration from the
company or associated company other than
remuneration for the office in the collegial body.
Such  additional remuneration includes
participation in share options or some other
performance based pay systems; it does |not
include compensation payments for the previpus

J

office in the company (provided that such
payment is no way related with later position)|as
per pension plans (inclusive of deferred

compensations);

4)He/she is not a controlling shareholder |or
representative of such shareholder (control as
defined in the Council Directive 83/349/EHC
Article 1 Part 1);

5)Hel/she does not have and did not have fany
material business relations with the company or
associated company within the past year diregctly
or as a partner, shareholder, director or superior
employee of the subject having such
relationship. A subject is considered to have
business relations when it is a major supplief or
service provider (inclusive of financial, legal,
counseling and consulting services), major client
or organization receiving significant payments

from the company or its group;

6) He/she is not and has not been, during the |last
three years, partner or employee of the current or
former external audit company of the company

or associated company;

7)Hel/she is not an executive director or membef of

the board in some other company where
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executive director of the company or membe
the board (if a collegial body elected by t
general shareholders’ meeting is the supervis
board) is non-executive director or member
the supervisory board, he/she may not also Hh
any other material relationships with execut
directors of the company that arise from th
participation in activities of other companies
bodies;

ory
of

ave

eir

or

8) He/she has not been in the position of a member

of the collegial body for over than 12 years;

9)Hel/she is not a close relative to an execu
director or member of the board (if a colleg
body elected by the general shareholds
meeting is the supervisory board) or to 3
person listed in above items 1 to 8. Clg
relative is considered to be a spouse (comn

law spouse), children and parents.

3.8. The determination of what constitutes indepecd
is fundamentally an issue for the collegial bodgelit to
determine. The collegial body may decide that, desp
particular member meets all the criteria of indefmte
laid down in this Code, he cannot be conside
independent due to special personal or companteck

circumstances.

ive
al

2I'S

Se

on-

red

3.9. Necessary information on conclusions the galle|
body has come to in its determination of whethe
particular member of the body should be considévdze
independent should be disclosed. When a persoj
nominated to become a member of the collegial btidy,
company should disclose whether it considers thsope
to be independent. When a particular member of
collegial body does not meet one or more criterig
independence set out in this Code, the companyldh
disclose its reasons for nevertheless considerhmgy

member to be independent. In addition, the compg

No
r a

At present, there are no members who comply wiéh

independency criteria.
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should annually disclose which meers of the collegie

body it considers to be independent.

3.10. When one or more criteria of independencenge
in this Code has not been met throughout the ytbar
company should disclose its reasons for consideair
particular member of the collegial body to
independent. To ensure accuracy of the informa
disclosed in relation with the independence of
members of the collegial body, the company shg
require independent members to have their indeperd

periodically re-confirmed.

No

g

tion
the
uld

[¢]

At present, there are no members who comply thiéh
independency criteria.

No other group of shareholders having no relatioith

the company's management have not raised a wi
have their member on the Company's Board, so t
didn’t offer a candidacy.

The Company’s attempt to incorporate an indepen
member didn’'t serve the purpose (such a member

| to
hey

dent

was

Alvydas Miliunas — chairman of agricultural company

Kubiliai).

3.11. Inorder to remunerate members of a collegial k
for their work and participation in the meetings tog
collegial body, they may be remunerated from
company's funds. The general shareholders’ meg

should approve the amount of such remuneration.

No

the
ting

At present, there are no members who comply wig

independency criteria.

Principle IV: The duties and liabilities of a collegial body elected by the general shareholders’ meeg

The corporate governance framework should ensure mper and effective functioning of the collegial bogl elected by the
general shareholders’ meeting, and the powers graed to the collegial body should ensure effective mioring of the
company’s management bodies and protection of intests of all the company’s shareholders.

4.1. The collegial body elected by the gene

shareholders’” meeting (hereinafter in this Prirei
referred to as the ‘collegial body’) should ensimtegrity
and transparency of the company’s financial statgsn
and the control system. The collegial body shosklé

recommendations to the company’s management bg

ralles
pl

dies

and monitor and control the company's management

performance.

The Board of Directors approves and subn
reciprocations and recommendations to a gen
meeting of shareholders regarding annual accouitjal
of the Company, distribution of the profit, annuaport

of the Company, as well as carries out other fomnsti

nits

eral

S




\'(7 SURIS @

Consolidated audited annual report for the yead 2(1AB"ROKISKIO SURIS"

55

4.2. Members of the collegial body should act irod
faith, with care and responsibility for the benefitd in
the interests of the company and its shareholdihsdue
regard to the interests of employees and publidane|
Independent members of the collegial body shou)d
under all circumstances maintain independence eif
analysis, decision-making and actions (b) do nek ssnd
accept any unjustified privileges that might conmpise
their independence, and (c) clearly express t
objections should a member consider that decisidheo
collegial body is against the interests of the camp
Should a collegial body have passed decisi
independent member has serious doubts about,
member should make adequate conclusions. Shoul
independent member resign from his office, he sh
explain the reasons in a letter addressed to thegéa
body or audit committee and, if necessary, respe(

company-not-pertaining body (institution).

Yes

(a

heir

ons
the
d an

pul

By the Company’s information, all Board members

in good will vis-a-visthe Company. They are guided

the Company'’s interests but not their own or arigdth
parties seeking to maintain their independency w
accepting decisions.

Py

hen

4.3. Each member should devote sufficient time

attention to perform his duties as a member of
collegial body. Each member of the collegial botgdd
limit other professional obligations of his (in penlar
any directorships held in other companies) in sac
manner they do not interfere with proper perforneaot
duties of a member of the collegial body. In therdva
member of the collegial body should be presentess
than a half of the meetings of the collegial ba
throughout the financial

year of the compa

shareholders of the company should be notified.

ailYas
the

ny,

Each member of the collegial body fulfills his/ h
functions properly: actively participates at theetiregs
of collegial body, and devotes sufficient time &rform
his/ her duties as a member of the collegial bdde
guorum of each meeting was regulated so the Bo&a
Directors would be enabled to accept decisi
constructively. During the reporting period therasy
not a meeting which would have been attended by

than a half of the Board members.

do

ons

les

4.4. Where decisions of a collegial body may hay|
different effect on the company's shareholders,

collegial body should treat all shareholders impiyt
and fairly. It should ensure that shareholderspaoperly
informed on the company's affairs, strategies,

management and resolution of conflicts of interdste
company should have a clearly established role|

members of the collegial body when communicatingny

eYas
the

isk

of

=,

and committing to shareholders.

The Company acts honestly and without bias with
shareholders. The shareholders are informed on
Company'’s activities in accordance with the Lithiazan
legislation by announcing the information in ann
reports, through the Central information base drel

company’s website.

ts
the

nal

—




\'(7 SURIS @

56

Consolidated audited annual report for the yead 2(1AB"ROKISKIO SURIS"

45. It is recommended that transactions (ex

insignificant ones due to their low value or cowmigd

Yes

when carrying out routine operations in the company

under usual conditions), concluded between the eomp
and its shareholders, members of the supervisor

managing bodies or other natural or legal perstias

—

exert or may exert influence on
management should be subject to approval of
collegial body. The decision concerning approvasuth

transactions should be deemed adopted only proviued

majority of the independent members of the colleg

body voted for such a decision.

or

the company’'s
the

a

The Company’'s collegial body conclude transact
according to the Articles of Association of the Guany
and Work regulations of the collegial body.

4.6. The collegial body should be independent issjay

decisions that are significant for the company
operations and strategy. Taken separately, thegiall
body should be the

management bodies. Members of the collegial bo

independent of

No

'S

company'’s

dy

should act and pass decisions without an outside

influence from the persons who have elected
Companies should ensure that the collegial bodyitngd
committees are provided with sufficient administ@at
and financial resources to discharge their
including the right to obtain, in particular frormployees
of the company, all the necessary information osdek
independent legal, accounting or any other advine
issues pertaining to the competence of the colldgidy

and its committees. When using the services aof

consultant with a view to obtaining information ¢on
the

market standards for remuneration systems,

remuneration committee should ensure that the damsu

concerned does not at the same time advise therh

resources department, executive directors or dalleg

management organs of the company concerned.

duties,

ma

The Company's Board members are not indepen

dent

from the Executive management of the Company. Ejight

of nine board members are the company’'s employees.

The Board of Directors pursue the Work Regulatioh

the Board in order to pass decisions. They work

benefit of the Company, and ensure continuous afse

shareholder value.
The Company ensures that the collegial body —
Board of Directors — is provided with sufficie
resources (including financial) to discharge tlukities,
including the right to obtain, in particular fro
the

information or to seek independent legal, accogntin

employees of the company, all

any other advice on issues pertaining to the coempet

of the collegial body and its committees.
The Remuneration Committee is not formed at
Company.

D

for

the

3

necessary

the
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4.7. Activities of the collegial body should be anized
in a manner that independent members of the callg
body could have major influence in relevant areaene
chances of occurrence of conflicts of interest eeey
high. Such areas to be considered as highly retesas
issues of nomination of company's directo
determination of directors’ remuneration and cdnémd
assessment of company’s audit. Therefore when
mentioned issues are attributable to the competehnte
collegial body, it is recommended that the collegiady
should establish nomination, remuneration, and ta
committees. Companies should ensure that the fums
attributable to the nomination, remuneration, andlita
committees are carried out. However they may detad
merge these functions and set up less than ft
committees. In such case a company should expital
detail reasons behind the selection of alternatjyeroach
and how the selected approach complies with
objectives set forth for the three different contess.

Should the collegial body of the company comprisels

number of members, the functions assigned to theeth

committees may be performed by the collegial b
itself, provided that it meets composition requiests
advocated for the committees and that adeq
information is provided in this respect. In suchse
provisions of this Code relating to the committeéshe
collegial body (in particular with respect to thewle,
and wi

operation, transparency) should apply,

relevant, to the collegial body as a whole.

Yes/Nc
xgl

rs,

the

udi
'

hree

ni

the

Ddy

uate

A

ere

Pursuing the Law ¢ Audit Article 52 part 1, the

Company established the Audit Committee complying

with the 2F' August 2008 Resolution No. 1K-18 of the

Securities  Commission.  Following the

requirements, the 34April 2009 general meeting of

shareholders approved Regulations of establisharh

performance of the Audit Committee, also it elecisd

above

independent member of the committee, and approved

full composition of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is an independent, and objeqti

committee carrying out the functions of supervisi

analyzing, evaluation and consultation in order

\

to

improve general organization and create value added

The main function of the Committee is systematid
versatile evaluation, as well as encouragementetieb
risk management, and sufficient
maintenance procedures resulting in submissior
recommendations to the Board of Directors
management.

The nomination and remuneration committees are

formed at the Company.

control and

of

and

not

4.8. The key objective of the committess to increas:
efficiency of the activities of the collegial bodyy
ensuring that decisions are based on due consier
and to help organize its work with a view to ensgrihat
the decisions it takes are free of material cotsliof
interest. Committees should exercise indepen
judgment and integrity when exercising its functices
well as present the collegial body with recommeiodiat
the bo

Nevertheless the final decision shall be adoptedHhey

concerning the decisions of collegial

No

dent

The elected Audit Committee pursues the Regulaitii

the Audit Committee, including supervision

preparation of financial accounts, as well as fiometl
internal control of the company, risk managemert
internal audit system, consequently the Committde
submit recommendations to the general meeting
shareholders in relation with the company's ann
financial accounting and related matters. The galle
body remains fully responsible for the decisionsden

within its competence and adopts final decisions.

W
of

ual
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collegial body. The recommendation on creation
committees is not intended, in principle, to cacstthe
competence of the collegial body or to remove
matters considered from the purview of the collelgady
itself, which remains fully responsible for the #ons

taken in its field of competence.

the

4.9. Committees established by the collegial bduyud

normally be composed of at least three members.

companies with small number of members of the galle

body, they could exceptionally be composed of two

members. Majority of the members of each commi
should be constituted from independent memberhi®f
collegial body. In cases when the company chooseton
set up a supervisory board, remuneration and 3

committees should be entirely comprised of npn-

executive directors. Chairmanship and membershipe
committees should be decided with due regard to¢ieel
to ensure that committee membership is refreshet
that is not

undue reliance

individuals..

an

placed on particular

The Audit Committee consists of 3 members, one

which is an independent member.

4.10. Authority of each of the committees should
determined by the collegial body. Committees shd
perform their duties in line with authority delegdtto
them and inform the collegial body on their actestand
performance on regular basis.
committee stipulating the role and rights and dutiethe
committee should be made public at least once a(gsg
part of the information disclosed by the compg
annually on its corporate governance structures
practices). Companies should also make public diynaig
statement by existing committees on their compmsif]
number of meetings and attendance over the year,
their main activities. Audit committee should confithat
it is satisfied with the independence of the apdicess
and describe briefly the actions it has taken txhethis

conclusion.

bées
uld

Authority of every

ANy
and

an

The Audit Committee pursue its duties following t
work regulations approved by the general meeting
shareholders. The Committee is accountable to
shareholders providing

general meeting of

information on the independency of auditing procedu

of

of
the
the
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4.11. In order to ensure independence and impiaytiaf
the committees, members of the collegial body Hrat
not members of the committee should commonly ha
right to participate in the meetings of the comestonly
if invited by the committee. A committee may invibe
demand participation in the meeting of particultiicers
or experts. Chairman of each of the committees lgh
have a possibility to maintain direct communicatiith
the shareholders. Events when such are to be pertb
should be specified in the regulations for comrait

activities.

Yes

e a

ou

te

The Audit Committee willinvite the CEO of the
Company as well as other employees related with
discussed issues to their meetings. Also, the Gizai
of the Committee is provided with the right

communicate with shareholders.

the

to

4.12. Nomination Committe
4.12.1. Key functions of the nomination committ

should be the following:

e Identify and recommend, for the approval of
collegial body, candidates to fill board vacancigse
nomination committee should evaluate the balance
skills, knowledge and experience on the managen
body, prepare a description of the roles and céifiabi

required to assume a particular office, and agbessme

No

he

p Of

nent

commitment expected. Nomination committee can also

consider candidates to members of the collegialyh
delegated by the shareholders of the company;
» Assess on regular basis the structure, size, ositiqn

od

and performance of the supervisory and management

bodies, and make recommendations to the collegidy I
regarding the means of achieving necessary changes
e Assess on regular basis the skills, knowledge
experience of individual directors and report as th the
collegial body;

* Properly consider issues related to successenmpig;
¢ Review the policy of the management bodies

selection and appointment of senior management.

4.12.2. Nomination committee should consider prafm
by other parties, including management and shadehsl
When dealing with issues related to executive ¢irscor

members of the board (if a collegial body electgdhe

D

and

for

There is not a Nomination Committee in the Compi
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general sharellders’ meeting is the supervisory boa

—

and senior management, chief executive officer hef
company should be consulted by, and entitled tongup
proposals to the nomination committee.

4.13. Remuneration Committee. No
4.13.1. Key functions of the remuneration committee
should be the following:

1) Make proposals, for the approval of the collebgady,
on the remuneration policy for members of managémen
bodies and executive directors. Such policy should
address all forms of compensation, including tkedi
remuneration, performance-based remuneration scheme
pension arrangements, and termination payments.
Proposals considering performance-based remuneratio
schemes should be accompanied with recommendations
on the related objectives and evaluation critevigh a
view to properly aligning the pay of executive dier
and members of the management bodies with the long-
term interests of the shareholders and the obgxtet
by the collegial body;

2) Make proposals to the collegial body on thevitlial
remuneration for executive directors and member of
management bodies in order their remunerations are

There is not a Remuneration Committee

Company.

in

the
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consistent with company’s remuneration policy gre
evaluation of the performance of these persons
concerned. In doing so, the committee should bpegrty
informed on the total compensation obtained by etree
directors and members of the management bodies fro
the affiliated companies;

3) Ensure that remuneration of individual executive
directors or members of management body is
proportionate to the remuneration of other exeeutiv
directors or members of management body and othtr
members of the company.

4) Periodically review the remuneration policy for
executive directors or members of management body,
including the policy regarding share-based remuiwra
and its implementation.

5) Make proposals to the collegial body on suitdbtens
of contracts for executive directors and membetb®f
management bodies;

6) Assist the collegial body in overseeing how the
company complies with applicable provisions regagdi
the remuneration-related information disclosure (in
particular the remuneration policy applied and viutlial
remuneration of directors);

7) Make general recommendations to the executive
directors and members of the management bodigseon
level and structure of remuneration for senior
management (as defined by the collegial body) with
regard to the respective information provided ke th
executive directors and members of the management
bodies.

4.13.2. With respect to stock options and otheresha
based incentives which may be granted to directors
other employees, the committee should:

1) Consider general policy regarding the grantihthe
above mentioned schemes, in particular stock
options, and make any related proposals to thegiall
body;

2) Examine the related information that is givemhia

m

[

company’s annual report and documents intendethéor
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use during the shareholders mee!

3) Make proposals to the collegial body regardhnmg t

choice between granting options to subscribe shares

granting options to purchase shares, specifying the

reasons for its choice as well as the consequehaethis

choice has.

4.13.3. Upon resolution of the issues attributablthe

competence of the remuneration committee, the

committee should at least address the chairmameof t

collegial body and/or chief executive officer oéth

company for their opinion on the remuneration dfeot

executive directors or members of the management

bodies.

4.13.4. The remuneration committee should repothen

exercise of its functions to the shareholders and b

present at the annual general meeting for thisqu&p

4.14. Audit Committe. Yes The Audit Committee is independent, objeci
committee carrying out the functions of supervision

4.14.1. Key functions of the audit committee shobél analyzing, evaluation and consultation in order| to

the following: improve general organization and create value added

* Observe the integrity of the financial informatip The key function of the Committee is systematic and

provided by the company, in particular by reviewihg versatile evaluation, as well as encouragementetieh

relevance and consistency of the accounting methods risk management, and sufficient control and

used by the company and its group (including tliteria maintenance procedures resulting in submission of

for the consolidation of the accounts of compainethe recommendations to the general meeting of sharersld

group); and the board of directors in order to implemerit|se

« At least once a year review the systems of imtern objectives.

control and risk management to ensure that therisésg The Audit Committee analyses the consolidated

(inclusive of the risks in relation with complianeégth financial information and provide thejr

existing laws and regulations) are properly idésif recommendations for the integrity of such inforroafi

managed and reflected in the information provided; the Committee make their recommendations regarging

» Ensure the efficiency of the internal audit fuoof selection of the external auditor and inspegcts

among other things, by making recommendations en th effectiveness of the external auditor's performanse

selection, appointment, reappointment and remofveieo well as the reaction of the Company’'s management to

head of the internal audit department and on thigéuof their recommendations which are provided by theedet

the department, and by monitoring the responsivenés to the management.

the management to its findings and recommendations. All members of the committee are furnished wjith

Should there be no internal audit authority in the complete information on particulars of accounting,

company, the need for one should be reviewed at |ea financial and other operations of the company.
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annually

* Make recommendations to the collegial body relate

with selection, appointment, reappointment and neh
of the external auditor (to be done by the gen
shareholders’ meeting) and with the terms and c¢immdi
of his engagement. The committee should investi
situations that lead to a resignation of the aadinpany
or auditor and make recommendations on requ
actions in such situations;

» Monitor independence and impartiality of the emtd
auditor, in particular by reviewing the audit comps
compliance with applicable guidance relating to

rotation of audit partners, the level of fees phidthe
and similar issues.

company, In order to prey

occurrence of material conflicts of interest,

committee, based on the auditor’s disclosed intardata

on all remunerations paid by the company to thdataud

and network, should at all times monitor nature
extent of the non-audit services. Having regardhe
principals and guidelines established in the 16 4892
2002/590/EC,

committee should determine and apply a formal po

Commission Recommendation

establishing types of non-audit services that aa

eral

jate

ired

the

ent

the

and

the
ic

(

excluded, (b) permissible only after review by the

committee, and (c) permissible without referral the
committee;

« Review efficiency of the external audit procesxd
responsiveness of management to recommendations

in the external auditor's management letter.

4.14.2. All
furnished with complete information on particulaog

members of the committee should

accounting, financial and other operations of

company. Company’'s management should inform
audit committee of the methods used to account
significant and unusual transactions where the wauting
treatment may be open to different approachesud
case a special consideration should be given

company’s operations in offshore centers and/avities

2

mad

be

the

the
for

oy

to

Company’s management informs the Audit Commi
of the methods used to account for significant
unusual transactions.

The Audit Committee has a right to demand that
Board Chairman, Chief Executive Officer of t
company, Chief Financial Officer would participade

its meetings. The committee is also entitled, w

and

the
he

nen

needed, to meet with any relevant person without

executive directors and members of the management

bodies present.
The Audit Committee will present its performan
report for the general meeting of shareholders,nthe

annual financial reports are being approved.
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carried out through special purpose vehi

(organizations) and justification of such operagion

4.14.3. The audit committee should decide whe
participation of the chairman of the collegial bpdhief
executive officer of the company, chief financidficer
(or superior employees in charge of finances, tngaand
accounting), or internal and external auditors e
meetings of the committee is required (if requingtien).
The committee should be entitled, when needed, det
with any relevant person without executive direstand

members of the management bodies present.

4.14.4. Internal and external auditors should hxurssl
with not only effective working relationship wit
management, but also with free access to the dallg
body. For this purpose the audit committee shoatdaa
the principal contact person for the internal antemal

auditors.

4.14.5. The audit committee should be informed hef
internal auditor’s work program, and should be fsined
with internal audit’'s reports or periodic summariése
audit committee should also be informed of the w
program of the external auditor and should be &ved
with report disclosing all relationships betweene
independent auditor and the company and its grobp.
committee should be timely furnished information ah

issues arising from the audit.

4.14.6. The audit committee should examine whete
company is following applicable provisions regagithe
possibility for employees to report alleged sigrafit
irregularities in the company, by way of complaits
through anonymous submissions (normally to
independent member of the collegial body), and kh
ensure that there is a procedure established
proportionate and independent investigation of eh

issues and for appropriate follow-up action.

her

=

)

ork

an
DU
for

es
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4.14.7. The audit committee should report on its/dies

to the collegial body at least once in every sixiths, at
the time the yearly and half-yearly statements

approved.

are

4.15. Every year the collegial body should condinet
assessment of its activities. The assessment sk
include evaluation of collegial body's structurepnv
organization and ability to act as a group, evabmabf

each of the collegial body member's and committg

No
ould

e’s

competence and work efficiency and assessment aheth

the collegial body has achieved its objectives. The

collegial body should, at least once a year, makaip

(as part of the information the company annually

discloses on its management structures and prapt
respective information on its internal organizatiand
working procedures, and specify what material clkarn
were made as a result of the assessment of thegidl

body of its own activities.

ice

9

There is no practice of collegial body assessment.

Principle V: The working procedure of the company’scollegial bodies

The working procedure of supervisory and managemenbodies established in the company should ensurefiefent

operation of these bodies and decision-making ancheourage active co-operation between the company®dies.
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5.1. The company’s supervisory and management &
(hereinafter in this Principle the concept ‘collgg
bodies’ covers both the collegial bodies of supsovi
and the collegial bodies of management) should
chaired by chairpersons of these bodies. The ctrsiop

of a collegial body is responsible for proper caration

of the collegial body meetings. The chairpersonuhg

ensure that information about the meeting be
convened and its agenda are communicated tg
members of the body. The chairperson of a colldupaly
should ensure appropriate conducting of the megtoig
the collegial body. The chairperson should ensuderg

and working atmosphere during the meeting.

Yes

be

ing
all

The Company’s Board of Directors is chaired by
Board Chairman acting in accordance with the apguig
Work Regulations. The Board Chairman is responsg
for sufficient information about the meeting bei
convened and its agenda communication to all mesn
of the body. He/ she also ensures order and wor

atmosphere during the meeting.

ible

ber
king

5.2. It is recommended that meetings of the comise
collegial bodies should be carried out accordingh®
schedule approved in advance at certain intervdisne.
Each company is free to decide how often to cony
meetings of the collegial bodies, but it is recomded
that these meetings should be convened at suatvatge
which would guarantee an interrupted resolutionthef
essential corporate governance issues. Meeting$hep,
company’s supervisory board should be conveneeaast
once in a quarter, and the company’s board shoaet
at least once a month.

Yes

ene

f

The company’s collegial bodies should be carried
according to the schedule approved in advancertice
intervals of time, i.e. not less than once perahrenth
period.

5 (five) days prior a meeting each Board membe
provided with the announcement of the meeting tq
convened and its agenda. Planned Board meeting
convened by the Board Chairman, in his absencee-
Deputy Board Chairman.

ris
be

5 are

- th

5.3. Members of a collegial body should be notifédxdut
the meeting being convened in advance in ordetloava
sufficient time for proper preparation for the isswon the
agenda of the meeting and to ensure fruitful disioums
and adoption of appropriate decisions. Alongsidi wie
notice about the meeting being convened, all

documents relevant to the issues on the agendaeg
meeting should be submitted to the members of
collegial body. The agenda of the meeting shouldheo
changed or supplemented during the meeting, uraks

Yes

the
ft
the

S

members of the collegial body are present or ae

tai

issues of great importance to the company require

immediate resolution.

5 (five) days prior a meeting each Board membe
provided with the announcement of the meeting to
convened and its agenda. Planned Board meeting
convened by the Board Chairman, in his absencee-
Deputy Board Chairman.

The agenda might be supplemented only if all mem
of the Board of Directors present at he meetingd,thry
all agree that the item is important enough to begn

the agenda.

be
5 are
- th

per
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5.4. In order to c-ordinate operation of the compan

collegial bodies and ensure effective decision-mgki

process, chairpersons of the company’s collegialidso

D

of supervision and management should closely coate
by co-coordinating dates of the meetings, theimdgs

No

and resolving other issues of corporate governance.

Members of the company’s board should be freetamdy

meetings of the company’'s supervisory board, esfigci

where issues concerning removal of the board mesnber

their liability or remuneration are discussed.

The Company does not have a Supervisory Board

this statement is not applied.

Principle VI: The equitable treatment of shareholdes and shareholder rights

The corporate governance framework should ensure #equitable treatment of all shareholders, includig minority and

foreign shareholders. The corporate governance fragwork should protect the rights of the shareholders

6.1. It is recommended that the company's capitalikl
consist only of the shares that grant the samesigh
voting, ownership, dividend and other rights to thkir
holders.

Yes

As at 3% December 2011, the authorized capital of

Rokiskio suris amounted up to 35 867 970 ordinary

registered shares. Nominal value of the shares ats
to LTL 1. All company's owners have the sa
property and non-property rights, except treashgres

are not entitled to enjoy these rights. The compisay

bu

ne

bought 802 094 treasury skares which made 2.24 per

cent of the company's authorized capital.
The shares with voting right equals to 35 065 876.

6.2. It is recommended that investors should haeess
to the information concerning the rights attachedhe
shares of the new issue or those issued earl@dvance,

i.e. before they purchase shares.

Yes

Investors have access to the information concerthiag
rights attached to the shares of the new issudaset

issued earlier in advance.

6.3. Transactions that are important to the compamy
its shareholders, such as transfer, investment pitdbe
of the company’s assets or any other type of encanue
should be subject to approval of the general sluddehs’
meeting. All shareholders should be furnished \eijoal

opportunity to familiarize with and participate ifhe

No

decision-making process when significant corpofate

issues, including approval of transactions referted

above, are discussed.

According to the Articles of Association of the

Company, important transactions, i.e. the decis
regarding investment, transference, lease or mgetgh
non-current assets whose book value makes overof/

the Company's Authorized Capital, as well as

ons

the

decisions regarding execution, warranty or pledfe o

other bodies’ liabilities whose total sum is ové2 of

the Company’s Authorized Capital, and the decision

acquire non-current assets whose price is over &f20

the Company's Authorized Capital, do not requ

approbation by shareholders. Such resoluti

ire

ons
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(according to the Articles of Association) are apyad

by the Board of Directors.

6.4. Procedures of convening and conducting a génefes

shareholders’ meeting should ensure equal oppatigsn
for the shareholders to effectively participate the
meetings and should not prejudice the rights atetests
of the shareholders. The venue, date, and timehef
shareholders’ meeting should not hinder wide atiend
of the shareholders. Prior to the shareholders’timge

the company’s supervisory and management bagdies

should enable the shareholders to lodge question

|2

issues on the agenda of the general shareholdertimg

and receive answers to them.

The documents prepared for General meeting| of
shareholders including draft resolutions of the tinge
are available not later than 21 day prior the dafte
general meeting of shareholders as required by &ine
on Joint stock companies. The documents placeden t
website of NASDAQ OMX security exchange and the
company website are available in Lithuanian and
English languages.
Resolutions accepted by the general meeting| of
shareholders including financial reports, the atefiort,
annual report, amendments of articles of ssociagiwn
are announce in Lithuanian and English languages ar
announced via the central base of regulated inftboma
of NASDAQ OMX security exchange and the company

websitewww.rokiskio.com

6.5. If is possible, in order to ensure sharehsldieing

abroad the right to access to the information, sit i

recommended that documents on the course of
general shareholders’ meeting should be placedhen
publicly accessible website of the company not anly
Lithuanian language, but in English and /or ott@eign
languages in advance. It is recommended that thetes
of the general shareholders’ meeting after sigrilrgm
and/or adopted resolutions should be also placethen
publicly accessible website of the company. Seeking
ensure the right of foreigners to familiarize withe
information, whenever feasible, documents refetoeth

this recommendation should be published in Lithaan

English and/or other foreign languages. Documents

referred to in this recommendation may be publisbeq

—

the publicly accessible website of the company he

extent that publishing of these documents is |not

detrimental to the company or the company’s comiakrc

secrets are not revealed.

Shareholders of the company have the right to
participate at general meeting of shareholdersopetky
or appoint a representative if there is a propeve? ®f
Attorney or Agreement to pass votes according ®|th
applicable legislation. Also, the Company providiss
shareholders with the right to fill in a common iagt
bulletin as it is required by the Law on Joint $tac

Companies.
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6.6. Shareholders should be furnished with
opportunity to vote in the general shareholdersktimg
in person and in absentia. Shareholders shouldbad
in advance

prevented from voting in writing

completing the general voting ballot.

No

—

Dy

This statement is not followed by the Company bse
there is not an opportunity to secure safety of
transmitted information and it is impossible toritify
personality of the participator and voter.

the

6.7. With a view to increasing the sharehold
opportunities to participate effectively at sharelecs’
meetings, the companies are recommended to exys=m
of modern technologies by allowing the shareholder
participate and vote in general meetings via ebeatr
means of communication. In such cases security
transmitted information and a possibility to idéntihe
identity of the participating and voting person slgobe
guaranteed. Moreover, companies could furnish
shareholders, especially shareholders living ahroaith
the opportunity to watch shareholder meetings bamaé

of modern technologies.

No

U7

of

its

%

Principle VII: The avoidance of conflicts of interest and their disclosure

The corporate governance framework should encouragmembers of the corporate bodies to avoid conflictsf interest and

assure transparent and effective mechanism of disidure of conflicts of interest regarding members othe corporate

bodies.

7.1. Any member of the company's suisory and
management body should avoid a situation, in wk
his/her personal interests are in conflict or may ib
conflict with the company’s interests. In case suc
situation did occur, a member of the compan
supervisory and management body should, wi
reasonable time, inform other members of the s
collegial body or the company's body that has el
him/her, or to the company’'s shareholders aboy

situation of a conflict of interest, indicate thature of the

Yes
ich

V'S
hin
ame

conflict and value, where possible.

A member of the company's management body
make a transaction with the company whose membg
appears to be, however he/ she shall not infornother
members of the same body or the company's b
having elected him/ her as well as shall not infaha

company’s shareholders.

2r he
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7.2. Any member of the company's supervisory
management body may not mix the company’'s as$eds

use of which has not been mutually agreed uporh

his/her personal assets or use them or the infavmat

which he/she learns by virtue of his/her positian &
member of a corporate body for his/her personaktie
or for the benefit of any third person without aopr
agreement of the general shareholders’ meetingngr
other corporate body authorized by the meeting.

Yes
,t

Wit

-

7.3. Any member of the company's supervisory g
management body may conclude a transaction with
company, a member of a corporate body of whichhee)
is. Such a transaction (except insignificant onae tb
their low value or concluded when carrying out nogit
operations in the company under usual conditiongt
be immediately reported in writing or orally, bycoeding
this in the minutes of the meeting, to other mermbur
the same corporate body or to the corporate baatyhas
elected him/her or to the company’'s sharehold
Transactions specified in this recommendation dse

subject to recommendation 4.5.

the

S

=

ers.

The company follows the recommendation. A Bo
member abstains from voting, when discussing
transactions or other issues in which he/ she beain

interests.

ard
the

7.4. Any member of the company's supervisory antes

management body should abstain from voting w
decisions concerning transactions or other issuke

personal or business interest are voted on.

nen

5 O

The company follows the recommendation. A Bo
member abstains from voting, when discussing
transactions or other issues in which he/ she beain

interests.

ard
the

Principle VIII: Company’s remuneration policy

Remuneration policy and procedure for approval, revsion and disclosure of directors’ remuneration estblished in the

company should prevent potential conflicts of inteest and abuse in determining remuneration of diredrs, in addition it

should ensure publicity and transparency both of cmpany’s remuneration policy and remuneration of directors.

8.1. A company should make a public statement ef

policy
remuneration statement) which should be clear asdye

company’s remuneration (hereinafter
understandable. This remuneration statement shbel
published as a part of the company’s annual stateas

well as posted on the company’s website.

No
he

The company does not announce any information e

remuneration system.
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en

-

8.2. Remuneration statement should mainly focus| No As from 200: and up to dai, the Company applies
directors’ remuneration policy for the followingareand, remuneration system which conforms all the statésn
if appropriate, the subsequent years. The statesmendd of this point. The system is approved by the Corgsa
contain a summary of the implementation of the manager, but it is not announced publicly.
remuneration policy in the previous financial yefar.

Special attention should be given to any significan

changes in company’s remuneration policy as contpare

to the previous financial year.

8.3. Remuneration statement should leastwise iediie | No As there is not a Remuneration Committee,

following information:

1) Explanation of the relative importance of theiafle
and non-variable components of directors’ remuinemat
2) Sufficient information on performance criterieat
entitles directors to share options, shares oabei
components of remuneration;

3) An explanation how the choice of performancésda
contributes to the long-term interests of the camypa
4) An explanation of the methods, applied in ortder
determine whether performance criteria have been
fulfilled;

5) Sufficient information on deferment periods with
regard to variable components of remuneration;

6) Sufficient information on the linkage between th
remuneration and performance;

7) The main parameters and rationale for any annual
bonus scheme and any other non-cash benefits;

8) Sufficient information on the policy regarding
termination payments;

9) Sufficient information with regard to vestingrigels
for share-based remuneration, as referred to int 8013
of this Code;

10) Sufficient information on the policy regarding
retention of shares after vesting, as referred fmint
8.15 of this Code;

11) Sufficient information on the composition ofepe
groups of companies the remuneration policy of Wwhic
has been examined in relation to the establishwfethie
remuneration policy of the company concerned;

12) A description of the main characteristics of

statements are not determined.
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supplementary pension or early retirement scheore
directors;
should not incl

13) Remuneration statement

commercially sensitive information.

ide

8.4. Remuneration statement should also summanidt
explain company’s policy regarding the terms of

contracts executed with executive directors and beem
of the management bodies. It should include, iatéx,

information on the duration of contracts with extee
directors and members of the management bodies|
applicable notice periods and details of provisidos
termination payments linked to early terminatiorden
contracts for executive directors and members @ef

management bodies.

tHeo

the

The company does not annouce any informatikor
remuneration amounts or any other benefits recdye
the directors because the company believs this

confidential information.

8.5. Remuneration statement should also contaailedt
information on the entire amount of remuneration,
inclusive of other benefits, that was paid to indial
directors over the relevant financial year. Thisutoent
should list at least the information set out imige8.5.1 to
8.5.4 for each person who has served as a diretthe
company at any time during the relevant financesdry
8.5.1. The following remuneration and/or emoluments
related information should be disclosed:

* The total amount of remuneration paid or duento t
director for services performed during the relevant
financial year, inclusive of, where relevant, attence
fees fixed by the annual general shareholders nigeti

« The remuneration and advantages received from an
undertaking belonging to the same group;

» The remuneration paid in the form of profit shari
and/or bonus payments and the reasons why suctsbo

payments and/or profit sharing were granted;

No

« If permissible by the law, any significant addital

is
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remuneration paid to directors for special servimaside
the scope of the usual functions of a director;

» Compensation receivable or paid to each former
executive director or member of the management lasd
a result of his resignation from the office durthg
previous financial year;

* Total estimated value of non-cash benefits careid as
remuneration, other than the items covered in bova
points.

8.5.2. As regards shares and/or rights to acqbaees
options and/or all other share-incentive schentes, t
following information should be disclosed:

« The number of share options offered or sharestgda
by the company during the relevant financial yeat a
their conditions of application;

» The number of shares options exercised during the
relevant financial year and, for each of them,rthmber
of shares involved and the exercise price or ttheevaf
the interest in the share incentive scheme atrideoéthe
financial year;

» The number of share options unexercised at tdeoén
the financial year; their exercise price, the eiserclate
and the main conditions for the exercise of thatdg

« All changes in the terms and conditions of ergthare
options occurring during the financial year.

8.5.3. The following supplementary pension schemes-
related information should be disclosed:

* When the pension scheme is a defined-benefitnsehe
changes in the directors’ accrued benefits undsr th
scheme during the relevant financial year;

* When the pension scheme is defined-contribution
scheme, detailed information on contributions paid
payable by the company in respect of that diredtwing
the relevant financial year.

8.5.4. The statement should also state amountstiiat
company or any subsidiary company or entity inctuihe
the consolidated annual financial statements of the

company has paid to each person who has served as

director in the company at any time during thevaig
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financial year in the form ooans, advance payments
guarantees, including the amount outstanding a@d th

interest rate.

8.6. Where the remuneration policy includes vasi Yes The Company applies the remuneration sys

components of remuneration, companies shouldreésli according to which compensation for work considts o

on the variable component(s). The non-variable variable parts. The variable constituents are atkxt to

component of remuneration should be sufficientlitma every function according to the overall functional

the company to withhold variable components of management system.

remuneration when performance criteria are not met.

8.7. Award of variable components of remunera Yes The variable constituents are allocated by

should be subject to predetermined and measurable Company’s management, taking into account the tesul

performance criteria. of the Company’s performance, number of employees,
market situation and other factors.

8.8. Where a variable component of remuneration is | Yes When a variable part of compensation is atétathe

awarded, a major part of the variable componentlsho biggest part of the payment of variable part | of

be deferred for a minimum period of time. The mdirthe compensation is reserved to the first quarter.

variable component subject to deferment should be

determined in relation to the relative weight o th

variable component compared to the non-variable

component of remuneration.

8.9. Contractual arrangements with executive or No The variable part of compensation is only paften its

managing directors should include provisions tleatrpt validity is fully certain.

the company to reclaim variable components of

remuneration that were awarded on the basis of data

which subsequently proved to be manifestly misdtate

8.10. Termination payments should not exceed alfixe | Yes Termination payments are paid in accordanch thie

amount or fixed number of years of annual remuiarat
which should, in general, not be higher than twargeof
the non-variable component of remuneration or the

equivalent thereof.

statements of Work Codex of the Republic of Lithaan
article 140, and the statements of Corporate Ageggm

approved by the Company.
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8.11. Termination payments should not be paidsit Yes Termination payments are not paid out if the
termination is due to inadequate performance. contract is terminated due to bad performance tesul
8.12. The information on preparatory and decision- No The company doesn‘t have any other remuners

making processes, during which a policy of remutiena
of directors is being established, should alsoibelased.
Information should include data, if applicable, on
authorities and composition of the remuneration
committee, names and surnames of external constilta
whose services have been used in determinatidreof t
remuneration policy as well as the role of shareééia’

annual general meeting.

system designed to the directors except the varipait
of salary which depends on the company's performa

results, market situation and other factors.

ition

\nc

8.13. Shares should not vest for at least threesyafter

their award.

No

Remuneration is not based on share award.

8.14. Share options or any other right to acquiges or
to be remunerated on the basis of share price mentsm
should not be exercisable for at least three yafes
their award. Vesting of shares and the right to@se
share options or any other right to acquire sharés be
remunerated on the basis of share price movements,
should be subject to predetermined and measurable

performance criteria.

No

Remuneration is not based on share award.

8.15. After vesting, directors should retain a nemdf
shares, until the end of their mandate, subjetiteémeed
to finance any costs related to acquisition ofghares.
The number of shares to be retained should be,fixed
example, twice the value of total annual remunenati
(the non-variable plus the variable components).

No

See point 8.1

8.16. Remuneration of n-executive or supervisol

directors should not include share options.

No

See point 8.1

8.17. Shareholders, in particular institutional
shareholders, should be encouraged to attend denera
meetings where appropriate and make consideredfuse

their votes regarding directors’ remuneration.

No

Shareholders are encouraged to attend geneetings
of shareholders, yet the meetings do not consibereis
of the directors’ remuneration system. It is coasid to

be a prerogative of the Board of Directors.
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8.18. Without prejudice tche role and organization

the relevant bodies responsible for setting dimstto

remunerations, the remuneration policy or any other
significant change in remuneration policy should be
included into the agenda of the shareholders’ dannua
general meeting. Remuneration statement shouldibe p
for voting in shareholders’ annual general meetirte

vote may be either mandatory or advisory.

No

See point 8.1

8.19. Schemes anticipating remuneration of dirsdto
shares, share options or any other right to puechhares
or be remunerated on the basis of share price memsm
should be subject to the prior approval of sharddrs!
annual general meeting by way of a resolution gor
their adoption. The approval of scheme should lzed
with the scheme itself and not to the grant of ssidre-
based benefits under that scheme to individuattiirs.
All significant changes in scheme provisions shaltib
be subject to shareholders’ approval prior to their
adoption; the approval decision should be made in
shareholders’ annual general meeting. In such case
shareholders should be notified on all terms ofyegted
changes and get an explanation on the impact of the

suggested changes.

No

Schemes anticipating remuneration of directors
shares, share options or any other right to puec
shares or be remunerated on the basis of share

movements are not determined at the Company.

nas

pric

8.20. The following issues should be subject taraygl
by the shareholders’ annual general meeting:

1) Grant of share-based schemes, including shadiengp
to directors;

2) Determination of maximum number of shares and
main conditions of share granting;

3) The term within which options can be exercised;
4) The conditions for any subsequent change in the
exercise of the options, if permissible by law;

5) All other long-term incentive schemes for which
directors are eligible and which are not availablether
employees of the company under similar terms. Ahnua
general meeting should also set the deadline wittiich
the body responsible for remuneration of directoey
award compensations listed in this article to irdiral

directors.

No

Schemes anticipating remuneration of directohares
are not determined at the Company.
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8.21. Should national law or companArticles of
Association allow, any discounted option arrangetmen
under which any rights are granted to subscritsh&oes
at a price lower than the market value of the share
prevailing on the day of the price determinationthe
average of the market values over a number of days
preceding the date when the exercise price is mdted,

should also be subject to the shareholders’ approva

No

There are no share subscription transactions antg

based on share price fluctuation.

8.22. Provisions of Aicles 8.19 and 8.20 should not
applicable to schemes allowing for participatiorl@n
similar conditions to company’s employees or emptsy
of any subsidiary company whose employees arebégig
to participate in the scheme and which has beeroapg

in the shareholders’ annual general meeting.

No

The employees of the company and subsidiarinesotl

get remuneration with shares.

8.23. Prior to the annual general meeting thaitsnidec
to consider decision stipulated in Article 8.1% th
shareholders must be provided an opportunity to
familiarize with draft resolution and project-reddtnotice
(the documents should be posted on the company’s
website). The notice should contain the full tefxthe
share-based remuneration schemes or a descrigtion g
their key terms, as well as full names of the pgréints
in the schemes. Notice should also specify the
relationship of the schemes and the overall renativer
policy of the directors. Draft resolution must havelear
reference to the scheme itself or to the summaitg dley
terms. Shareholders must also be presented with
information on how the company intends to provioie f
the shares required to meet its obligations unugritive
schemes. It should be clearly stated whether thgpeay
intends to buy shares in the market, hold the share
reserve or issue new ones. There should also be a
summary on scheme-related expenses the company V
suffer due to the anticipated application of thieesne.
All information given in this article must be podten the

company’'s website.

No

vill

See point 8.1!

Principle IX: The role of stakeholders in corporategovernance
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The corporate governance framework should recognizéhe rights of stakeholders as established by lawnd encourage
active co-operation between companies and stakeheld in creating the company value, jobs and finanal sustainability.
For the purposes of this Principle, the concept “stkeholders” includes investors, employees, crediter suppliers, clients,

local community and other persons having certain iterest in the company concerned.

9.1. The corporate governance framework shouldra:
that the rights of stakeholders that are protettgdaw
are respected.

Yes

9.2. The corporate governance framework shouldter
conditions for the stakeholders to participate anporate

governance in the manner prescribed by law. Exagrgfi¢

mechanisms of stakeholder participation in cormof

governance include: employee participation in ai@op
of certain key decisions for the company; consgltine
employees on corporate governance and other imyqg
issues; employee participation in the company’sres
capital; creditor involvement in governance in toatext
of the company’s insolvency, etc.

rta

na

9.3. Where stakeholders participate in the corpc
governance process, they should have access t@mngl

information.

The corporate governance framework assures thés

of stakeholders that are protected by law are msgde

The company applies a Corporate Contract with

employees, and the contract is signed by the CED|
Trade Union. Also it is ensured the interest haidmre
For

able to participate in governance.

participation of the company’s employees and ralk m

suppliers in the company governance. The greatast
of shareholders are the company’'s employees and
milk suppliers. The interest holders have the ritgt

receive information required.

Principle X: Information disclosure and transparency

The corporate governance framework should ensure #t timely and accurate disclosure is made on all nterial

information regarding the company, including the financial situation, performance and governance of i company.

10.1. The company should disclose information on:
 The financial and operating results of the conypan

« Company objectives;

« Persons holding by the right of ownership or amtcol
of a block of shares in the company;

e Members of the company's supervisory 4
management bodies, chief executive officer of
company and their remuneration;

* Material foreseeable risk factors;

e Transactions between the company and conne
persons, as well as transactions concluded outsieg
course of the company’s regular operations;

issues

e Material regarding employees and o

Yes

the

cted

her

examp

an

e,

p
raw

The company announces the information immediately

via the central base of regulated information ithbithe
Lithuanian and English languages. The informatikomn
palced immediately so the
accessible to each shareholder simultaneously
the

addition, company when

information before or after

NASDAQ OMX Vilnius

trading sessions

in order to ensure all

information would pe

In

possible provides

of

shareholders and investors of the Company woul@ hav

equal opportunities to get the information needeg

make appropriate investment decitions. The company

does not disclose any information possibly infliegc

share price prior it is announced publicly via teatral
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stakeholder:

« Governance structures and strategy.
This list should be deemed as a minim
recommendation, while the companies are encour
not to limit themselves to disclosure of the infation

specified in this list.

aged

data bas of the regulated informatit.

10.2. Itis recommended to the company, whiches Yes

parent of other companies, that consolidated resfithe

whole group to which the company belongs should be

disclosed when information specified in item 1 of

Recommendation 10.1 is under disclosure.

10.3. It is recommended that information on the Yes The company's annual reports include informatik
professional background, qualifications of the mersb about the activities of Board members, participatio
of supervisory and management bodies, chief exeeuti the activities of other companies as well as thewrh
officer of the company should be disclosed as all of shares of the company owned by the members.,
potential conflicts of interest that may have deafon there is informatikon about the average payn
their decisions when information specified in itdrof amounts.

Recommendation 10.1 about the members of the

company’s supervisory and management bodies isrunde

disclosure. It is also recommended that informasibaout

the amount of remuneration received from the compan

and other income should be disclosed with regard to
members of the company’s supervisory and managen

bodies and chief executive officer as per Princiflié.

ent

on

Also

ent
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10.4. It is recommended that information aboutlithies
between the company and its stakeholders, including
employees, creditors, suppliers, local communisyyell
as the company’s policy with regard to human resesir
employee participation schemes in the company’seshd
capital, etc. should be disclosed when information
specified in item 7 of Recommendation 10.1 is under

disclosure.

Yes

10.5. Information should be disclosed in such a ey
neither shareholders nor investors are discriméhatih

regard to the manner or scope of access to infioma
Information should be disclosed to all simultandpult

is recommended that notices about material evétsid
be announced before or after a trading sessionher
NASDAQ OMX Vilnius Stock Exchange, so that all t
company’s shareholders and investors should hawal ¢
access to the information and make informed inugs

decisions.

Yes

he
2|

[=2

In the company’s website, the company publishefis
reports which are placed in the central informatiase

in Lithuanian and English.

10.6. Channels for disseminating information sho
provide for fair, timely and cost-efficient or inages
provided by the legal acts free of charge acces
relevant information by users. It is recommendedt
information technologies should be employed for ewi
dissemination of information, for instance, by jtacthe
information on the company's website. It

recommended that information should be published
placed on the company’s website not only in Lithaan
but also

in English, and, whenever possible

necessary, in other languages as well.

ules

an

and

In the company’s website, the company publishegsa
reports which are placed in the central informatiase
in Lithuanian and English, including the Compan
annual report, a set of financial statements arrg
periodical reports prepared by the Company, as as

other stock events.

V'S

10.7. 1t is recommended that the company’'s an
reports and other periodical accounts prepared hay
company should be placed on the company’'s wehllsit
is recommended that the company should anno
information about material events and changes &
price of the company’s shares on the Stock Exchang

the company’s website too.

n0é&ds
t

e.

ince
th

e

In the company’s website, the company publishegsa
reports which are placed in the central informatiaise
in Lithuanian and English, including the Compan
annual report, a set of financial statements arrg
periodical reports prepared by the Company, as as

other stock events.

V'S

Principle XI: The selection of the company’s audito
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The mechanism of the selection of the company’s aidr should ensure independence of the firm of audlor's conclusion

and opinion.

11.1. An annual audit of the company’s financiglaes

and interim reports should be conducted by
independent firm of auditors in order to provide
external and objective opinion on the company’aficial

statements.

Yes
an

an

The Board of Directors proposes an auditing firnthie

general meeting of shareholders.

11.2. It is recommended that the company’s supeiyi
board and, where it is not set up, the companyard
should propose a candidate firm of auditors togdeeral

shareholders’ meeting.

s5Yes

The company's board of directors puts the a
company candidature to voting on the general mge

of shareholders

=

11.3. It is recommended that the company shoultlatis
to its shareholders the level of fees paid to i fof
auditors for non-audit services rendered to the pzomy.
This information should be also known to the conyar
supervisory board and, where it is not formed,
company’s board upon their consideration which fofn

auditors to propose for the general shareholdeegtimg.

Yes

the

The Audit Company has been paid for the servic
supervise tax management. Such an information bl

provided to the general meeting of shareholders.

dit

n



